AFFIDAVIT

|, the undersigned,

SARAH-JANE TRENT

do hereby make oath and state as follows:

1.
| am a major female presently residing in Johannesburg. | am an attomey on the non-
practicing roll with the Legal Practice Council, as well as 2 Certified Fraud Examiner in
good standing with the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. | am the director of SJ
Trent (Pty) Ltd and provide services as a Certified Fraud Examiner.

2.
The facts hereinafter deposed to are within my personal knowledge and are true and
correct. Given that the information contained herein is of a personal and medical nature,
I request that this affidavit, nor annexures is not published in any way at all. This will
ensure protection of my constitutional right to privacy.

3.
The purpose of this Affidavit is to have my oral testimony given on 5 March 2026, declared
invalid, struck from the record of oral evidence hearings and for any transcription thereof

to be declared pro nion scripto. | set out the basis for this herein below.



BRIEF BACKGROUND

4.
From 10 February 2017 until the present time, | have suffered from a very serious Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder, due to certain unlawful events that took place as was set out
in my Affidavit dated 5 March 2026. | also provided additional documents and videos to
the evidence leaders prior to my appearance before the Committee.

5.
In preparation for my appearance before the Committee, the evidence leaders, Advocate
Arendse SC and Adv Mkhize became aware of my PTSD as | would burst out crying
during our consultations and discussions. | made it desperately clear to them that |
suffered from PTSD and that it was essential for me to be absolutely prepared and ready
for the Committee on 5 March 2026. Having been assured by Advocate Mkhize that my
Affidavit was fine and that my attorney had reviewed same, | felt confident that | would
perform to the best of my ability. Sadly, | was wrong. This experience was absolutely
devastating for me.

6.
On § March 2026 from approximately 16:00 until 02:20 on 6 March 2026 | appeared at
the Parliamentary Ad Hoc Committee to Investigate Allegations made by Lieutenant
General Nhlanhla Mkhwanazi.

| 7.

During the early stages of my oral evidence, | suffered a severe secondary trauma to the
PTSD, which bypassed my previous coping mechanisms that | had spent years working

on and triggered what is commonly known as a re-traumatisation. | burst out crying and
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was completely overwhelmed by what | can only describe as total helplessness. This
means that the secondary trauma was not under my control. Due to the severity of this
experience, | have since sought out a forensic psychologist who | mandated to carry out
an analysis of my condition and produce a report on same.
8.
Under the circumstances of the crippling trauma relapse, | was not in a position to properly
engage, | was completely unable to concentrate, understand or follow the questions put
to me and | was unable to answer the questions in a cogent manner. | refer to Annexure
‘A’, attached hereto, which is my own commentary on the first 43 pages of the Record of
Meeting, as is published on the website of the Parliamentary Monitoring Group, from
which can be seen a quote from some of the members of the committee, which are
reproduced in that Annexure A. | have attached the whole of the Record of Meeting, as
downloaded from the pmg website. | have called it Annexure ‘B’, It should be noted that
| have highlighted in yellow, the sections that are referred to in my Annexure ‘A’,
9.

At this state, | pause to point out that | stopped analysing Annexure ‘B', when | got to page
43, for two reasons: -

9.1
Firstly, | had already by that stage again become very traumatised, just by reading the
Record of Meeting.

9.2
Secondly, | realised that if | carried on dealing with each and every failure by me, due to

my condition, to give proper and coherent answers, Annexure ‘A’ would be unnecessarily

A

T~



lengthy. | had made my point, by analysing up to page 43, that | was suffering very badly
and that my answers were wrong, as | was not capable of thinking clearly due to my state
of mind.
10.
At one stage, as can be seen from Annexure 'B', the Committee agreed that there be a
break, so | could calm down. During this break | was accompanied to the bathroom by
Advocate Mkhize and Honourable Sangoni. | was having a physical reaction to the
trauma, and | had no control over this. Honourable James then entered the bathroom and
said that | am a strong woman. | do not remember everything she said but she made me
feel that she was being supportive and admiring of the work | had done and that she
respected me. From her scathing attack on me later, especially when she said | would
“crawl out of here", | now realise, | was manipulated into returning to the meeting, so that
| could be further humiliated, manipulated and attacked, merely deepening my trauma.
For years | had to survive on my own with this trauma and | have done everything you
could possibly think of to help me deal with it. Name it, | have done it. | don’t think it is fair
to be punished for not being able to give proper evidence due to something | have no
control over,
11.

Whilst still in the bathroom, Advocate Mkhize then stated that if | did not continue, the
Committee would extend their investigation just to bring me back, so | must just get it over
with then and there. | felt like she was being very harsh and forceful. There was a
discussion in the bathroom between Advocate Mkhize and Honourable Sangoni that they

suggest to the Committee that they change the way | present my evidence but | could not



make an informed or rational decision at the time. | was determined not to cry during the
proceedings and when this happened it was utterly humiliating for me.
12.
When | took my seat on my retum into the chamber, there were ongoing discussions on
how to proceed with my evidence. | am assuming that this is due to the fact that | was not
in the right frame of mind to continue as we had been up until then. | did not understand
what was being said and | could not even see words on the papers | was looking at, as
everything seemed blurred. All | understood was that | should just be allowed to tell my
story from the beginning and not go through the affidavit. | felt uncomfortable and needed
to consider the implications of this, especially since | had made an Affidavit. | could not
understand what the Chairperson was saying to me or whether he even explained the
process or if a decision had been made. When | stated to the Chairperson that | would do
as the Committee preferred and was fine to proceed as before, the Chairperson,
appeared to become imitated or frustrated with me, which placed more pressure on me. |
was therefore by then, in attendance under duress. Even though | was starting to feel
detached from the proceedings, due to my trauma, | tried to carry on.
13.

The Committee took a meal- break, and | went outside and was in an all-consuming state
of panic, shock and physical paralysis. | attempted to exercise the many psychological
tools | had been trained to use for my PTSD but this did not work, which made things

worse because | suddenly realised, | had no control over my trauma.
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14.
I spoke to my attorney, Darryl Furman. on the phone and begged him to help me. He
stated that | needed to go to the hospital and if someone could come and help me. | attach
an affidavit deposed to by Darryl Furman as Annexure ‘C’, which clearly sets out what
he experienced, pertaining to the evening in question.

15.
Notwithstanding my absolutely desperate state, the Chairperson refused to consider my
situation and insisted that we continue. Not only was | forced under duress to continue, |
was made to stay until after 02;20am the next day. | had arrived at parliament at 0Sh00
and sat around for many hours, anxiously waiting to get started. By the time | left, | had
been there a solid seventeen and a half hours, most of which time was spent in a state of
trauma.

16.
| was subjected to important questions that required proper cogent answers, as waell as
attacks and verbal abuse from certain members that | could not properly defend myself
against. One of the members even told me she would make me crawl out of there; such
was the level of abuse | had to endure. | understand that the members have privileges,
but some of them intentionally chose to ignore my Condition and altempt to humiliate me,
not allow me to answer questions and to treat me like  criminal. All this conduct did, was
to increase my trauma and caused me to enter a mode where | tried to give them the

answers that | thought they wanted to hear, whether said answers were true or not.



17.
I was stripped of my rights, and the Committee put my health at risk. | take pride in who |
am and what | have achieved throughout my life. | have seen and experienced first hand
how the criminal justice system has been burnt to the ground by corruption and with my

knowledge and experience | believed that | could bring something valuable to the table.

The attachments to this affidavit are as follows: -

Annexure ‘A’ is my commentary on the first 43 pages of Annexure 'B'.

Annexure ‘B’ is the Record of Meeting, amounting to 121 pages, with line numbering.
For some reason line numbering starts at line 5. | do not know how to fix this, with the

time available to get my affidavit completed.

Annexure ‘C’ is an affidavit from my attorney, Damryl Furman, which sets out his shocking

experience in trying to help me on the evening of 5 March 2026, which help failed.

18.
Having taken all of the above into Question, it is clear that | should not have been allowed
to continue with oral evidence, after | broke down the first time, and in forcing me to
continue, my constitutional rights were severely breached and | was further traumatised.
I do not believe that Act 4, of 2004 permits the abuse of a person’s constitutional rights
by members of pariament and reserve my rights in that regard.

19.
I'was a victim of corrupt police officials back in February 2017, as a result of my work in

assisting Mr O'Sullivan, through Forensics for Justice to €xpose systemic corruption
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within the criminal justice system. My victimising consisted of kidnapping and being held
in horrific conditions, for more than 48 hours. After being freed late at night on 12 February
2017. It should be clear from this affidavit and attachments, that | am still a victim and still

suffering. That suffering was made worse, by what | was put through on 5 March 2026.

SUMMARY
20.

20.1 During the first break which was for me to gather myself, Advocate Mkhize
told me that the Committee would just call me back even if they had to
extend the time frame so | might as well get it over with. | believe that had |
been allowed to leave, to seek medical help, a forensic psychologist would

have found that | was not able to appear before the Committee at all,

20.2 Members of the Committee stated that | was not fit to give evidence:

20.3 Honourable Dianne Kohler-Barmard came to check on me and said that it

was clear that | had PTSD:

204 The Chairperson refused to allow me to speak with my attorney:

20.5 I was held there against my will until 02:20;



20.6

Honourable James told me that after she was finished with me, | would

crawl out of there. | set out some examples of the abuse | had to endure

and was not able to defend myself,

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

Ms Trent:

Ms James:

You were crying profusely early on. Why were you crying?
Itis this Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD). | was
completely fine, and then it all comes rushing back. It is very
overwhelming and embarrassing as well.

It is embarrassing.

Itis.

The things you have done is embarrassing. So | want to
know why you were crying. Were you crying because you
got caught out?

No.

Were you crying because you regret doing everything that
you did?

No, | was crying because of what happened to me.

What happened to you?

| was abducted. My phone was stolen.

You were not abducted. Your phone was not stolen. Your
phone was booked into the SAP-13 book at the police
station. What makes you think your phone was stolen?

It was stolen.

It was not stolen, | am telling you.
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20.7

208

20.9

Ms Trent; It was.

Ms James: You know whal you are not going to do now? | have 15
minutes. You are not going to talk when | am talking. That is
what you are not going to do here, because you have wasted
our me this entire night lying. The only thing that can vindicate
us are these extract on reports.

Ms Trent: | am not dealing with them. | am sorry.

Ms James: If you do not want to deal with them, | will deal with them, | will
read all of these messages. | was going to be selective in my
questioning, but if you are going to give me that attitude, you
will crawl out of here. You have been lying under oath the
entire day. You have been lying about not writing statements.
You must pick a side now. Do you want to do McBride or

Mandla?

Honourable Sauls asked me extremely inappropriate questions:

Honourable Nqola sat and laughed at me when | struggled to answer

questions;

Adv Mkhize ensured me that she would play the video footage | had

evidenced in my affidavit but this did not happen, which means even today,

the committee does not know what | had 10 endure.



21.
As a consequence, the only comect thing. is for my oral evidence to be struck and any
written record of same to be treated as pro rion scnpto and removed from publication.
22.

Without showing any disrespect to any honourable member, | shall send this to all
committee members per e-mail, as well as to the evidence leaders, chairman and

secretary of the committee.

A\
SARAH-JANE TRENT

Thus done and signed and sworn to before me at SANDTON this the 23 of MARCH
2026. The Deponent having acknowledged the she knows and understands the contents

of this affidavit, has no objection to swearing the prescribed oath and that same is binding

on her conscience.




ANNEXURE ‘A’

COMMENTARY ON EXTRACT OF MEETING RECORD 2026-03-05
NB:  Line numbers start on each page, with Line 5. | did not know how to fix this.
Page 7, Lines 28 - 31

Due to my PTSD (“Condition”), | completely missed the point, that | wrongly admitted being at

General Phahlane’s home. | want to state for the record | have never been to General Phahlane’s
home,

Page 13, Line 10
From what | can see, this is the first real evidence on the Meeting record of my Condition,
Page 13, Lines 33 - 38, read together with Page 14, Lines5-7

Apart from this being further evidence of my condition, | need to record that | was unable to give
a proper answer. The answer | should have given, but could not, due to my Condition, is that
there is no law, disallowing any police official or law enforcement official from requesting
legitimate help from any person, provided that, if such help is to be remunerated, it should go
through a legitimate procurement process.

Page 16, Lines 19- 28

I should have given the same answer | was supposed to have given on page 13, Lines 33 - 38, ie,
that there is no law, disallowing any police official or law enforcement from requesting legitimate
help from any person, provided that, if such help is to be remunerated, it should go through a
legitimate procurement process. However, because of my Condition, | simply could not think
straight. Lines 25 through 30 are real evidence of my Condition,

Page 17, Lines 5 - 21

This is hard evidence, not only of my Condition, but of the fact that certain members of the
committee, had become full cognisant of my Condition,

Page 18, Lines 11 - 13

Due to my Condition, | have again incorrectly admitted being at General Phahlane’s house, | was

just too confused to focus and state that | have never, in my whole life, been at, or inside General
Phahlane’s house.

ANNEXURE ‘A" Commentary an meeting recard 2026-03.05 Page 1 of 4
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Page 19, Lines 26 - 29

Because of my Condition, | was unable to provide a correct answer, namely that on that visit to
the house, there was no statements provided and nobody signed any statements. This cnly took
place on the next visit to the Sable Hills Estate Manager’s office, based on Information obtained
during the first visit, and after the first visit by phone,

Page 22, Lines 15 - 31

Again, because of my Condition, | was rambling and unable to give a proper answer. The fact is,
that the NPA’s own prosecutorial code, makes it clear that an accused person, should be
permitted to give his or her version of events, normally, by way of what is known as a “Warning
Statement”, If that had of been complied with in February, prior to the issue of an Arrest Warrant,
I would have been quickly able to rebut the false allegations, by providing exculpatory evidence
in the form of copies of the voice recordings and transcripts.

Of course that would not have worked for the Mabula Team from the North West, as they knew
they had fabricated the avidence they used to obtain the arrest warrants.

It later became clear, we had to be arrested, at all costs, so as to completely disrupt the Phahlane
investigation by IPID. | would also have pointed out that the High Court Application was issued
on 07 February, the Warrant of Arrest was unlawfully obtained on 08 February, yet only executad
on a Friday afternoon, after 16h00, so as obtain maximum levels of intimidation.

Page 24, Lines 18 - 20

My condition prevented me from explaining that IPID had a search and seizure warrant, for a raid
they carried out in either December or January. | would have also stated that | was nowhere near
the place. In fact, as | have already stated, | was only ever at Sable Hills Estate twice, and neither
time was | in Phahlane’s house.

Page 28, Line 11

My Condition prevented me from pointing out that there is a Cullinan Police Station, and it has
been there for a very long time. The Cullinan Premier mine opened in 1902, and the police station
was built in 1905. The current station can be seen on Google Maps, so it is not true that there is
no Cullinan Police Station: ttps://maps.app.goo.gl/SbhYKVCACrrPgNZP6 By this stage | was
totally confused and was pretty much agreeing to anything.

Page 30, Lines 16 - 25

Adv Mkhize made what seemed to be a statement of fact, concerning my phone, except it was
incorrect. She incorrectly states that my phone was “taken on your person whilst you were being
arrested.” She follows this up with another question, leaving the incorrect statement on the
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record. Were it not for my condition, | would have quickly pointed out that Adv Mkhize's
statement was wrong, and that the video evidence, which was available to be viewed, but for
reasons unknown to me, was not viewed, would have readily proved that | was unlawfully
brought back to the property one hour and forty minutes after my unlawful arrest, so that they
could unlawfully enter my employer's property, and take my phone, without any search warrant.

Page 35, Lines 9-10

My Condition again allowed me to make a false admission, where it appears that | admit to going
into General Phahlane’s house with IPID. | repeat | have never ever, been inside General
Phahlane's house, | have been to Sable Hills Ectate only twica and bother times, at the Estate
Manager's office.

Page 35, Lines 22 - 27

I was totally confused here, because of my condition and failed to pick up that Ms Sokanyile was
making it sound as if | was requesting assistance from IPID, when in fact it was the other way
round, IPID were requesting assistance from Mr O'Sullivan and | went along in case | was needed.

Page 36, Lines7-9

| again wrongly admit going to Mr Phahlane’s house. | repeat | have never, in my life, been to Mr
Phahlane’s house.

Page 36, Lines 16— 17

| again wrongly admit to being in Mr Phahlane’s house. | repeat | have never, in my life, been In
Mr Phahlane’s house.

Page 37, Lines 11 -13

My Condition prevented me from correctly articulating that | had already provided the tape
recordings and transcripts to the IPID members, soon after same were made.

Page 39, Lines 7 - 10
This is further evidence of the fact that | was totally confused as a result of my condition.

Page 39, Lines 16 - 22

ARNEXURE ‘A" Comemenmtary on meeting record 2026-03-05 Page 3 of 4
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This is further evidence of the fact that | was totally confused as a result of my condition, | was
simply unable to give a coherent answer. What | should have answered, which would have been
the correct answer, is that Paragraph 18 (4) (b} of the National Credit Act Regulations, States: -
(4) The prescribed purposes, other than for purposes contemplated in the Act, for which a report
may be Issued in terms of section 70(2)(g), are:

(o) an investigation into fraud, corruption or theft, provided thot the South African Police Service
or any other stotutory enforcement agency conducts such an investigation;

(b) fraud detection and fraud prevention services;

I only ever accessed data in terms of said regulations.

Page 43, Lines 5-12

This is further evidence of the fact that | was totally confused as a result of my condition. The
correct answer | should have given is that, in 2018, when Mr O'Sullivan invited me to litigate
against the police and those that abducted me, | declined. The reason | declined, | informed him
at the time, was because | simply could not bring myself to re-live the events of February 2017,
as it had caused me too much trauma.

Although | stop at Page 43, | do so because | have made the following three important points: -
1. | was suffering so badly from PTSD.

2. Certain members of the ad-hoc committee had already recognised that | was suffering, in
particular Mr Malema, who stated “Was the Witness fit ond proper to appear before us?
Was she in the right mental status to appear from us? From time to time, she breaks down.
This Is the second time. She is doing it again now.” And Mr Klopper who stated “/s Ms
Trent fit and proper to continue?”

3. That during my testimony, and because of my Condition, | was not able to give full and
proper answers, as provided for in the relevant legislation.

If | was to continue commentary after page 43, through to page 121, there would be many more

examples, of where my testimony was incorrect, purely as a result of Condition and my state of
confusion.

ANNEXURE ‘A’ Commentary an meethg record 2026-03-05 Pagedofd
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ANNEXURE ‘B’
MEETING RECORD - SARAH-JANE TRENT 2026-03-05

https://pmg.org.za/committee-meeting/42519/

Ms Sarah-Jane Trent appeared before the Committee.
Adv Mkhize: Ms Trent, do you have your statement in front of you?
Ms Sarah-Jane Trent (Witness): Yes, | do.

Adv Mkhize: Could you please tell the Committee about your current professional standing,
including the affiliations that you have? It is just basically paragraph 1 of your statement.

Ms Trent: | am an attorney on the non-practising role, which means | do not act for anyone in
court or practice. | am a certified fraud examiner in good standing with the AFE. | have my own
business. | am a sole director of SJ Trent Pty Ltd.

Adv Mkhize: When did you start your own business?
Ms Trent: 10 May 2023.
Adv Mkhize: What does your business do?

Ms Trent: | provide services as a certified fraud examiner, which is if a client comes and they have
got an issue with fraud, theft, legal issues where they need someone to look into it and see if
there is any relevance or prima facie if they have a prima facie case. For example, a client in a
civil case wants to know whether it is reasonable to go to court to continue suing someone, but
they want to know do they have the funds, or if you suspect that they are laundering money in
order to evade, | would then have a look and investigate that and give them an opinion of
whether they have a case or not.

Adv Mkhize: That is sufficient. From paragraph 3 all the way to paragraph 6, you set out your
educational background. At paragraph 3, you say you matriculated in 2002 and you attach your
curriculum vitae (CV). Is that the most updated CV that you have attached?

Ms Trent: Yes, it is.

Adv Mkhize: In 2003, you would have been studying. You completed a marketing degree from
Stellenbosch College.

Ms Trent: No, it was not a degree. | passed 16 subjects. It was basically a 16-subject merit
certificate.

Adv Mkhize: It is equivalent to a diploma.

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 1 of 121
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Ms Trent: Possibly. That is why | put merit certificate instead of diploma because it is technically
not.

Adv Mkhize: Then you subsequently studied toward your law degree. You obtained that in 2013.
Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: What | should do, just for the sake of completion, is at paragraph 7, you detail the
various certificates that you obtained after obtaining your LLB degree. Then you became a
certified fraud examiner, which you have somewhat explained. It deals with what you do in your
current business.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: Then you have also done the usual courses that are done as a person who is doing
articles to become an attorney.

Ms Trent: | think they have brought in this new rule where all advocates and attorneys have to
do this course. This is what this is. When | was an article clerk, | did, | think it is, legal practical
training.

Adv Mkhize: Then finally, you say that in April, you completed a course in evidence for decisions
from Harvard Kennedy School.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: Then we are now at paragraph eight of your statement. That deals with your career
background. You started working in 2008 and you did various jobs from 2008 up until 2011 when
you then officially started your articles.

Ms Trent: Correct. | went to a law firm.
Adv Mkhize: You say that at paragraph 8.3 that you were working while you were studying.
Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: From paragraph 8.3, you say that in July, you joined John Walker Attorneys to assist
with the Pamodzi Group. Can you explain what your role was there and how did that role turn
into your training?

Ms Trent: John Walker Attorneys, the law firm, acted for the liquidators of the company. |
apologise. There was the insolvency issue and liquidation of Pamodzi Gold and they needed
someone to do quite a bit of the grunt work, carrying files, going through information and sorting
it out. | had the online interview, | think it was on the Wednesday, and | was on a plane the next
day. It sounded like a really good opportunity. It started off in the enquiry. You have all the bank
statements and my principal, John Walker, said, ‘Make this make sense’, and that is what | did. |

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 2 of 121



10

15

20

25

30

35

followed the money, in a sense, and that is, | think, where | got that hunger to investigate or look
into things more than the legal work in a law firm.

Adv Mkhize: Then you subsequently did your articles.

Ms Trent: Yes, then John Walker offered me to do articles with him and to stay on, and that is
what | did. Then | did two years there.

Adv Mkhize: When did you leave?
Ms Trent: | know it was around 7-8 April 2014.

Adv Mkhize: You have been invited to give evidence in respect of your time that you spent at Paul
O'Sullivan and Associates. In paragraph 12, you set out the basis of the invitation. Would you like
to read that into the record?

Ms Trent: “The Ad Hoc Committee has requested me to provide evidence in relation to issues
and allegations raised by General Phahlane in his testimony before the enquiry and those that
allegedly implicate Mr QO'Sullivan, by virtue of having been an employee at Forensics for Justice.
| am informed by the Evidence Leaders that, in his evidence, Mr Phahlane informed this
Committee that | accompanied Mr O'Sullivan and IPID investigators to his Sable Hills home in
2017. As a result, this led to the allegations that IPID had been infiltrated by Mr Paul O’Sullivan
and by extension, by me, who also accompanied him to Mr Phahlane’s Sable Hills home.”

Adv Mkhize: That provides context as to why you are here. Now | would like to take you back to
8.4 of your statement and we will start from there. So at paragraph 8.4 you say that from
February 2015 you assisted Paul O’Sullivan on a pro bono basis for Forensics for Justice NPC, |
think. How did you meet Mr Paul O’Sullivan?

Ms Trent: So | sent him my CV. | think it would have been maybe three days prior or four days
prior. | thought what have | got to lose? | am interested in investigations. Someone suggested to
me ‘Why do you not just send your CV?

Adv Mkhize: So at this point you had completed your articles. Were you working or were you just
seeking new employment?

Ms Trent: | completely forgot to add one place that | worked. It is not in my affidavit but it was
not for very long, so | completely forgot to add it in. Apologies.

Adv Mkhize: It is okay. Sarah, we can make that amendment. Where we are now is at paragraph
8.4 of your statement and we are dealing with your employment in 2015 at Paul O’Sullivan and
Associates and the question that | have just put to you is if you could just tell the Committee how
did you meet Mr Paul O’Sullivan. You can just take a step by step on how you met him and how
you got to work for him.
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Ms Trent: Okay. | sent him my CV and | cannot remember exactly what was in the email and his
personal assistant (PA) gave me a ring.

Adv Mkhize: Who was his PA?
Ms Trent: Gagina.
Adv Mkhize: Did you know Paul O’Sullivan before? How did you contact him?

Ms Trent: | had had coffee with a friend of mine and | was saying, ‘You know, | really like
investigating. In a law firm, | do not think it was a good fit for me’, and she said, ‘Well, why do
you not send your CV to Paul O’Sullivan?’ At the time, | did not have a job and doing free online
courses in a coffee shop so | thought, ‘Well, I have got nothing to lose’. His PA called me and said,
‘Can you come on Saturday morning and meet Paul?’ And so | did. He said, well, he is not looking
to employ anybody but he does have certain pro bono work that he does so he would, sort of, if
he needed me to do anything, he would pay me an hourly rate. | did not work from the office. It
would be from home and then | would send him what | had done and the hours that | had done.

Adv Mkhize: Did you join him immediately after you met him that Saturday?
Ms Trent: No.

Adv Mkhize: Were you meeting him for the first time?

Ms Trent: | had met him for the first time.

Adv Mkhize: When did you join after that first meeting on the Saturday?

Ms Trent: If it was the Saturday, then we had another meeting the next day on the Sunday. |
cannot recall exactly, but it would have probably been a briefing on what | would do. The
Monday, | think, was the 2nd of February, and so | had what | needed to do. | think at some point
| went to the office either that Monday or that week to meet the staff and be introduced. | did
not go into the office every day or anything.

Adv Mkhize: Please describe the work that you then undertook for his organisation and its
mission and what it basically stood for. That you can find where we are now is at 8.4 of your
statement.

Ms Trent: Basically, over the years, and as | sort of saw what was happening, we saw a lot of what
happened in corruption in the criminal justice system, so we would open cases and try as much
as possible to expose it and | guess get people to do something about it.

Adv Mkhize: If we take it line by line, it is your statement at 8.4. You say that you did work for
him on an ad hoc basis. So does that mean that you did not have a permanent contract to work
for him?

Ms Trent: Sorry. Are you talking about from 2 February?
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Adv Mkhize: | am still at your statement at paragraph 8.4. You can read it in.

Ms Trent: That would be much better. “On 2 February 2015, Paul O'Sullivan used my services on
an ad hoc basis to assist him with some of his pro bono work which he did under Forensics for
Justice NPO, a non-profit organisation that identified elements of the criminal justice system that
had been captured by criminals or politically corrupt individuals that serve unconstitutional
agendas with the aim to protect connected criminals from corruption charges. Through the use
of forensic investigative methods, Forensics for Justice is able to expose corruption and those
who act corruptly, promoting transparency and accountability and inevitably protect[ing] scarce
public resources.”

Adv Mkhize: What were your responsibilities?
Ms Trent: For Forensics for Justice?
Adv Mkhize: Yes.

Ms Trent: Each case would come about in different ways. So either you would have a
whistleblower that came to sit with Mr O'Sullivan and he would listen to what they say and if
they have documents, he would have a look and see [if] this [is] something that we can put
together or expose or open a case. That is sort of how it would come about. It would generally
be on something that we already had where there would be someone that had come and given
something.

Adv Mkhize: You can give an example. What typically did you work on? You said you worked on
an ad hoc basis for Forensics for Justice.

Ms Trent: | understand but remember | did Forensics for Justice. This ad hoc work was from 2
February to until May and then | was employed at Paul O'Sullivan. | am just getting confused, if
you will just bear with me.

Adv Mkhize: So on 2 February, when you joined on an ad hoc basis, which entity were you doing
work on an ad hoc basis?

Ms Trent: That would have been for Paul O'Sullivan and Associates.

Adv Mkhize: In your statement, you say you did services on an ad hoc basis to assist Paul with
pro bono work which he did under Forensics for Justice. So you have read that into your
statement.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: My question is just typically what kind of work did you do? If you can give the
Committee an example of what work was being done by you on an ad hoc basis for Forensics for
Justice.

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 5 of 121



10

15

20

25

30

35

Ms Trent: | think at that time it would have been research, because | was not able to access
certain things so it would have been research or putting things into a spreadsheet or something
like that.

Adv Mkhize: We are now at [paragraph] 8.5 of your statement. You then subsequently on 1 May
2015 officially joined Paul O'Sullivan and Associates. Is it fair to say that what you had been doing
earlier for the first three months was perhaps a probation of sort[s]?

Ms Trent: Yes, | would say that.

Adv Mkhize: So then when you joined Paul O'Sullivan and Associates Pty Ltd, what sort of work
were you doing there? Just typically give us an assignment that Paul O'Sullivan and Associates
would do and if you could also make a distinction between the work that was being done by Paul
O'Sullivan and Associates versus what was being done at Forensics for Justice.

Ms Trent: There were two other directors at Paul O'Sullivan and Associates who were running
their own project so to speak. | was sort of at if they needed anything then they could ask me. So
it would be research or putting a document together. It was almost like a candidate attorney kind
of a job. And then on the Forensics for Justice it would have been the same thing, so if | was asked
to do something. | did not have my own case or anything like that. It was [to] research this or put
a file note together. | do not even think | sat in meetings at that point.

Adv Mkhize: You were already a certified fraud examiner, correct?
Ms Trent: On the 1st of May 2015?

Adv Mkhize: Yes.

Ms Trent: No.

Adv Mkhize: You were not?

Ms Trent: No.

Adv Mkhize: You testified that you were interested in forensic work and your friend told you
about Paul O'Sullivan and Associates because you had already been doing fraud like that kind of
work. Had you received a certificate? Had you done the course?

Ms Trent: No, | just found it more interesting and it was something that sort of stimulated my
brain a bit more. | cannot really explain it.

Adv Mkhize: So at that point essentially you had joined without having done the exam yet and
you were basically doing work on an ad hoc basis similar to a candidate attorney, whatever was
required in the firm, research you would basically take care of it? What was your specific role?

Ms Trent: It is all in my affidavit. It was legal researcher was the title that | was given there.
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Adv Mkhize: So because you make a distinction between these two entities your monthly salary,
once you became permanent, who was it paid by?

Ms Trent: Paul O'Sullivan and Associates.

Adv Mkhize: And the work for Forensics for Justice was purely pro bono?
Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: Did you have to record your hours?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: And then on the 31st of March — we are now at 8.6 — you say that you became a
director.

Ms Trent: Of Forensics for Justice?
Adv Mkhize: Yes.
Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: So how did that move happen from you having been doing work on a pro bono basis
for Forensics for Justice and then you became a director a few years later?

Ms Trent: Paul O'Sullivan asked me if | would like to become a director of Forensics for Justice
and Paul O'Sullivan and Associates and | accepted. | had been there for six years so | did not see
any issue.

Adv Mkhize: We can now move on to the business of the day which is why the Committee has
invited you to come and give evidence. We are now at paragraph 17. You stated that the
Committee has called you because of the work that you were doing whilst you were at Paul
O'Sullivan and Associates, particularly the investigations that you conducted regarding Mr
Phahlane’s Sable Hills home. You remember that?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: Mr Phahlane testified regarding your accompanying Mr O'Sullivan and IPID
investigators to his home. In what capacity did you attend General Phahlane’s home?

Ms Trent: As Sarah-Jan Trent employed by Paul O'Sullivan and Associates. That is the capacity |
went.

Adv Mkhize: And what was the purpose of the visit?

Ms Trent: The matter was opened and the late Mandla Mahlangu and Timane Binang were
investigators. Usually what we do is just brief an investigating officer on a matter. We just went
to show the house or the scene of the crime which was the house because that was basically the
crux of the corruption allegation.
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Adv Mkhize: If you look at paragraph 17 of your statement you say that some of the work that
you were doing at Paul O'Sullivan and Associates included forensic investigations, compiling
criminal dockets, forensic reports, advice on evidence and assisting branches of criminal justice
system in investigations, providing litigation and support in fraud detection and prevention
services.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: Now that is a mouthful so we need to break that down. And the question that | have
asked you was in relation to the work that you were doing at the time at Paul O'Sullivan and
Associates. One of the projects that you were doing was assisting IPID in its investigations and
particularly into General Phahlane. At paragraph 18 it is headed “Investigations into the previous
Acting Commissioner, Police General Phahlane.”

Ms Trent: Correct.
Adv Mkhize: If you could read paragraph 18.

Ms Trent: “On 9 November 2016, Paul O'Sullivan and | met with two IPID officers. The late Mandla
Mahlangu and Timane Binang, had requested our assistance in the initial stages of this
investigation. | was satisfied that in terms of the Independent Police Investigative Directorate,
Act 1 of 2011, the IPID Act, they were entitled to receive assistance in their investigations and
were entitled to provide this assistance at their request. This included informing them if and
when we had any new information, carrying out forensic report checks on persons of interest,
desktop research, and consulting from time to time.”

Adv Mkhize: If you can just perhaps pause there and then now | will take it step by step, now that
you have remembered what you said at that stage. So earlier in paragraph 17, you tell us that
you were assisting various branches of the criminal justice system. Which branches particularly
were you assisting?

Ms Trent: So if | can explain, so when we assist a client or in a pro bono matter, we open a docket.
And if there are certain people that we think might have information or a witness, we will give
them a call and say, ‘Look, we are investigating this’, or we will have people come to us and open
the docket with the police. And then you get obviously a crime administration system (CAS)
number and an investigating officer is then appointed to the case. We then contact them. If it is
a client, we will say we have been mandated to do this, ‘please let us know if there is anything
you need from us.” And the same thing with the Forensics for Justice work. It would offer
assistance, but not guide them.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, so you did work for the NPA. Which other government or law enforcement
entity did you do work for?

Ms Trent: So | did not say we did work for the NPA, we offered. We said, ‘Look, we are certified
fraud examiners, we were mandated to open this matter for a client, as Forensics for Justice.
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Please let us know these are the services that we do normally provide. We know that the state is
under-resourced.’

Adv Mkhize: Okay, while still on that example, on the NPA, not that you did work for them, you
would assist them. So you introduced yourselves as an entity that does forensic investigations.
What came out of that introduction with the NPA? Did you have to assist them in any operations?

Ms Trent: No, so this is quite literally what we would do. | would call them up or send an email
and say, ‘Hi there’, if it is a client, ‘We are mandated by the complainant to assist in the
investigation up until the time we need to open the docket. We are certified fraud examiners,
and if you need any assistance, please let us know.” That is pretty much exactly what we would
say.

Adv Mkhize: Let us work on an example, taking it step by step. So you would then approach the
NPA and say to the NPA, ‘We offer these services, we have a client.’

Ms Trent: No, no. Quite literally, ‘Hi. We have assisted a client as Forensics for Justice, to open a
matter. We have the capacity to do these things as certified fraud examiners. If you need anything
or feel it is appropriate to ask, please let us know. Here is our card.’ It was not ‘we want to run
the case.’

Adv Mkhize: | am not insinuating that. | am just trying to run with your evidence, as you said. If
we can just park at the example of the NPA. You testified that you would approach the NPA, and
if | can read your words verbatim, “We have assisted a client to open a matter. We have capacity,
and if it is appropriate, please let us know how we can assist.” The next question | have for you
is what would then come out of that offer?

Ms Trent: Nothing.

Adv Mkhize: Just on the NPA, because | want us to just use the one example, | am going to go to
the next one afterwards. So on the NPA, what would the NPA then say as a response? So while
you think about it, this is all in line with what you have said at the previous paragraph, that you
were assisting branches of the criminal justice system. And so the statement is quite vague, and
it does not actually [provide] detail. | am just asking about that. If you can just give examples of
the branches of the criminal justice system that you assisted in investigations.

Ms Trent: That is basically what would happen, but usually with the NPA, | mean, they do not
need any assistance. And it was not every case. | will give the example of Phahlane. | do not even
know who the prosecutor would be.

Adv Mkhize: So who was investigating General Phahlane?
Ms Trent: IPID.

Adv Mkhize: If you can assist the Committee on your roles and responsibilities entailed within
Paul O'Sullivan & Associates. So if you could then maybe flesh out for us what is it that you were
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doing. But the question is more linked to assisting branches of criminal justice system and
investigations. You can tell us what you mean by that.

Ms Trent: There is nothing really more. It would basically, literally assist a client in putting
together a criminal complaint. We would then assist them in opening a criminal case. Either the
client or we would, depending, get the CAS number. They would then get an investigating officer
and would communicate with the investigating officer.

Adv Mkhize: Maybe you can just list them without giving examples then. You can just list the
different branches of the criminal justice system that you assisted.

Ms Trent: So SAPS, IPID, and then the NPA. But | mean that was like really nothing.

Adv Mkhize: So those are the only branches of the criminal justice system that you were referring
to in that paragraph?

Ms Trent: As far as | can recall.

Adv Mkhize: Miss Trent, your statement together with your oral evidence, together with your
oral submissions, form part of your evidence. So what you may have left out, as you will see, the
Committee Members will also invite questions of clarity where it is unclear and all we are doing
is going through your statement paragraph by paragraph and you have a moment now to explain
to the Committee what it is that you mean. So it does not really matter that it is not in here. You
can now tell us in evidence.

Ms Trent: | do not know if it is appropriate to ask. | forgot to add one place that | worked as well
before | went to Paul O’Sullivan and Associates. It is in my CV.

Adv Mkhize: Yes, you have mentioned it.
Ms Trent: Did I?

Adv Mkhize: Yes. Now, we are past that stage, we are now at the stage where you are working
for Paul O’Sullivan and Associates. Okay, if we can then go to paragraph 18. At paragraph 18, you
talk about the investigations into the previous acting commissioner of police, General Phahlane.
You have read the statement into the record, so if | can just maybe ask specific questions. Could
you recount how Paul O’Sullivan and you became involved in IPID investigations?

Ms Trent: Well, this was a criminal complaint made with IPID.
Adv Mkhize: By whom?

Ms Trent: By Mr O'Sullivan. He laid that complaint; a rather serious complaint against the head
of police for South Africa, for the nation. And this was in November 2016.

Adv Mkhize: What type of assistance did you provide at IPID's request?
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Ms Trent: | did a lot of desktop research. It would be a sort of a file note on media articles or
social media things or go on Twitter and see what is happening, and | would then send it. And
then certain searches. So if they were doing an investigation and it led to something, | would do
that.

Adv Mkhize: From whom did this request come?
Ms Trent: So it would come from one of the investigators.

Adv Mkhize: How did you meet? How did you get into IPID? That is the question | asked when we
started. How did Paul O’Sullivan & Associates get to be involved with IPID?

Ms Trent: In February 2016, Paul O’Sullivan, under the auspices of Forensics for Justice, gave a
complaint to IPID. | was involved in some of the interview[s] with the whistleblowers and that. |
believe nothing happened at that time. And when Mr McBride got back to IPID as the executive
director (ED), | went to meet an investigator that he had appointed, the late Mandla Mahlangu.

Adv Mkhize: Before you met Mandla Mahlangu, how did it come about that you knew that Mr
McBride had not been at IPID and he now was back at IPID? | just want you to tell the story of
how Forensics for Justice or Paul O’Sullivan & Associates get involved at IPID? How did you meet?

Ms Trent: Can | ask a favour? We go in bite sizes because it is quite a long story. When Mr McBride
was back and knowing that he had a reputation for being against corruption, Mr O'Sullivan said
that | should give Mr McBride a call and ask if we can chat to him about our docket against Mr
Phahlane. And he said, ‘No problem. You can meet the investigating officer.’

Adv Mkhize: So it is Mr O'Sullivan who introduced you to Mr McBride. Did he know him prior to
asking you to call him?

Ms Trent: He knew him, but | do not know for how long or what the relationship was.

Adv Mkhize: So you then called him when he was back to basically get to assist in the
investigations of General Phahlane?

Ms Trent: Correct. Look, it was, | would say, a bit of a complicated matter. So what we usually
like to do is meet with the investigating officer and go through what we have done and put itin
the docket when we have opened the docket. So we will go through the statement and the
evidence and everything and sort of brief them on it.

Adv Mkhize: You called Mr McBride and what happened next? Did he invite you for a meeting?

Ms Trent: | do not remember how | got to the meeting. | just remember | went there and he said,
‘This is Mandla Mahlangu. He is going to be leading the investigation.” ‘Hi. Nice to meet you.” Mr
O’Sullivan was not there.

Adv Mkhize: So that is how you would have met Mr Mahlangu. What was Mr Mahlangu at IPID?
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Ms Trent: | do not know that they have ranks or anything like that, but he was a senior
investigator.

Adv Mkhize: So in your statement at the end of paragraph 18, you say “l was satisfied that in
terms of the Independent Police Investigative Directorate, Act 1 of 2011, they were entitled to
receive assistance in their investigations and were entitled to provide this assistance at their
request.” In terms of which provision exactly?

Ms Trent: Yes, this section. “The functions and investigative powers, Section 24 (1). An
investigator may, subject to the control and direction of the executive director or relevant
provincial head, exercise such powers and must perform such duties as are conferred or imposed
upon him or by, or her by or under this Act or any other law and must obey all lawful directions
which he or she may from time to time receive from a person having the authority to give such
directions under this Act. 3(a), “for the purposes of conducting an investigation an investigator
may direct any person to submit an affidavit or a firm declaration or to appear before him or her
to give evidence or to produce any document in that person's possession or under his or her
control which has a bearing on the matter being investigated and may question such person
thereon.” 3(b), “an investigator or any person duly authorised thereto by him or her may request
an explanation from any person whom he or she reasonably suspects of having information which
has a bearing on a matter being or to be investigated.”

Adv Mkhize: So Miss Trent are you basically testifying that you are relying on Section 24
(2)(3)(4),for being able to assist a law enforcing agency?

Ms Trent: Correct, at their request.
Adv Mkhize: And it is all those provisions that you rely on?

Ms James: | would just like to get clarity. These provisions that you reference here, are they not
for IPID?

Ms Trent: Yes, this is the IPID Act.
Ms James: And this forms the basis of the work you do?
Ms Trent: No, it is that they can request assistance from us.

Adv Mkhize: Basically what the question is, Miss Trent, if | can assist Hon James, is that you have
said in your statement in paragraph 18 that you rely on these provisions for the basis of assisting
IPID and the question is, which provision exactly do you rely on and why is it applicable to you or
to Paul O'Sullivan Associates to be able to assist in IPID work? Can we perhaps continue and then
give the Witness an opportunity once she has had time to think about it?

Ms James: | am fine with that. Let us move on.
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Mr Malema: No, we are not moving on. She must point in this thing that she has attached here
where they say IPID can ask for assistance. This was attached by her after reading it and after
being a non-practising — she told us [she] is that. She should know how you quote the law. She
must go to where it helps here, because there is no such a thing here.

Chairperson: Are you able to respond to the question?

Ms Trent: | am unable to concentrate. Yes, so basically what this means is that if they need
assistance, they can ask anyone to assist.

Adv Mkhize: At 3(b), Ms Trent, it reads that “An investigator or any person duly authorised
thereto by him or her may request an explanation from any person whom he or she reasonably
suspects of having information which has a bearing on a matter being to be investigated.”

Ms Trent: Correct.
Adv Mkhize: Would you like to expand on that?

Ms Trent: So basically my understanding is that if they need assistance in something they can ask
for it lawfully and they were allowed to do so. There was no issue with that.

Adv Mkhize: Perhaps it will become apparent as we move on.

Mr Malema: | want us to agree with the Witness that what she has quoted here is not helping
what she is saying. She says they can ask for help legally and all of that — it is a matter we can
debate. But in terms of what she is quoting here, there is no such a thing. She has to agree that
this quotation is not saying what she is saying, but that legally they can ask for assistance. As Adv
Mkhize is saying, as we go along it will become apparent that they can ask for such a thing. But
where we are now 24 (1), (3)(a), (3)(b) and (4), there is no relevance to what she is saying and
she needs to concede that before we proceed.

Chairperson: She does not have an answer to the question.
Mr Malema: Ask her if she agrees with me that this does not speak to what she is saying.
Ms Trent: | disagree, but | think it would probably be up to you to decide at the end of the day.

Mr Malema: Quote where it says what you are saying. The purpose of cutting this thing and
putting it in your affidavit was precisely to make reference to it. Refer to where it says what you
are saying.

Chairperson: What the Hon Member is saying is that this Committee is not dealing with facts, it
is dealing with evidence. It is a fact that IPID may ask for assistance, but where is the evidence in
law that provides for that fact, or that substantiates. If you say you went to IPID because they
have requested you to assist, the Hon Members are saying IPID is a government institution
regulated by law. There is national legislation that regulates the operations of IPID, including it
as an organ of state. So where is the provision in national legislation? That is what they want to
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hear from you. If it is not on the document but you know it is Section 26 (7), refer them to that
provision.

Ms James: Ms Trent is unable to answer. Let us move on.

Mr Nqola: | think Section 24 of the IPID is irrelevant to the point. Even (3)(b) that she is relying
on is also irrelevant, but we can expand [on] that when it is our turn to ask questions.

Chairperson: Before we proceed, can she concede that she does not have a provision in law to
back the fact or the statement that she made here?

Adv Mkhize: Ms Trent, what the Chairperson is asking you is at paragraph 18, you say that you
were “satisfied”. You say, “I was satisfied that in terms of the Independent Police Investigative
Directorate Act that they...”when you say “they” you mean Mahlangu and Binang, those are the
investigators from IPID. You say “they were entitled to receive assistance in their investigations
and were entitled to provide this assistance they request”. My understanding of this paragraph
is that you are saying you, once you met with Mr Mahlangu, you satisfied yourself that you were
able to assist with the work of investigations that they were doing as investigators at IPID. And
for that you rely on the provisions that you have pasted at page 9 of your affidavit. Now what the
Chairperson and the two Hon Members have put to you is which provisions do you rely on for
the basis of being able to do these investigations based on the provisions you have set out at
page 9. There are four different sections that you set out. Is there any specific one that you
remember right now, or would you like to deal with that as we go along or are you conceding
that these provisions do not apply to you?

Ms Trent: As | understand this is that if one of the IPID investigators requested assistance that it
would be lawful and that we would be able to give assistance. | interpreted from 3(a)... | do not
know what you want me to say?

Adv Mkhize: No, no, no. It is your testimony, Ms Trent. | do not wish to tell you what to say. There
is no specific answer | am looking for. You are answering to the two Hon Members that have
posed a question to you. It is a question of clarity. They are trying to get clarification on whether
you still rely on these provisions for the work that Paul O’Sullivan and Associates conducted with
IPID. Are these the provisions that you rely on?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: So if you say you rely on these provisions, which ones?
Ms Trent: What | put down here.

Adv Mkhize: Would you like to expand?

Ms Trent: | can [but] | just need you to guide me.
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Mr Malema: | am asking a specific question. | am saying to you go straight where this Act says
that. It is very specific. You just say to me 3 (a) or whatever and then you read it out.

Ms Trent: 3(b), “An investigator or any person duly authorised thereto by him or her may request
an explanation from any person who he or she reasonably suspects of having information which
has a bearing on a matter being or to be investigated.”

Mr Malema: IPID does not suspect that you have got any information of any sort. You are saying
they asked you to assist them. This speaks about speaking to any person who might have
information or anything of that sort. You were asked by IPID to assist them in their investigation.
Which law gives IPID such power to go to a private institution to help them with investigation?

Ms Trent: | understand your question now. It was purely on not to assist the entire investigation
at all. It was would you be able to do some desktop research on this or do a search on this person
of interest or whatever, but it was not assisting in the entire investigation. By the time it got to
IPID there were witness statements [and] evidence that was already there, so when it got to IPID
that was the work that had been done by Forensics for Justice. We said ‘Look we have got
resources, please use them if you need.” We did not run an investigation with them.

Mr Malema: So you never assisted IPID with any investigation? They have never asked you to
assist them with any investigation?

Ms Trent: No, they have. | am not saying we did not assist, | am saying in the entire investigation
| was not sitting with them and going through everything. It was if they came across something
where they needed a search on something or something like that, then they would ask me. It was
not as if we were investigating with them. If | am making sense?

Mr Nomvalo: | was going to say that maybe the Witness is failing to adequately explain the kind
of assistance that was requested from them because | understand the frustration of Hon
Members that the Act, in particular section 24 (b) talks about an explanation that can be
requested by an investigator to a person whom they believe to be in possession of a certain
information. Now, the impression that has been given by the witness is that they were requested
to assist the investigation, whereas there is no provision in the Act to that effect. The only
provision is a provision requesting for an explanation. So | just wanted to say [that] maybe the
Witness must clarify what kind of assistance was requested from you by the investigator.

Ms Trent: If | needed to run a search, so if something came up in the investigation for example a
company...

Mr Nomvalo: No, let us not be all over the place. Here you are approached by Mr Mahlangu and
Mr Binang, and then they say they want you to assist them in carrying out an investigation. What
did they specify? | am trying to assist you here. Did they specify that ‘We want you to assist us on
A,B,C,D,E’? If they did, what did they say?

Ms Trent: Okay, so should | start from the beginning where, for example, the house?
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Mr Nomvalo:No, no, no, | just want us to focus on the request. What is it that they wanted you
to assist them on?

Ms Trent: Not a lot. For example, they carried out the investigation. When Mandla Mahlangu got
the docket — | think it is called an enquiry at IPID — they then go through it. We went through it
with them. | think Mr O'Sullivan would have said “This is the house. | have had a look at the house.
Let us go and | will show you. You should speak to the estate manager. | have been there before.

Mr Nomvalo: The assistance went to that extent?
Ms Trent: So | think in the first week.

Mr Nomvalo: It was not a once-off assistance? You were not called to come and clarify
something? They wanted to work the investigation with you?

Ms Trent: Oh, no, no. So in the complaint to IPID that was made, there was a Google Earth history
analysis on the property and the extent of when it was built and there was...

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, | do not want to eat on her time. Let me close it like this. They did not call
you to give an explanation?

Ms Trent: This was pretty much...

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, but accompanying them is not giving them an explanation. You are assisting
them when you accompany them to a particular address.

Ms Trent: | am not sure | agree.

Mr Nqgola: There is nowhere in the Act where it talks about “assistance” as you allege. Hence,
Hon Nomvalo is expressly taking you to “explanation”, because the Act speaks about
“explanation”, not “assistance”. | think we must implore you to calm down. | am worried that you
are a bit nervous and it makes it very difficult for us to get the... Chair, can we take at least five
minutes break to calm down? | am worried that we would not be able to extract evidence from
a witness this nervous. So if we can cool down a little bit, Chair.

Adv Mkhize: | will accompany the Witness.
The Committee adjourned for a short break.

Adv Mkhize: Chairperson, the suggestion is that the Witness perhaps takes the evidence in a
themed manner, so she will just tell a story [on] work that they did regarding General Phahlane.
She will give oral evidence in essence, without relying on the statement.

Ms Sangoni: Ms Trent, do you own that statement?

Ms Trent: | do.
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Mr Malema: At the end of the day, we must answer the question: Was the Witness fit and proper
to appear before us? Was she in the right mental status to appear from us? From time to time,
she breaks down. This is the second time. She is doing it again now. It is something that you can
blame it at her.

Mr Klopper: Is Ms Trent fit and proper to continue? | think there was a witness, Mr Nkabinde, he
was sent back to revise his statement and he continued with his testimony.

Mr Skosana: Ms Trent, are you fit and proper to be able to go through this submission which you
gave us?

Ms Trent: Do you mean psychologically?

Mr Skosana: In whatever way.

Ms Trent: | thought | was.

Chairperson: We cannot expect anybody to respond to such questions in public.

Adv Norman Arendse (Evidence Leader): We just got a request from Ms Trent’s attorney to have
a word with her, if it is possible?

Mr Skosana: Chairperson, | suggest that the Witness is led and Members only ask questions
during question time.

Chairperson: That attorney does not have locus standi here. | am going to try the suggestion that
Hon Skosana made.

Adv Mkhize: Ms Trent, we are at paragraph 19 of your affidavit. You say that you accompanied
IPID investigators to Sable Hills. Please describe the circumstances of that visit.

Ms Trent: Mr O’Sullivan and | drove in Mr O’Sullivan's car outside the Sable Hills estate where we
met with the late Mandla Mahlangu. | think for the first meeting, Mr Timane Binang was there,
as far as | recall. And they were in a vehicle with only two seats. And then Paul said to Mr
Mahlangu, ‘You can drive in my car, we can all fit into one car.’

Adv Mkhize: What car? So you, Paul, and the two investigators travelled in...
Ms Trent: Mr O’Sullivan’s car.

Adv Mkhize: From where?

Ms Trent: From outside the gate of Sable Hills.

Adv Mkhize: Why were you going there?

Ms Trent: We were going to show the investigators Sable Hills.

Adv Mkhize: To show the investigators where Sable Hills [is]?
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Ms Trent: To go with them and also to see the estate manager to get the plans, because that
would be part of the investigation and that is pretty much what happened.

Adv Mkhize: What were you investigating?

Ms Trent: The criminal complaint that Paul had laid with the IPID.
Adv Mkhize: What was the criminal complaint

Ms Trent: Of corruption. | do not have it in front of me.

Adv Mkhize: You do not have to use technical terms. There was a reason why you were at the
house. So you met the IPID investigators outside the Sable Hills Estate?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: And the two investigators got into Paul's car and you were going to enter Sable Hills.
What was the reason for that?

Ms Trent: So we did not go in two cars.
Adv Mkhize: No, no, no. What was the reason for entering Sable Hills? Why were you there?

Ms Trent: To go and see the estate manager and to point out Mr Phahlane’s house, which was
part of the investigation in that it showed that he had built a house. So there was a lifestyle audit
on the house that was built, and there was an analysis of that in the complaint. That was one of
the subjects of where the alleged corrupt funds had gone into was the building of the house. That
was why we were there. It was, it had nothing to do with anything other than to, this is the house.
| think it was a two-story, eight bedroom, something or other, a very, very big house. And to see
the estate manager.

Adv Mkhize: Who was the estate manager?
Ms Trent: It was Chris Jooste.
Adv Mkhize: What was the purpose of your meeting with Mr Jooste?

Ms Trent: We went into his office and he had a security guard with him. We introduced ourselves.
I think Mr Mahlangu gave him a business card that he was from IPID. | introduced myself as Sarah-
Jane Trent. Also, | recorded all these meetings [and] interviews. | will give that to you. You can
also see. So there was no impersonating of any kind.

Adv Mkhize: We have not gotten there yet. My question, | just would like to know if you can tell
the Committee what was the purpose of your visit? Why were you seeing the estate manager
where General Phahlane lives?

Ms Trent: Because the house, the property was the subject of where the funds had gone.

Adv Mkhize: What funds?
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Ms Trent: At the time when Pahlane was the head of the forensic services at the SAPS, he had a
certain salary and his wife, she was also a police officer. So their joint income would have been a
certain amount of money. During that time, you can see that this house had been built that
exceeded that income.

Adv Mkhize: How did you come to know that his house exceeded his income? Were you aware
of how much he earns a month? And his wife as well?

Ms Trent: So his position as a SAPS officer, you can, | think you all would have done this. You
could Google it or phone someone up. It was not looking at anyone's bank statements or anything
like that.

Adv Mkhize: And what was the value of the house that he had built?
Ms Trent: | do not know. Paul did own analysis in that. | cannot give a valuation on that.
Adv Mkhize: So the purpose of the meeting was to discuss what with Mr Jooste?

Ms Trent: To get the plans of the property because that would have formed part of the evidence
because in an investigation, you basically have to get every single thing. And that was one of the
things because the house was a subject of the investigation. And that was the purpose of going
there.

Adv Mkhize: Did you only meet with Mr Jooste? Was there anybody else that you met?
Ms Trent: At Sable Hills?
Adv Mkhize: Yes.

Ms Trent: Yes, he did have a PA, | cannot remember her surname, but | know [her name] was
Antoinette.

Adv Mkhize: Mr Mashoga testified that Mr Jooste, on that visit that you have just described, and
Antoinette Venter were compelled to sign statements prepared by Mr O'Sullivan. Did you assist
in preparing statements?

Ms Trent: Yes, but no one was compelled to do anything.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, you can take us through. What statements did you prepare and why did you
have to prepare statements?

Ms Trent: So as a certified fraud examiner, you are trained on interviewing witnesses, taking
statements, evidence, all these kinds of things. So before we open a case, we will call witnesses
up or possible people and say, ‘We know that you might have information. Can we come and
interview you and maybe you can give us a statement?’ So it would have been something like
that. We would have just typed it up. And as far as | remember, Mr O'Sullivan emailed it to him
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and said, ‘Look, it is your statement. You can remove anything’, but there was no compelling of
anything.

Adv Mkhize: | just wanted to know for the Committee to understand the reason for the visit.
What you have testified so far is that you went to meet Mr Jooste and his PA, Antoinette Venter,
to basically get plans for Mr Phahlane's home. So why did you have to write statements? Did you
get the plans?

Ms Trent: | believe so.
Adv Mkhize: Okay, so what were the statements for?

Ms Trent: | do not remember what the statements were. The first one, | cannot remember. But |
remember the second time we went there was on the 11th. Mr Jooste had advised that he had
spoken to Mr Phahlane and Mr Phahlane had told him not to divulge anything. It will become
clear if you look at the transcripts. You will see exactly what was said. And then | think that
became a subject of a statement. And then that became a case of interfering, but | do not want
to jump ahead.

Adv Mkhize: Adv Mashoga yesterday testified that, you know, you sent a message saying, “Hi,
Chris. Please send your full name and ID number as appears on the ID for subpoenas.” And then
you sent the statement back and you asked for a paragraph to be removed. Basically, he testified
that, you know, in an email that you would have sent, you said that these statements that you
are doing are to prepare subpoenas. And you subsequently asked Mr Jooste to provide his full
name, his ID number, so that you could prepare the subpoenas. You said you assisted. Is that
what you assisted with?

Ms Trent: Is there an email?
Adv Mkhize: | do not have the email here.

Ms Trent: He said that | sent him an email asking for his ID number for subpoenas. | would have
to see this email.

Adv Mkhize: The question | am asking is, the statements that you were preparing, were those in
preparation for subpoenas or were those just, what were the statements for?

Ms Trent: On Chris Jooste?
Adv Mkhize: Yes.

Ms Trent: | cannot imagine it being for a subpoena. Oh, | cannot answer. It is too vague. Perhaps,
if you said | sent an email stating this, | would maybe be able to [answer], because | do not know
what he is talking about on a subpoena.

Adv Mkhize: We will find the email and then we will place it before you.
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Ms Trent: | would be in a better position to answer.

Adv Mkhize: Now we are at paragraph 20 of your statement. At paragraph 20, you say that on
January 3, in 2017, a case of fraud in impersonating IPID investigators was opened against you.
What was your understanding of this development at the time? This would have been about a
month after you would have visited Sable Hills.

Ms Trent: So, | did not become aware of this on the 3rd of January. | am using this date as it
appears as the date of which it was opened. This is just for information that this is on the timeline
and how it occurred.

Adv Mkhize: When did you become aware of it?
Ms Trent: On the 10th of February.
Adv Mkhize: How did you become aware of it?

Ms Trent: 10th of February, 2017. When a massive group of cops and guns and cars came and
abducted me under the auspices of arrest. That is when | learned. | was told it was for pretending
to be an IPID officer.

Adv Mkhize: If you could just turn to your annexure bundle, SJ7.

Ms Trent: Yes, the arrest warrant.

Adv Mkhize: What is that document?

Ms Trent: This is what looks to be the arrest warrant for Kemeeldrift CAS 12 of 01 of 2017.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, and in the middle of the section, it says that “Application is hereby made in
the issue of warrant of arrest of...” Whose name is there?

Ms Trent: Sarah-Jane Trent.

Adv Mkhize: You can read what is below.

Ms Trent: “On a charge of IPID Act 2011, section 33.5, pretend to be IPID investigator, fraud.”
Adv Mkhize: Okay, at the bottom of the page is a stamp and it is dated the 8th of February, 2017.
Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: And it is also signed at the section where it is labelled magistrate.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: So you mentioned that you were abducted?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: Abducted by whom?
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Ms Trent: It is a very long story.
Adv Mkhize: Just the name.

Ms Trent: By whom, you mean?
Adv Mkhize: Yes.

Ms Trent: | did not hear. | think it was Brigadier Clifford Gorane, Brigadier Pharas Ncube,
Yanentebu Mabula, and others that | do not know.

Adv Mkhize: They would have arrived on the 10th of February to arrest you, but you used the
word abduct. | have just sent you to SJT7 at page 14, which is a warrant of arrest, signed by a
magistrate, stamped and dated 8 February 2017. Is there a particular reason why you used the
word abducted and not arrested?

Ms Trent: Yes. So, when an application for an arrest warrant gets to a magistrate, a docket is
opened, it is then given to an investigating officer. They carry out some investigation, and a
prosecutor is appointed to a docket. And that investigator will go and see the prosecutor. And
the prosecutor will then go through the docket and say, ‘Okay, we have got this. We need this.’
And then they will write the next instruction on it. And in the docket will have the affidavits or
sworn statements and the evidence and the chain of evidence and everything. And those
affidavits are obviously under oath, but you do not know whether someone is lying under oath
or anything like that. The prosecutor is then going on what is in the docket that the police officer
has given. The prosecutor then says, ‘Well, looking at this, on the face of this, these affidavits and
everything, a magistrate might give us a warrant of arrest.” However, there are different
circumstances on this issue as well, when it comes to the prosecutor. And then when it gets to
the magistrate, the magistrate then trusts that the prosecutor is coming there with prima facie
evidence or believes the prosecutor of what they are saying. | know that they have, were certain
statements that were either coerced or people lied under oath.

Adv Mkhize: So you say that you were abducted because you later found out some information
relating to the charge and the docket and basically the process under which you were arrested?

Ms Trent: That as well is one of them.
Adv Mkhize: We can move on.
Ms Trent: No, no.

Adv Mkhize: You are going to describe the circumstances. | was just asking you specifically why
you used that word.

Ms Trent: No, there is another element, but | am not going to go into detail, is what happened
on the arrest, which we can go into. That was not a proper arrest.
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Adv Mkhize: So at paragraph 21, you described this investigation as a counter-investigation. Can
you explain why you view it in this way and what you believe General Phahlane's intentions were?
You can read.

Ms Trent: “The investigation was effectively a counter-investigation to the corruption allegation
against Phahlane and only concerned itself with the manner in which IPID was conducting its
investigations. It was clear to me that Phahlane was abusing his authority as acting commissioner
of police to protect himself from investigation and reduce the credibility of IPID witnesses by
requiring them to make additional, possibly conflicting affidavits.”

Adv Mkhize: The question is, can you explain why you view this as a counter-investigation?

Ms Trent: So in February [or] March, in or around or about that time of 2016, when Mr O'Sullivan
had led the complaint at IPID, nothing had been done. But what we came to find later was that
the then acting head of IPID at the time, Mr Kgamanyane had informed Mr Phahlane that there
was an investigation and a complaint made by Mr Paul O'Sullivan. He had signed
acknowledgement of receipt on that.

Adv Mkhize: | can actually assist you with that because the evidence has already been led in
respect of that. Mr McBride led evidence to that effect. So we are aware of those circumstances.
So why do you call this investigation a counter-investigation?

Ms Trent: Oh, sorry. So he then knew that there was no investigation that happened at IPID, so
he was fine. And then when he became aware, ‘Oh, they picked up the case now. This needs to
stop. We need to stop this investigation [from] happening.” And he used the excuse of a security
threat to then have me and Mr McBride arrested — we will go into the circumstances of those
situations and stop the investigation into him.

Adv Mkhize: So in essence, what you are saying is that because Paul O'Sullivan and associates
was investigating General Phahlane, he then launched a counter-investigation and claimed that
there was a security threat to counter the corruption case that you had lodged against him
rather?

Ms Trent: Not exactly. So when | say the letter that went to Mr Phahlane in early 2016, it was
IPID informing Mr Phahlane of an investigation into a complaint made by Mr Paul O'Sullivan. IPID,
once Mr McBride had come back from his suspension, had picked up the matter, because it is the
National Commissioner of Police for South Africa. It is a serious matter, it should be investigated.
It was IPID that was investigating. Forensics for Justice had done investigations and taken sworn
statements from whistleblowers and received evidence, but handed it over to them.

Adv Mkhize: So at paragraph 22, you say, you were served with an application in the Pretoria
High Court by General Phahlane. That application is in our bundle at page eight, and it is SIT6. Is
that the application that you are talking about that was served on you?

Ms Trent: Yes.
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Adv Mkhize: Okay, and what was the nature of this application?

Ms Trent: Can | read it?

Adv Mkhize: Maybe we can highlight it because we are going to run out of time.
Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: So in essence, General Phahlane launched an application, the respondents is IPID,
Mr Paul O'Sullivan — you are cited as the third respondent, as well as magistrate Tsatsi. It is an
application to review and set aside the search and seizure warrant, which was issued on the 29th
of December, 2016, regarding his home at Sable Hills at Waterfront. So when you went to Sable
Hills, did you have a search and seizure warrant or were you going for a meeting with Mr Jooste?

Ms Trent: Yeah, we were going to go and meet with Mr Jooste. We had not made a previous
meeting, but it was not a search and seizure. It did not need to have a search and seizure.

Adv Mkhize: So this application, there was no basis for it?
Ms Trent: No, in my opinion, he had to do what he needed to do to stop the IPID investigation.

Adv Mkhize: So you do not really know what the purpose of the application was? You say it was
designed to distract, but you did not have a search and seizure warrant.

Ms Trent: IPID did have a search and seizure warrant at some point.

Adv Mkhize: What was testified is that you also went to Mr Phahlane’s home to identify a music
system that had been fitted in his home.

Ms Trent: No.
Adv Mkhize: You were not party to that?
Ms Trent: No.

Adv Mkhize: Were there any other investigators within Forensics for Justice or Paul O'Sullivan
and Associates that accompanied you and Mr O'Sullivan, or was it always just the two of you?

Ms Trent: It was just the two of us.

Adv Mkhize: Did the entity have other forensic investigators besides the two of you?

Ms Trent: No, at that time, it was myself and Mr O'Sullivan, and then obviously support staff.
Adv Mkhize: So you would have knowledge of all those investigations?

Ms Trent: Yes, unless Paul was carrying out something that he did not need my assistance on.
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Adv Mkhize: Now we are at paragraph 23. On Wednesday, on the 8th of February, 2017, you say
that a warrant of arrest was issued against you. You state that you believe it was fraudulently
obtained.

Ms Trent: | think we have covered that.

Adv Mkhize: And the reason why you say it was fraudulently obtained just for the purposes of
the Committee is that a proper investigation had not been conducted?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: At paragraph 24, please describe in detail the events of your arrest on the 10th of
February, 2017, and how you were effectively kidnapped. That should cover paragraph 24, 25,
26, and 27.

Ms Trent: Okay, so you want me to read this or to speak?
Adv Mkhize: You can read your statement or speak to it or elaborate.

Ms Trent: So two days later, “on Friday, 10 February, 2017, at approximately 16:15 in the
afternoon, | was unlawfully placed under arrest at the offices of Paul O'Sullivan and Associates
for pretending to be an IPID officer.” | do not add fraud here because this is what | was told at
the time. “It is my view that | was effectively kidnapped owing to the circumstances of the
incident. | provided CCTV video footage of the events and asked that this be played to the
Committee. | was then put in an old unmarked double cab bucky and driven to a Shell petrol
station on Marlborough Drive, Sandton, which is about 2.5 kilometres from where | was arrested.
| was not taken directly to a police station and the arresting officer did not have possession of my
cell phone. When | arrived at the petrol station, | had not yet been handcuffed. Colonel Ishmael
Dawood told the police officer to cuff me. The police officer then unlawfully tied a cable tie
around my wrists, but she did not have handcuffs. Approximately one hour and forty minutes
after | was abducted, Gorane, Ncube and others unlawfully took me back to my office to steal my
phone. | asked to see my warrant of arrest and if not, that | wanted to call an attorney when we
were still at the petrol station. They aggressively refused to give or show me the arrest warrant.”
In fact, they pointed at me. It was not a nice experience. “They did not produce any order allowing
them to force me to open the gate to Paul O'Sullivan & Associates to open my car, to search my
car, or to remove anything from my car. | opened the garage door to the property as demanded
by them, but one of the Mabula team accomplices opened my car and stole my cell phone. The
phone was not placed in an evidence bag. The phone was not seized when | was arrested as has
been falsely claimed. The search and seizure of my phone took place one hour and forty minutes
after my arrest with no search and seizure warrant and refusal to see my arrest warrant when |
asked to. | was then taken back to the petrol station where we remained for a long time with no
explanation as to why | was forced to wait there. | then heard Goerane instruct the driver of the
vehicle | was in to take me to the Kameeldrift police station. | was scared as | knew that my legal
representation would be at Cullinan police station to meet me there as | had been advised that
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that was where | was being taken. But instead | was driven to Kameeldrift police station where a
whole process of abuse of my constitutional rights continued. At approximately 18:20 p.m., two
hours after my arrest, | was driven to the Kameeldrift police station, and, at times, at a speed of
160 kilometres per hour on a freeway. | know this because | could see the speedometer. The
driver had an R5 rifle across his chest and ate popcorn while driving. | was afraid we could crash
at any moment due to the reckless conduct of the driver. When | arrived at the Kameeldrift police
station, not the Cullinan police station, one of the duty officers asked Gorane, ‘Is this Trent?
People are looking for her.” And | said, ‘Yes, | am. Please call them back and tell them that | am
here.” Goerane aggressively and unlawfully told the police officer not to call anyone, even
pointing his finger at her. At approximately 19:15 p.m., | signed the constitutional rights form at
the Kameeldrift police station. One of the officers that had accompanied the arresting entourage
wrote the time on the form as 18:00p.m. when it was actually 19:15 p.m. | then crossed out 18:00
p.m. and wrote the correct time on the form. | believe this was done deliberately to hide the fact
that they had hidden me after abducting me for longer than they actually did. In fact, | said as
much to the officer. | was then locked up in a little cell in the reception area of the station. While
still in the charge office, before | was detained in cells, a Colonel Mike Sales arrived at the police
station and took possession of my cellphone from the arresting officers. My cellphone was by
then in an evidence bag, which had been placed in same when we arrived at the police station.
Gorane filled in the form ‘List of Seized Items,” and under seal bag number, but Gorane did not
fill in the seal bag number, he filled in the IMEI number of my cellphone. This amounts to a break
in the chain of evidence. An extract of Gorane’s statement states, ‘Her cellphone, iPhone 6S with
IMEI number... was handed in as an exhibit as per SAP 1340/49/2017, and sealed in evidence bag
number. And | attach a copy of this statement and the List of Seized Items is Annex SIJT 8 and
Annex SIT 9, respectively.”

Adv Mkhize: Thank you, Ms. Trent. If | could ask you to then turn to page 15 of the bundle. Itis a
statement which is attached to your warrant of arrest. It is deposed to by Mr Clifford Gorane. |
am just going to jump around in his statement to speak to some of the things that you have said.

Ms Trent: It is not attached to the warrant of arrest. This was a statement.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, it is on the next page. There, he describes having executed the arrest on the
10th of February, 2017. In the middle of the page, he states that the docket is registered at
Kameeldrift for intimidation, fraud, extortion, and attempted extortion and pretending to be an
IPID investigator. And then he goes on to state the time of when him and the team arrived — it
would have been 16:25. “And we proceeded to number seven, Janine Street in Sandown to
execute the warrant. And when we were about to arrive, | saw Mr Paul O'Sullivan's vehicle
coming out of the yard, and | tried to stop him, but he managed to drive away.” Was Paul there
the day you were arrested?

Ms Trent: He was.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, so he left you?
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Ms Trent: Yes, and you will see it in the video.
Adv Mkhize: He drove off and left you and you were arrested on your own?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: “I saw a white lady through the glass door and trying to close the main gate with a
remote control. | showed her the warrant of arrest and informed of the crimes she was arrested
for, pretending to be an IPID investigator and fraud. | also informed her about her constitutional
rights in terms of Section 35 (1) and (2) of the Constitution. She confirmed that she understood
her rights, as | explained to her. She wished to consult her lawyer. | afforded her an opportunity,
and she used her own phone. Did you phone your attorney?

Ms Trent: Yes, that is when he said the Cullinan police station.

Adv Mkhize: Your attorney then asked where you would be, and he said, “Cullinan District”. He
says that ‘““ handed over the subject to a warrant officer, Mashage. We then drove through heavy
traffic to a garage situated in Marlborough, where we all stopped to strategise, and how we were
going to trace Mr O'Sullivan. At the same time, we were waiting for traffic to subside.” So your
statement says that they just parked at the garage for no reason. He gives an explanation to say
that he was waiting for traffic to subside because it was half past four when you were arrested.
So it was heavy traffic at the time to go to [the] Cullinan area. And he says that “At the police
station, the suspect was again informed of her rights. Her cellphone, iPhone 6 was handed in as
an exhibit and sealed in evidence in a bag, PA 600-1904-294.” On the following page, at page 22,
your cellphone with the corresponding seal number, iPhone 6, has also been listed on that page
as the item that they would have taken from you. So do you want to comment on some of the
things that you have said in your statement regarding the fact that you were abducted, your
phone was stolen, you were not afforded an opportunity to speak to your attorney. Would you
like to comment on that? And why do you still say that you were abducted if you were able to
call your attorney before you left at the point at which you got arrested?

Ms Trent: Firstly, | am assuming he did not know where he was gonna take me because otherwise
he would have told the attorney exactly where they were taking me. So why tell that it is Cullinan
Police Station. | am going to digress slightly, they found me at 10 p.m. because when | was in that
holding cell, | heard the receptionist lady [say], “Sorry, who? Monica”, and | screamed.

Adv Mkhize: Ms Trent, where | am going with this is that this statement that you attach to your
bundle from Brigadier Clifford Gorane, he told your attorney that he was taking you to Cullinan
District. Your contention is that you were taken to Kameeldrift’s Police Station. Cullinan
Magistrate is within the jurisdiction of Kameeldrift? Why do you still insist that it was not the area
where you were supposed to be taken?

Ms Trent: Thank you for clarifying that for me. Kameeldrift Police Station is in the Cullinan District,
but it is very clear on the warrant of arrest that the police station is Kameeldrift Police Station.
So he could have told the attorney.
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Adv Mkhize: Perhaps the question is — while we are there so that we finalise this and just put it
to bed —the brigadier says that | am taking Ms Trent to Cullinan District. What is wrong with that
statement?

Ms Trent: That is incorrect. It was Cullinan Police Station.

Adv Mkhize: Were you at Kameeldrift Police Station in the Cullinan District?

Ms Trent: Yes, but not the Cullinan Police Station.

Adv Mkhize: Yes, there is no Cullinan Police Station.

Ms Trent: Which my attorney and everybody that was looking for me later found out.
Adv Mkhize: Yes, but he says the Cullinan [Police Station].

Ms Trent: That is what he says in his statement. It is not what he said.

Adv Mkhize: | say this because this is your evidence. This is the statement that you wanted to rely
on. This statement says something different to what you have said in your statement. | am just
trying to get clarity on why then did you rely on this statement by Brigadier Gorance that says
that he was going to take you to the Cullinan District, which is what he did. Kameeldrift Police
Station is in the Cullinan District. The clarity that | seek has to do with firstly, why you say you
were abducted. You have explained that. Even though there was a warrant of arrest and even
though your rights were read to you and even though your attorney was contacted, you still
maintain you were abducted. The second question that | ask is what false information was given
to your attorney on a call when the statement you rely on says Cullinan District, which is a
jurisdiction in which Kameeldrift Police Station is situated. | am trying to understand your
evidence.

Ms Trent: The attorney said, “What police station are you taking her to?” And he said “Cullinan
Police Station”, not Kameeldrift. That is why | say the second time when we went to the petrol
station, when he said Kameeldrift, | started to freak out because now no one knows where | am.
And | do not know whether there is a Cullinan Police Station.

Adv Mkhize: The last thing that | would like to also just highlight to you is that you say in your
evidence that it was noted that you had arrived at 18:00, but in fact, it was 19:15, and you
scratched it out. Why did you not make that correction in this statement? Why did you not ask
Mr Gorane to make the correction as you did on one of the...

Ms Trent: Sorry, | do not understand.

Adv Mkhize: So at paragraph 41, you say that you signed your constitutional rights statement and
you noticed that they had noted 18:00, whereas you actually had arrived at 19:15, and you
scratched it out and wrote the correct time. You corrected the facts. The question | have here is
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that why did you not ask Mr Gorane to correct the facts, because you rely on the statement and
the statement is very clear? It is still within what you have testified, which is the area.

Ms Trent: It is beside the point. “What police station are you taking her to?” “Cullinan Police
Station.” They did not do that. They took me to Kameldrift.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, if we can then move on to now discuss the theme of the cellphone.
Paragraph[s] 34, 33, 34 and 35 deal with the cell phone. You say that, at 33, Colonel Sells asked
for your passcode.

Ms Trent: Correct.
Adv Mkhize: What was your response? You did not give the password?

Ms Trent: No, | asked him if | would be defeating the ends of justice. If | did not, he could not
answer me. He just went like this (shrugged his shoulders). And | said, | need to speak to my
attorney who was still looking for me at the time.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, you say in your presence, you state that Sells opened the evidence bag and
plugged in your phone. Is that not normal in the course of your items being taken?

Ms Trent: | do not know. | cannot imagine. The issue around this is, if we look back at when he
went with a list of seized items, so you had to put the seal bag number of the evidence bag, which
he did not. A very seasoned police officer forgets that, oh, that is not where the IMEI number
goes? And then Colonel Sells ripped the bag open and plugged in the charger and took with him
unused ones. So there is no evidence of that first evidence bag.

Adv Mkhize: So is that the reason why you maintain that your cellphone was stolen and taken to
Israel? My understanding is that when you get arrested, whatever items are on your person at
the time, if you are wearing a belt, it will form part of the items that are removed from you
because you cannot have a belt on you. The evidence on your cellphone is crucial to the
investigation. It will be in an evidence bag, sealed as part of the evidence. What was unusual
about these circumstances?

Ms Trent: They did not seize my phone. They went back and forced me to open the gate and they
took it out. After | had requested several times, ‘May | see my arrest warrant? Does it provide for
you having my phone? And if | cannot see my arrest warrant, | need to speak to an attorney. Why
have you not taken me to the police station?’ The other thing was, when they arrived at the thing,
they allowed me to log off my laptop, close my laptop. Why now all of a sudden we get to the
petrol station, and then they go, ‘Oh’? | do not understand. | don't understand.

Adv Mkhize: We now know that that cellphone was taken. It was testified yesterday that it was
taken to Israel, which is not an uncommon thing, because at the time, in 2017, the country did
not have ways to unlock the phone so that it could be downloaded.

Ms Trent: Was that based on Mashoga’s statement? Is he the only person that said that?
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Adv Mkhize: At the moment, that is what we know. We will look into it. It is not disputed that
your cellphone went to Israel to get unlocked. So it then came back into the country, and upon
coming back into the country, the messages were downloaded off it. You say that was unlawful.
What was unlawful about that?

Ms Trent: They stole my phone out of my car. They had no right to it. They had no right to even
download it.

Adv Mkhize: | have read the statement into the record that when you were arrested, you used
your own cellphone to phone your attorney. So at which point would your cellphone gone into
your car after you had it on your hand while you were being arrested?

Ms Trent: Yes. So the Lucia police officer was holding it. At some point | said, ‘Oh, do | need my
charger?’ He says, ‘You are not going to need it.” So when | was standing outside with this woman
who was holding it, | said, ‘Oh, we do not need my phone. Let us just put it in my car.” So we put
it in my car and off we went. So they did not need it.

Adv Mkhize: Your phone was not stolen. Your phone was taken on your person whilst you were
being arrested. So if we then move on from that, you then describe the events of your arrest. We
now have received a letter from the NDPP that states that the matter will be relooked into. And
so the merits of that case will still be dealt with. We can now move on to the next section. Your
affidavit then after it has detailed everything about Kameeldrift, on the last paragraph, you deal
with false allegations of infiltration into IPID. You directly deny the allegations of infiltration into
IPID. Can you state unequivocally your position on these allegations and why you deny them?

Ms Trent: There was no infiltration into IPID. | had no control over anything in IPID.
Adv Mkhize: Did you know the head of IPID, Mr McBride?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: And you also were involved in investigations and assisting the work of the
investigators of IPID.

Ms Trent: From time to time.
Adv Mkhize: What was your relationship with Mr McBride?

Ms Trent: We had a semi-social relationship but nothing sort of serious. We met for meals, not a
lot.

Adv Mkhize: So you had a relationship?
Ms Trent: Not a relationship.

Adv Mkhize: A semi-social relationship. | want to use your words. So with that semi-social
relationship that you had, did you talk about investigations?

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 30 of 121



5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Ms Trent: We spoke about what was going on, the corruption that was going on in the criminal
justice system, but not necessarily [investigations]. You see, Mr McBride was not doing any of the
investigations himself. He was the executive director. So it would not have been discussing the
investigations. It was a very long time ago.

Adv Mkhize: What Mr McBride testified is that he personally put together a task team and
allowed Mr Cedric Nkabinde to head up that task team. That task team was formed of two of the
members that you spoke about, the investigators. They also from part of the task team. It was
colloquially known as the “Phahlane Task Team”. He was quite involved in following the progress
within that task team. That is what he testified. Mr O'Sullivan also testified that, yes, indeed, he
had complained to Mr McBride about the slow progress into the investigation of General
Phahlane. So there was some involvement at a level that is not just as a senior, but he did have
his eye on specifically that investigation. He testified to that effect. Now, my question to you is,
as a person who had been part of that investigation, dealing with the investigators, what did you
and Mr McBride discuss in the semi-social [meetings]?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. It was a very long time ago.

Adv Mkhize: And what kind of meals would you meet for? Dinner, lunch, breakfast? | mean, how
often did you meet?

Ms Trent: It would usually be like a last minute in Joburg or something. | remember once [having]
a coffee somewhere in Pretoria. | remember a dinner maybe in Sandton.

Adv Mkhize: Would Mr O'Sullivan accompany you to these dinners and lunches?
Ms Trent: No, no, he did not know anything about it.

Adv Mkhize: Okay. Part of the work that is being done within this Committee is that we are
looking into infiltration at IPOD. And when the question was put to you when you were drafting
your statement, that is the only paragraph that you gave. But we need to ask a bit more questions
to understand because you have already testified that you drafted statements for Mr Jooste. You
prepared subpoenas on behalf of IPID.

Ms Trent: No, | did not say that. | did not say | prepared a subpoena.
Adv Mkhize: Okay, you prepared statements. You did desktop work.

Ms Trent: | am just going to ask [that] you stop there. | am not happy with how you summarising
what it was. | did not draft a subpoena or anything.

Adv Mkhize: What did you draft in assisting IPID?
Ms Trent: | do not think | did. | am sure that there would be a record of that.

Adv Mkhize: So, | can assist you, Sarah. You testified that you assisted in drafting statements. You
also testified that you did desktop research.
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Ms Trent: Did | say | assisted in drafting statements for IPID?

Adv Mkhize: Mr Joose, was it an investigation into Sable Hills on behalf of IPID? You testified that
that visit to Sable Hills was a[n] IPID operation. You accompanied the two investigators, you and
Mr Paul O’Sullivan. If my recollection is incorrect, you can correct it. You can give your version.

Ms Trent: | think | have given my version. As | understand, Mr O’Sullivan drafted the statement
of Mr Jooste, which is totally fine.

Adv Mkhize: | am not trying to trick you at all. My recollection is that you said you assisted in
drafting statements. Perhaps you can tell us what kind of assistance you gave IPID?

Ms Trent: We have done this already. Desktop research, file notes. If there was a person of
interest that came up, | would then run that check and give it to them for them to use.

Adv Mkhize: And if you can just pause there, what do you mean if a person of interest came up,
you would grant them a check?

Ms Trent: If they needed to know information on someone, |, as a certified fraud examiner, can
access a certain database. Now, they are very strict. You have to have a reasonable suspicion that
a crime may have taken place. | would give that to them. There is nothing wrong with it. It is
almost like a credit check.

Adv Mkhize: So you would conduct credit checks as part of your investigations?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: And those would be on behalf of IPID? Did you conduct any on behalf of IPID is the
guestion, essentially.

Ms Trent: Can you explain what you mean by on behalf of?

Adv Mkhize: The reason | am saying in assisting IPID [is] because you could not have been doing
the work that IPID is doing. So IPID would give you an instruction. How would you execute the
instructions on behalf of IPID in assisting them with the investigation work? | am asking
specifically around the credit checks that you said you were conducting. Cause that is where we
were now. Remember the other evidence is already in. So just limit the answer to just the credit
checks. Did you have to do any credit checks on the instruction of IPID?

Ms Trent: On request.
Adv Mkhize: So you would also conduct credit checks on certain individuals?
Ms Trent: | would download it, send it on.

Adv Mkhize: Okay. And this work, was it only limited to General Phahlane or did you do other
work on an ad hoc basis that they would require?
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Ms Trent: So usually in any of our investigations, in our own investigation before we had opened
the docket, we would have done searches like that as well. And for example, if | have got a client
and | have done those searches as part of my investigation, | cannot give the client that
information. So | will give it directly to the police officer. So | would run it and give it to them.
Nothing wrong with doing that.

Adv Mkhize: You mentioned Mandla Mahlangu.
Ms Trent: The late. He was shot in the head.

Adv Mkhize: Mandla Mahlangu was an investigator at IPID. Did you know him beyond just the
investigating work?

Ms Trent: What do you mean?
Adv Mkhize: Did you also have any social, occasional relations with him?
Ms Trent: We had lunch once and dinner once.

Adv Mkhize: So you got quite acquainted with the investigators. You would meet them outside
of the scope of your [work].

Ms Trent: Correct. | mean, | did not do anything wrong, but | understand you have to probe it.

Adv Mkhize: Lastly. So you were comfortable with the IPID investigators. You knew them. You
met them socially. What other work did you do on the request of IPID from either the
investigators or Mr McBride or anybody within IPID, besides General Phahlane?

Ms Trent: There was no project.
Adv Mkhize: | am talking on an ad hoc basis.

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. | know that from time to time there would be a request. | do
remember there was a news article, but it was from leaked cellphone records, so | am not
comfortable going into that.

Adv Mkhize: What do you mean by that?

Ms Trent: So people have said | was digging up dirt on the previous minister, [Nathi] Nhleko.
Adv Mkhize: Were you?

Ms Trent: No, no, | was not digging up dirt. | did do a search, yes. It was a lifestyle search.

Adv Mkhize: As part of the work that you did at IPID, you also conducted lifestyle searches. Mr
Paul O'Sullivan testified that he assisted Mr Chauke in conducting a lifestyle search regarding the
national commissioner that was to be appointed. Did you assist in that work?
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Ms Trent: | do not remember that. | vaguely recall, | think | did one or two searches, but | did not
know who instructed or requested or anything like that. | was under the impression that Mr
O'Sullivan knew they were deciding on a new commissioner.

Adv Mkhize: And you did not do any work on that?

Ms Trent: | cannot say [with] 100% certainty, but | do believe that | did a couple of searches on
that. | do not know how the discussion came about between Mr O'Sullivan and Mr Chauke.

Adv Mkhize: Lastly, did you have a romantic relationship with Mr McBride?

Ms Trent: | would not say it was a romantic relationship, but it was a social one. | do not know
quite what word to put it in, but for a brief time. We were not in a relationship. It was not
infiltration.

Adv Mkhize: Thank you, Sarah.
Chairperson: Ms Trent, what is a semi-social relationship?

Ms Trent: So we saw each other every now and again. There was an attraction to each other, but
there was no relationship that went on. | do not know how to explain more, but it was not some
sort of, ‘Oh, I love you. | will do anything for you. What do you need me to do for you?’

Chairperson: You are like friends with benefits?
Ms Trent: Are you allowed to say that on national TV?

Adv Mkhize: Chairperson, | do not mean to interject while you are speaking, but | think there is a
new language for that. It is called [a] situationship.

Chairperson: Is there anything further that you want to say?

Ms Trent: Not that | can think of.

Chairperson: We are going to have a long night with Ms Sarah-Jane Trent.
The Committee adjourned for a dinner break.

Chairperson: We should be ready to conclude our business tonight. Ms Trent, good evening once
again.

Ms Trent: Good evening, Chairperson.

Chairperson: Hon Members, | will allocate thirty minutes to the full Members and fifteen minutes
to alternates.

Ms T Sokanyile (ANC): Just a few questions, Ms Trent. In paragraph 18, you are citing about the
assistance that yourself and Mr Paul O'Sullivan gave to IPID. | want to check, were you aware who
lodged a complaint against General Phahlane?
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Ms Trent: Are you talking about this matter, who lodged the complaint?
Ms Sokanyile: Yes.

Ms Trent: So it was Mr O'Sullivan, but | know that we had statements of other whistleblower
police officers.

Ms Sokanyile: When you went to Mr Phahlane’s house, were you not assisting the IPID?

Ms Trent: Not in an investigative capacity. We went in with them. We have done a whole
investigation on it and went to speak to the estate manager. It was as short and sweet as that.

Ms Sokanyile: Who lodged the complaint?

Ms Trent: Mr O'Sullivan.

Ms Sokanyile: Then investigator Mahlangu and Binang, why did they come?
Ms Trent: Sorry, can you just ask that question again?

Ms Sokanyile: Let me read out paragraph 18. You are saying that you met the two IPID officers,
that is the late Mandla Mahlangu, and Timane Binang, who requested your assistance. | am
enquiring now, who lodged the complaint?

Ms Trent: Mr O'Sullivan.
Ms Sokanyile: You are saying that it is Mr O'Sullivan?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Sokanyile: You are saying here, you were happy to get that assistance, of giving that assistance
of the investigators. When assistance is requested, it is written. If it is yourselves who requested
an assistance from the IPID, was it written down?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. It could have been a telephone call, or a message, or an email. We
were not investigating like a formal investigation. The investigators had been appointed to
investigate this. We introduced ourselves, said, we know the matter. | think it was a day or around
the same time, we said, ‘Okay, do you wanna meet at the Sable Hills? And we can go and meet
with the estate agent.” We know the house is part of that investigation, and a whole lot of
allegations have been set up in the complaint, that is one of the things that they would have to
investigate.

Ms Sokanyile: Who complained about Mr Phahlane’s house?

Ms Trent: | would love to answer your question. | am just trying to understand what you are
asking. So the docket was open, and it had a whole lot of allegations, and then there was almost
like a lifestyle audit, and that included the house.

Ms Sokanyile: You do not know who lodged the complaint, or is it Mr Paul O'Sullivan?
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Ms Trent: It is Mr O'Sullivan, yes, with other witness statements and evidence within that
complaint.

Ms Sokanyile: Okay, and then now you are going to Mr Phahlane’s house. You take the two
investigators from IPID. You all take the car of Mr O'Sullivan. It is being driven by Mr Mahlangu.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Ms Sokanyile: Were you friends with the two investigators, to such an extent that Mr O'Sullivan
can give an investigator his car to drive to Mr Phahlane’s home?

Ms Trent: | am going to speak for myself. | had only met them, it was a day or two before. | cannot
recall the exact date when it was. And we then said, ‘Why do we not meet outside?’ So it was
outside the gate. Mr O'Sullivan said to Mr Mahlangu, ‘You drive’, and | was in the back seat, and
we went inside. That is what happened.

Ms Sokanyile: Then you were there in Mr Phahlane’s house?

Ms Trent: Yes, so it is an estate. And then we drove down to the estate manager. They have an
office there. So we went there and introduced ourselves to the estate manager.

Ms Sokanyile: You were saying that you are taking notes?

Ms Trent: | recorded it. Yes, for situations like this. When you're investigating people, there is a
lot of, he said, she said. Especially because | was quite new at working for Mr O'Sullivan, | needed
to just make sure that | recorded everything because someone is going to come back and say,
‘Yeah, but you did this and you said that and what.” So that was the purpose of me recording it.

Ms Sokanyile: Then did you give those two investigators those notes or they had their own notes
that they were taking?

Ms Trent: When you say notes, you mean the recordings?
Ms Sokanyile: The recordings, yes.

Ms Trent: Yes. What we normally do is certain meetings that we have, if we think we might need
it, we get it transcribed by an independent transcriber. So that is what we did, but maybe not
immediately.

Ms Sokanyile: You met in a meeting situation to give out the recordings?

Ms Trent: | would have put it on a USB and given it to one of the investigators. | cannot recall
exactly, but that is probably what it would have been.

Ms Sokanyile: You are not giving me a clear picture of what happened from the start when you
go there, because if | knew who lost the complaints, then also was that complaint written down?
You do not have that written complaint that was lost. It is only a docket.
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Ms Trent: Yes, the complaint itself is a sworn statement. So when you open a case, and | think
with IPID, it is different. Either you open a case at the police station and then the station
commander decides where it will go, what jurisdiction. If it is to do with investigating a police
officer, they will then send it to IPID. If you open it at IPID directly, it does not go through the CAS
system, but | am not one-hundred percent sure. This did not go through the SAPS CAS system. So
this had an enquiry number.

Ms Sokanyile: These investigators did not have the tapes? It is you [and] Paul O’Sullivan Attorneys
that had the recorded items? IPID could come and go getting information from yourselves?

Ms Trent: Yeah, from time to time.
Ms Sokanyile: So you were working for IPID in that instance?

Ms Trent: | do not see it that way at all. We have a lot of cases, so when they needed something,
we would assist. | mean, if | were to say | investigated that case after it was opened, or after the
Sables Hills, there was really nothing.

Ms Sokanyile: That is fine. Thank you.

Mr Nqgola: Was the statement written by you?

Ms Trent: Yes, it was.

Mr Nqgola: So you take ownership of all the contents that are contained in the statement?
Ms Trent: | do.

Mr Nqgola: You did not write the statement under duress and due influence and stuff?

Ms Trent: No, it is my statement.

Mr Ngola: Allegation[s] have it that in executing the project or the “Operation Phahlane, you had
to first capture IPID as a very important weapon against Phahlane. And amongst the strategies
you have employed is that one of you must date McBride and the other must provide financial
resources to McBride as a way of capture so that you are able to properly execute the programme
of collapsing Phahlane. What is your take on that?

Ms Trent: | do not know how to put this, but this is the most absurd thing | have heard. | have no
time ever even thought of capturing anyone, let alone a state institution.

Mr Ngola: So with Mr O'Sullivan, what is your working relationship? Are you a personal assistant
or what?

Ms Trent: So | have not worked there since 2022. When | was there, | was kind of a researcher.
You know, the person in the office that if you need photocopying or you need pretty much
anything that needed to be done. And as the time went by, | was trained.
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Mr Ngola: An administrative clerk?

Ms Trent: Yeah, and the more | stayed, the more | learned and was trained and then took on
more responsibilities and bigger cases. And then | got my CFE. So it came about like that. And it
was a normal employee-employer thing. You take instructions from your employer.

Mr Ngola: Okay. Mr O’Sullivan testified here that he went to the Sable Hills as a complainant to
point out what he deems as a crime scene to the IPID officials. What was your business at Sable
Hills?

Ms Trent: As his employee. He said, ‘Let us go.” And | got in the car and off we went.
Mr Ngola: So you are an employee of the complainant?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Nqgola: So you went there in your capacity as a co-complainant?

Ms Trent: | would not say co-complainant.

Mr Nqola: A deputy complainant?

Ms Trent: More of a witness perhaps.

Mr Ngola: Who got the call to point out the house at Sable Hills Estate?

Ms Trent: | do not know. | cannot remember.

Mr Ngola: So, Mr O’Sullivan is called by IPID officials to come to Sable Hills?
Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Ngola: But you did not get any call?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. You see, sometimes Paul would say, ‘Call so-and-so’ or ‘message
so-and-so’ or he would do it himself.

Mr Ngola: But the point is you, Ms Sarah-Jane Trent, did not receive any communication from
IPID officials to go and appear in front of Sable Hills estate?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember.

Mr Ngola: Okay. You say in both Paragraph 7.1 and Paragraph 17, that there is some CFE
qualification and skill that allows you to access information.

Ms Trent: Correct.
Mr Ngola: Can you elaborate on that? What is CFE?

Ms Trent: It is a Certified Fraud Examiner. It is part of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.
| do not know how much detail you would like me to go into?
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Mr Nqgola: No, but you say it allows you access to information. What information are you talking
about?

Ms Trent: Correct. So you have certain databases and you have to apply to them and you have
to... Sorry, | am getting distracted.

Mr Ngola: No, but what legal authority do you rely on in accessing people's information?
Ms Trent: Sorry, can you ask me a question? | am all over the place.

Mr Ngola: | am asking you a question. On Paragraph 7.1, on Paragraph 17, you say your CFE
allowed you access to information.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Ngola: So | am saying you are relying on what legal authority to access information that you
are not meant to access?

Ms Trent: So with the service provider of the information, you have a contract. It is the same as
a estate agent or something that you do sort of a credit check or if you are opening like an Edgars
or whatever, and you have got limits on what certain information is. With a CFE, when you sign
the contract, you have to provide your certification. You have to provide various things and only
then will they then accept that you can have access, but they are very strict because you cannot
just do a search on anyone. You have to have predication and a reasonable suspicion that there
is an offence.

Mr Ngola: For example, the state security agencies, if they want to tamper with my
communication, they must make a formal application to the surveillance judge in a competent
court of law so that they get permission. Now, you speak about the CFE and the association and
speak about credit checks. Now, does the National Credit Act authorise you to access people's
information?

Ms Trent: | do not know on that level, but what | do know is that this is above board.

Mr Ngola: | put it to you that it does not and if you are involved in anything of that source, you
are involved in an illegal operation.

Ms Trent: Okay, | deny that | am involved in any legal operation. It is above board.

Mr Ngola: Okay, let us go back to Section 24 — that which you rely on. Section 24 bases itself
mostly on people under investigation. Section 24 gives legislative authority to IPID investigators,
not private individuals. Now, as a private investigator qualified, a lawyer qualified, you would
have at least used your interpretation of statute skills to know that this thing you have written in
your statement is actually irrelevant from what you are actually testifying, and from what is
actually alleged that you would have done. You start your statement by making a reference from
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General Phahlane’s testimony, but section 24 has nothing, completely no relevance to what you
are alleged to have done at Sable Hills. Do you accept that?

Ms Trent shook her head in disagreement.

Mr Ngola: Okay, in paragraph 19, you say “We accompanied IPID investigators to Sable Hills
Estate. We conducted investigations and interviews there.” What interviews were you doing?
What investigation were you doing? Under what capacity were you doing that investigation?

Ms Trent: | think | am covered that. | am just trying to think how | can put it in perspective.
Mr Ngola: Do you agree with me that the investigation was an investigation of IPID?

Ms Trent: It was an IPID investigation.

Mr Nqgola: Do you agree with me that you are not an IPID official?

Ms Trent: | agree, yes.

Mr Ngola: What investigation were you doing at Sable Hills Estate?

Ms Trent: We were part of the investigation prior to it being opened.

Mr Nqgola: How were you part of the investigation? It is a state investigation.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nqgola: You are not state officials. How were you part of any investigation? What authority do
you have over any investigation?

Ms Trent: All | can say is it was not unlawful or illegal.

Mr Ngola: No, it was unlawful. Do you see now why the state charged you on impersonating IPID
officials? Do you understand now? You say it yourself. And this is an official document to depose
in parliament. And the state is re-enrolling your case. And you say this in Parliament on record.
And the state has got all the authority to request this information from us. And we will gladly give
them. You admit and confess on paragraph 19 that you conducted investigations and interviews
at Sable Hills [Estate].

Ms Trent: Not as an IPID officer.
Mr Ngola: Why were you co-interviewing?

Ms Trent: They have not re-enrolled it. They are investigating. | am satisfied [that] | have not
impersonated anyone.

Mr Ngola: Do you agree that it was a mistake for you to say you were conducting investigations
and interviews at Sable Hills [Estate]?

Ms Trent: | was not conducting an IPID investigation.
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Mr Ngola: What investigation were you conducting?

Ms Trent: | was going along to go and see the estate manager.
Mr Ngola: Why was the estate manager seen?

Ms Trent: To obtain the plans of the house.

Mr Ngola: Which house?

Ms Trent: Mr Phahlane’s Sable Hills house.

Mr Nqgola: The one that was under investigation by IPID?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Ngola: So you were conducting [an] IPID investigation. You go to Sable Hills Estate. There is
an investigation underway by IPID on Mr Phahlane on building a house in Sable Hills Estate. You
go there, not as an IPID official. You enter the precinct with IPID officials. You say you conducted
interviews and investigations in Sable [Hills]. And when we ask you, when you met with the estate
manager, which subject of interview was on Sable Hills house? There is only one subject of
interview according to the record. It is the house of General Phahlane.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Nqgola: Now, there is no other interview you were doing. So | am saying to you, that is the
reason why you admit here that you conducted investigations and interviews and the state
charged you for impersonating an IPID official. Let us pass that part. | was just briefing you, the
can of worms you are opening for yourself here. So did you request the building plan from the
building inspector?

Ms Trent: Myself personally, no.
Mr Ngola: Who requested it?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember, but | know that that was what the purpose of going. | do not know
exactly who spoke the words.

Mr Nqgola: Did you request bank statements of General Phahlane and anyone close to him?
Ms Trent: | did not request any bank statements, as far as | remember.

Mr Ngola: Did you ask from the security guys that were there, the security detail of General
Phahlane, including how many bodyguards, how many cars, how many guns, what kind of
ammunition and all that?

Ms Trent: Myself, no.

Mr Ngola: Who did it?
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Ms Trent: | do not know what was asked. | recall allegations of that, but | did not ask any of those
questions.

Mr Ngola: Fine. Did [the] IPID officials who [you] were with reprimand you from the alleged
conduct of yourself and Mr O’Sullivan?

Ms Trent: No. On that day?

Mr Nqgola: Let us proceed. They did not reprimand you. Why are you saying the warrant of arrest
was fraudulent? | did not really get the explanation.

Ms Trent: So the statements that they had taken that formed the basis of the warrant of arrest,
some of the statements had been, were not, sorry... This situation is a trauma response. It is why
| burst out crying.

Mr Ngola: You can give me, even if it is one reason.

Ms Trent: So people did not tell the truth in their statements and that we had introduced
ourselves as IPID members or pretended to be, which is not true. And those were lies. It was to
stop any investigation into the acting national commissioner of police in South Africa.

Mr Nqgola: Do you respect the South African judiciary?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Ngola: So how could you say a magistrate has issued a fraudulent warrant of arrest? And then
when we are asking about the reasons, you do not blame the magistrate. You blame some other
people. | mean, you are supposed to note the weaknesses you are talking about, but still there is
a warrant of arrest from a magistrate.

Ms Trent: If | am not mistaken, the magistrate makes the decision on what is presented by the
prosecutor.

Mr Ngola: | am still not getting any response. Do you know the concept called vicarious liability?
Ms Trent: | do.

Mr Ngola: You say you were under unlawful arrest.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nqgola: Do you understand that in terms of the principle of vicarious liability, you should have
sued the minister for unlawful arrest or wrongful arrest or whatever you want to call it. Did you
do that?

Ms Trent: | did not.

Mr Ngola: Why did you not do it?
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Ms Trent: Well, firstly, | could not afford it. Secondly, | did not have a lawyer. And when Paul sued
the state, he said that instead of me, because | probably will not get a lot, that | could have a
percentage of what he gets.

Mr Ngola: Still, you are not giving me an answer. You are a lawyer. You are supposed to know
that if you are subjected to unlawful arrest or malicious prosecution, you can sue the minister.

Ms Trent: Yes, | do know that, but you have to have money for the lawyer.
Mr Nqgola: It does not make sense, but let us pass it.

Ms Trent: No, | could not afford a lawyer, otherwise | would have.

Mr Nqgola: But Mr O’Sullivan paid more than R200 000 for McBride’s lawyers.
Ms Trent: Yeah, not mine.

Mr Nqola: So you are a child of a lesser god?

Ms Trent did not provide a response to the question.

Mr Ngola: Paragraph 27, you asked for a warrant of arrest. You were not given. How did you then
consolidate that the warrant of arrest was fraudulent?

Ms Trent: Firstly, | had never committed any offence. So if there was a warrant of arrest, someone
had to lie because | did not commit any offence.

Mr Nqgola: Yeah, but the point is, at paragraph 27, you say, during the arrest, no warrant was
issued out.

Ms Trent: No, | did not say no warrant was issued out. | asked to see it. So when they came, he
had the clipboard.

Mr Nqgola: So when did you then collate information that it was fraudulent, if you were not given
the warrant of arrest?

Ms Trent: At the time, | was not thinking about whether the arrest warrant was fraudulent or
not. At the time, | was thinking, ‘Well, where the hell am 1?’

Mr Ngola: Paragraph 29, you say two hours after my arrest, maybe you went to the police station
and stuff. But the last time | checked, that was not an arrest according to you. It was an abduction.
So when did it change to be an arrest? | mean, at what stage did you change your mind that ‘No,
in fact, this is not abduction. This is an arrest’?

Ms Trent: | understand the wording, but it is a bit of semantics. It was under arrest warrant, but
what happened was not okay. It was an abduction. And if anyone in South Africa thinks that that
was a lawful arrest, then we have got a problem.
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Mr Nqgola: No, but the point is, you say you were abducted by men you do not know with
unbranded cars.

Ms Trent: Where did | say that? No, where did | say | was abducted by men in an unbranded car?
Mr Ngola: You said “unidentified”.

Ms Trent: No, | know | said that.

Mr Nqgola: So, what is the issue?

Ms Trent: No, | did not say | was abducted by men that | do not know in an unmarked car. There
were several cars and there were several people. Some without uniform[s], others with uniforms
and guns. | do have the videos here, which | would love for everyone to see because | do not
think that words can quite show what it was. So no, | did not say that it was one car. There were
many, many cars.

Mr Ngola: That is the point. But you said that from paragraph 25, but in paragraph 29, you change
that and say, “two hours after my arrest”. That is the bone of contention, that it has changed now
to be an abduction suddenly. Okay, you want to retract which one, arrest or abduction?

Ms Trent: Abduction, arrest, yeah... | do not mean to frustrate you.

Mr Ngola: Which one are you retracting? You cannot have one situation and it becomes an
abduction and an arrest at the same time. It is either an arrest or it is an abduction. So which one
do you retract? Ma'am, you were not abducted. That is the reality.

Ms Trent: No, | was.

Mr Nqola: Okay, let us proceed. How did you get to know an internal memo at [the] NPA? If you
check paragraph 40, you say “On the 31st of May, 2017, Acting Director of Public Prosecutions,
Gauteng Division, Pretoria, Adv Baloyi, requested the docket | had opened...” There was an
internal memo that he sent, but you get to have the contents of the internal memo, which you
have quoted some of them yet. How did you access an internal memo of NPA?

Ms Trent: What date was that?

Mr Nqgola: The 31st of May, 2017.

Ms Trent: | do not remember how.

Mr Ngola: What do you not remember?

Ms Trent: How | got it. However, it was an update on the matter.

Mr Ngola: Are you aware that the Criminal Procedure Act gives an authority to peace officers to
seize any property from any person under arrest if it is suspected of having been used for a
commission of a crime? It can be a yes or a no.
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Ms Trent: Sorry, are you quoting a section?

Mr Ngola: Let me say this. The law allows police officers to search or seize. There is even a topic
in Section 20 of the Criminal Procedure Act that gives a scenario where a police officer can search
and seize without a search and seizure warrant. So, the point | am driving at is, for you to have
peace in your life, for you to live your normal, proper life, leave this fictitious image of your
abduction, your cellphone being stolen — leave those things. Accept the fact that the state is
giving you an opportunity, through its criminal process system, for you to prove yourself that this
which you have been accused to have done — which include your extortion, intimidation,
impersonating an IPID official and all those things — gather yourself around, prepare your case
properly. What you have given us here will not see the light of day in a court of law because what
you are giving here are just suspicions because you are not giving credible evidence on your
phone being stolen. Your phone is this red phone that you are talking about. Is it this red phone
that is in the annexure of bundles?

Ms Trent: No, | think that is Paul’s phone.

Mr Ngola: Okay. So, we would advise you to go and prepare your case properly because there is
an indication, as it was said by Hon Members here, that the state, through what the NDPP wrote
to this Committee, is intending to re-enrol your case. And we are telling you that if this is the case
you stand on, then you are in serious trouble because what you are doing now, you are just giving
insinuations. Your phone was not stolen. You were not abducted. So, you leave that part and
settle and prepare your case properly so that you are able to stand in a committed court of law.
Thank you very much.

Ms Sangoni: Good evening, once again, Ms Trent. And let me maybe just, you know, for lack of a
word, commiserate with what you are going through. | mean, you have told us it was a trauma
response and | am hoping that you have sought support around that trauma response. Ms Trent,
I am hoping | will not be long, but | just want to check with you. | mean, we have just started with
the questioning, but the Evidence Leader would have led you most of the afternoon. Do you
realise the wrong that is being alleged here? Do you think that there is any basis for the issues
that are being raised? And do you think that perhaps you could have erred together with Mr Paul
O'Sullivan in some way or the other in relation to these matters?

Ms Trent: | think that the allegations against myself are ridiculous. Sorry, | do not mean that in a
disrespectful way. It is a word that | think of. They are very serious allegations and | can
understand why the Hon Members are looking into it. However, | know that | have done nothing
wrong and | know that you have a duty to investigate. It is not a nice position to be in.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, but you still maintain that you have done nothing wrong? So on paragraph 14,
where you told us about the purpose of, | think, deposing this affidavit to us, you said you would
be answering to issues of “Mr O'Sullivan's alleged involvement, interference, and infiltration.”
Interesting choice of words, different words with different meanings. Now, they do speak to the
terms of reverence, as you are saying. If you were to take those three words of yours,
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“involvement, interference, infiltration”, what is your averment? Was Paul just involved lightly?
Did he interfere? Did he infiltrate the system? And why would you say that?

Ms Trent: | have therefore been informed that this Committee requires me to give evidence
regarding the alleged involvement. No, there was no infiltration, no interference, and the
involvement would have been, if they needed something, we were there.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, what is your relationship like with Mr O'Sullivan?

Ms Trent: | left his employee in 2022, and we are not in contact at all. | think we got in contact
because of this, the Ad Hoc Committee, and my name coming up, and that.

Ms Sangoni: You were not in contact before that?

Ms Trent: No, | think on Christmas he would send a Christmas thing.

Ms Sangoni: It is not a strained relationship or anything?

Ms Trent: No, | left amicably.

Ms Sangoni: You just lost touch?

Ms Trent: Yeah, | had no reason to be in touch with him. | mean, we were not friends.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, let us go into that. So paragraph 8.4, you say “Forensics for Justice NPO was
an NPO that identified elements of the criminal justice system that had been captured by criminal
or politically corrupt individuals”. How did you identify these elements?

Ms Trent: It would have been through work that we were doing. So an example | usually use
when people ask me is because we are looking at alleged criminal offences that someone's
[committed], | listen to you, [and] | say, ‘Okay, there could be something there. Let us have a
look.” And we open the case. Then what happens is someone will bribe to have the case lost or
something like [that]. When something like that happens, Paul then we would make a complaint
of that.

Ms Sangoni: Sorry, | think you are digressing. How do you identify elements of the criminal justice
system? When do you start investigating somebody? Is it always because somebody comes to
tip-off or as you say, you identify them? How do you identify them?

Ms Trent: Okay, | understand your question. It would be a tip-off or something in the media. | can
give an example of one of those. But usually there are so many people that ask to meet with Paul.
He always meets with anyone and they will come and give their documents. Alternatively, if he
has seen something, then he will decide.

Ms Sangoni: So how did he then identify the National Commissioner of Police to be investigated?

Ms Trent: Okay, so my understanding of it is it went all the way back to his investigation into
Radovan Krejcit. There was a death threat and then there was a witness that came forward and
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turned into a state witness. And then he was supposed to go into witness protection and then
they kicked him out. | do not know all the details. | am just telling you as | recall. And then Mr
O'Sullivan complained to Riah Phiyega. And then Mr Phahlane came and then he complained
about a General Munu in Durban, and about what was happening to this witness. And then he
was ignored or he could not get any feedback because this witness, it is a state witness, it is
dangerous people. | think there must have been an email or something, and he said ‘What is up
with this Commissioner of Police?’

Ms Sangoni: Then he identified him for investigation?

Ms Trent: Then as | remember, he went to the media and he said something and that brought
attention to police whistleblowers who then contacted Mr O'Sullivan. And then he met with them
and they said, oh, we saw that you have identified red flags. That is how the IPID probe came
about.

Ms Sangoni: Basically, Mr O'Sullivan has got beef with the General, the National Commissioner
of Police, who will not do what he wants, which is to investigate and deal with these people,
including General Munu. Then he decides to go shout about it in the media and then people say,
‘Aha, we have got something you can use’, right? Would you not regard that as extortion, Ms
Trent?

Ms Trent: | would not.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, let us move. | am gonna run out of time. Why did you resign from Forensics
for Justice and O'Sullivan and Associates?

Ms Trent: So |, at the time, did not want to continue working there. | wanted to see what else |
could do.

Ms Sangoni: But you did not have a job, you just resigned.

Ms Trent: So | resigned, but Mr O'Sullivan said that | could remain under employment until | found
another job.

Ms Sangoni: Why would you guys do that? | mean, you want to go somewhere, you resigned, you
are fed up with your current situation, and then you still stay. How does that work?

Ms Trent: Sorry, | resigned as a director. | think because | had been there for so long, How it
happened is we were chatting and then he said something about my attitude needs to change,
otherwise he does not want me to take over the company and | said, ‘Well, | do not want the
company.” And then he said, ‘Okay, well.” We did not have a fight or anything like that. It was my
time to move on. He said, ‘Fine. You can work here until you find something.’

Ms Sangoni: Okay, then you joined Dr BF Chauke Foundation. Is this the same Bejani Chauke you
have been speaking about?
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Ms Trent: Correct.
Ms Sangoni: What is your relationship with Dr Chauke?

Ms Trent: So | met him at Forensics for Justice, there was an allegation against Mr Andile
Ramaphosa in the Bosasa matter, and Paul contacted someone who could communicate with
President Ramaphosa, because he wanted to speak with Andile Ramaphosa to see if he would
want to clear his name or give his version of events because we were opening a criminal case and
there were allegations against him. So that is how | met Dr Chauke. And then | think we had tea
at some point. When | left, something happened in the news.

Ms Sangoni: You must have become very close for him to now hire you at his foundation and
come to you guys for tip-offs around who to hire for national commissioner and so forth.

Ms Trent: | do not know what the correspondence was or how that came about, but | do know
that there were searches done on that. | do not think that he asked Paul to do that.

Ms Sangoni: Sorry?

Ms Trent: | do not think he asked Paul to vet potential commissioners of police. However, | do
not have the correspondence. But Paul and Bejani are not friends or anything.

Ms Sangoni: Are you friends with Bejani?
Ms Trent: | would not say friends, but | worked for his foundation.

Ms Sangoni: | am quite keen to find out. So when you and Mr O'Sullivan were at General
Phahlane's house and you were speaking about all these issues, why were you looking for the
plans for his house? What were you gonna do with that?

Ms Trent: So as | understand, it was impossible for the house to have been built within his means.
So what Mr O'Sullivan had done was, there is a tool that you can use called Google Earth History.
I am assuming that is where the plans came and then it is to get the architects.

Ms Sangoni: Let us leave it. | think | get what you are saying. | am just uncomfortable about
civilians going into an estate looking for people's house plans. Now, Adv Mashoga is quoting, |
think, Mr Jooste, that when he refused to give the information across, Mr O'Sullivan informed
him that he may be in prison for two years. And that is when Mr Jooste complied. Do you also
refute these allegations that Mr O'Sullivan said Mr Jooste would be in prison for two years if he
did not give over the info[rmation]?

Ms Trent: | do not think it was ‘If you do not give the information.” | think he may have quoted
from the Act that would have said non-compliance.

Ms Sangoni: But do you agree that is not even his place? He is not an IPID investigator.

Ms Trent: | think he was just quoting an act.
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Ms Sangoni: Why is he even interviewing Mr Jooste?

Ms Trent: In our investigations, we often will phone someone up that may have information. So
it is not unusual.

Ms Sangoni: | mean, IPID was there, right?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Sangoni: You have been saying that you recorded these conversations. Why were you
recording and not the investigators?

Ms Trent: They never recorded. For me, | just recorded all the meetings just so that | had that on
my file. Actually, when | started working for Paul, if he walked into the office, | would just push
record because everything was at the speed of light. So that is just what | did.

Ms Sangoni: Why did you not bring us either the recordings or the transcripts? | mean, | am sure
this would have just exonerated you from everything that you said about not claiming to be IPID,
telling them that you are not investigators. | just find it curious that you have not included that
as part of your bundle.

Ms Trent: Have | given it? | did not think to [do so].

Ms Sangoni: | mean, that is like all the evidence to prove this case against you is manufactured,
because if you guys never said any of these things, you just produced the transcript, the
recording.

Ms Trent: | have it here.

Ms Sangoni: | did not get your response to Adv Mkhize about why you and the arresting officer
seem to have two different versions of this phone. | heard you saying then you would not need
it for a battery. She does not even mention that you went back to the office. Why would that be?

Ms Trent: Gorane does not mention?

Ms Sangoni: Yes.

Ms Trent: | do not know why he did not mention it.

Ms Sangoni: Did you arrange a polygraph test between Mr McBride and Mr Mokotedi?

Ms Trent: | organised a polygraph. | think | was in contact with... Either the polygraph lady
contacted...

Ms Sangoni: Yeah, you did.

Ms Trent: Did | contact him? | organised it, yes.
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Ms Sangoni: Why would you be organising polygraph tests on matters relating to IPID
investigations?

Ms Trent: So what happened is Mokotedi came with these outrageous claims of a bribe with
overthrowing the government. That went viral all over the news. And someone dared someone
to take a polygraph, | think, on TV or something like that. And Paul said, ‘Organise, arrange.” He
was overseas, and that is what | did.

Ms Sangoni: Did you then agree to provide Mr McBride with the questions so he would know in
advance the questions to be asked to him?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember.

Ms Sangoni: That is quite a big thing, Sarah. You cannot not remember that.
Ms Trent: No, | honestly do not remember that.

Ms Sangoni: That was cooking the polygraph test.

Ms Trent: No, you know the questions.

Ms Sangoni: | am sure | will find your WhatsApp communications around that. In my last 10
minutes, | just wanna move to [the] last part. Were you part of a security WhatsApp group which
had McBride, Sesoko, Mahlangu, Binang, Rapesu, and other people?

Ms Trent: Yes, at one point.
Ms Sangoni: Now, what business do you have being in WhatsApp groups with IPID investigators?

Ms Trent: So, as | remember, there was death threats, and then it was the Christmas holidays.
And as | understood, it was to just keep everyone...

Ms Sangoni: So, were they protecting you or you were planning Christmas?

Ms Trent: No, we were not planning Christmas. No, it was just to keep everyone safe.
Ms Sangoni: Were they your friends?

Ms Trent: No.

Ms Sangoni: What else did you discuss in this group?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. | do not have that group. | do not have the messages.

Ms Sangoni: Okay. | think you have agreed at some point that you have been getting financial
credit information of citizens for Mr McBride. Yes?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Ms Sangoni: What allows you to do this? What statutory authority do you have to do this?
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Ms Trent: | just know that it is lawful for me to do that.
Ms Sangoni: Sarah, you are a lawyer. What do you mean it is lawful?
Ms Trent: Just give me a second.

Ms Sangoni: While you are thinking about that, on paragraph 7.1 of your statement, you say that
you became a certified fraud examiner in 2019. But in 2016, you were already conducting credit
checks and running lifestyle audits. So, | ask you again, how could you do that? You were not
even a fraud examiner.

Ms Trent: | was an attorney.

Ms Sangoni: Let me tell you what Mr O’Sullivan said when | asked him this. He said the National
Credit Act allows people to get such reports, which may be used for, amongst others,
investigations into fraud, corruption. He just forgot to mention that the regulation goes so far as
to say, provided that SAPS or any other statutory enforcement agency conducts that
investigation. Your company was neither SAPS nor a statutory enforcement agency. | think we
can agree on that, right?

Ms Trent: Yeah, but we are not the only certified fraud examiners that have this contract with
the service providers. So, it is not just us.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, | am not sure which contract we are talking about. I'm asking you about going
to citizens, and maybe let me get to a specific citizen. Why were you getting all of this information
on Minister Nhleko — former minister.

Ms Trent: | am trying to think.

Ms Sangoni: Okay, maybe let me prompt your mind. Mr McBride sent you a message saying
“Nhleko is trying to get rid of me again.”

Ms Trent: Nhleko and McBride, all of that was part of the State Capture and the capture of the
criminal justice system. Various people and parties were trying to get some people out and some
people in, in order to capture the criminal justice system. And this all happened together when
the investigation into General Phahlane occurred.

Ms Sangoni: So, it is the same modus operandi, right? Now, Minister Nhleko is unhappy with Mr
McBride. You decide, let us dig up some dirt on Minister Nhleko. Let us assume you could
investigate fraud, which is a disputed point right now. You respond and you say, “Do you have an
ID number or a cell number?” He asks you, “Of?” You say, “Nhleko. Send quickly.” He sends you
Mr Nhleko's ID number and you will respond by saying, “I will let you know if there is anything
fishy.” You are also asking for a title deed to his house and his vehicle ownership. “Will let you
know when | get them.” What on earth is this?

Ms Trent: So, that was sort of a lifestyle audit.
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Ms Sangoni: Why are you doing lifestyle things on ministers because Mr McBride is unhappy that
the Minister wants to get rid of him? What authority do you have, Sarah, that allows you to do
that?

Ms Trent: The capture of the criminal justice system...

Ms Sangoni: By who? Because right now that is the issue in question, whether it is yourselves or
the other people you are alleging captured [the state].

Ms Trent: No, | hear you.
Ms Sangoni: So, please just help me understand this.

Ms Trent: | believe that this was part of the criminal capture and that there was interference —
and there was. Ms Sangoni: | think maybe let us stop there. You just said something that was very
interesting to me. You said, “if anybody thinks that this arrest was lawful, then we have a
problem.” This Committee has received a letter from the National Commissioner of Police,
General Fanie Masemola, and he says your arrest was lawful. | think we have a problem then.

Ms Trent: Yeah, we do. We have a big problem. We have a big problem if he thinks that that was
a lawful [arrest], huge problem.

Ms Sangoni: Thank you very much.

Ms James: Chair, the Witness was asked a question and she did not answer the question. She was
asked, ‘State Capture by whom?’

Ms Trent: In the criminal justice system, there is a lot of grabbing for power. | am just trying to
think of how | can explain. State Capture could not have happened if we had a functioning,
uncaptured criminal justice system.

Mr Nomvalo: Good evening, Ma’am.
Ms Trent: Good evening, Hon Nomvalo.

Mr Nomvalo: | want to start by appealing to your conscience. When | look at your profile here,
and your educational background, | can safely say that you have worked hard to become who
you are today. You are saying here you obtained a certificate in market management. You
obtained the Bachelor of Laws. You got admitted as an attorney of the High Court. You became a
certified fraud examiner, and so on and so forth. And then, in my view, you started to experience
problems when you met a man called Paul O'Sullivan. Are you proud for having worked with Paul
O'Sullivan?

Ms Trent: That is a difficult question. What | will answer is that | learned a lot. | experienced a lot.
Some of which was a bit traumatic.
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Mr Nomvalo: Leave the experiences, Ma’am. Let me contextualise my question. The reason why
| am asking, there's evidence before this Committee which shows that there is widespread
discontent against Paul O'Sullivan.Many people are bringing different complaints about him, and
he has dupetized, allegedly, many careers. Wrongfully so. If that is not enough, he even
threatened Members of Parliament. He threatened a witness which was seated where you are
sitting currently. He even threatened a Member of Parliament last week, | believe that, as a
patriotic South African, you do not endorse such behaviour. Now, the question is, are you still
proud of having worked with such a man?

Ms Trent: | no longer tell people that | used to work with him.

Mr Nomvalo: No, you are not responding to my question. Leave alone his questionable history
and desire to be a South African citizen, because that is where | am going as well. | am going to
ask you a question, if you made enough research about him before you joined his company, and
about his intentions for coming into our country. For now, let us deal with this one. Are you still
proud, having learned all these allegations and having learned all the evidence that has been
accused before this Committee against him, for having worked with him?

Ms Trent: | think it would be better to deal with the allegations, because | have not ever witnessed
him committing an offence.

Mr Nomvalo: Okay, let me ask you this question, because seemingly | am not going to get an
answer on this one. Do you associate yourself with the wrongdoings orchestrated by Paul
O'Sullivan? Ma'am, here | am talking about the person who has not denied some of the
allegations | have explained to you. He came to this Committee. We asked him about threatening
a witness who was there, Mr Nkabinde. He has not denied, he did not even become evasive. He
took ownership of all these things that | have spoken about. Now, | am asking you, do you still
associate yourself with that character?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Nomvalo: Are you proud of having worked with him? After he has conceded to all these things,
are you still proud?

Ms Trent: | am sad.
Mr Nomvalo: Were you born here in South Africa?
Ms Trent nodded her head in the affirmative.

Mr Nomvalo: And | believe you love this country. | believe you are protective of your reputation
and of your character. And the manner in which you have worked for your profile, in terms of
your educational background, you would not allow your character to be easily destroyed by
another person.

Ms Trent: No.

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 53 of 121



10

15

20

25

30

35

Mr Nomvalo: Now, if | give you an opportunity here to clean your name and the only way you
can clean your name is by telling nothing but the truth, | am telling you, South Africa will regain
confidence in you. We have given some witnesses that opportunity here. And some espoused
our advice. And they received a standing ovation. If | am giving you an opportunity here to clean
your name, would you take advantage of that?

Ms Trent: | do not know. | will tell [you] whatever you need. Like | said, | have never witnessed
him committing an offence, but | will take any opportunity. Sorry, can you ask that question
again?

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, no. The question is too long, Ma'am. There are many questions | have for
you. Would you take an opportunity of cleaning your name if | give that opportunity to you?
Because your name is currently tainted through your association with Mr Paul O'Sullivan. And
the only instrument you can use to cleanse your name is by telling nothing but the truth.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Nomvalo: Would you take that opportunity?
Ms Trent: Yes, | would.

Mr Nomvalo: Would you take advantage of it?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nomvalo: Let us start here. There are allegations backed up by evidence which has been
adduced here. SMSes, WhatsApp texts, and so on, which suggest that you had a romantic
relationship with Mr McBride.

Ms Trent: So the issue of my cellphone, | have taken legal advice. | do not want to deal with the
issues of the cell phone. However, | will deal with the allegations or the question on Robert
McBride.

Mr Nomvalo: So the question is, here, we have been given evidence which is suggestive of a
proposition that you had a romantic relationship with Mr McBride.

Ms Trent: It was not a romantic relationship, but we did have a social relationship.
Mr Nomvalo: What is a social relationship?

Ms Trent: We had meals together, and there was an attraction. | do not know what else. It was
an attraction. It was not a romantic relationship.

Mr Nomvalo: Thank you for being honest. Have you ever been in the same room together, both
of you? Not in a restaurant, but in a private space?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 54 of 121



10

15

20

25

30

35

Mr Nomvalo: Thank you for being honest. And at that time, Mr McBride was working for IPID,
was the director of IPID?

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Nomvalo: And on the other hand, you were busy assisting IPID with investigations?

Ms Trent: The assistance in the investigation was not investigation. We were not on the ground.
It was, ‘Could you carry out this? Could you do some desktop research?’

Mr Nomvalo: Even if that is how you describe it, but | am saying at that time, you were assisting
IPID in its work. Let me not say in its investigations, because | know what | want to get for now.
So on the other hand, while you are having this relationship with Mr McBride, you are assisting
IPID on the other hand, in its work. Correct?

Ms Trent: Yeah, but it was not a relationship.
Mr Nomvalo: No, but you have explained it

Ms Trent: So yes, | had communications with IPID investigators and | had socialised with Mr
McBride.

Mr Nomvalo: No, Ma’am. Let us not be all over the place. | am going to guide you through my
guestions. So just follow me here. | am the driver of this conversation. Now, you are busy with
McBride. You are having the relationship that you have described, right? And then on the other
hand, you are assisting IPID in its work.

Ms Trent: So we had the initial investigation of the Phahlane and then there was the...
Mr Nomvalo: At what stage did you have this relationship with McBride?

Ms Trent: January.

Mr Nomvalo: January when?

Ms Trent: 2017.

Mr Nomvalo: When did you start the Phahlane matter?

Ms Trent: So that was in February, 2016 but then obviously there was no investigation. The two
did not come [together].

Mr Nomvalo: Then it carried on, right? The Phahlane investigation.
Ms Trent: Yeah, they carried on.

Mr Nomvalo: And during the course of that investigation, then this relationship emerged
between you and McBride?

Ms Trent: Again, it was not a relationship.
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Mr Nomvalo: No, it is fine.
Ms Trent: We did not chat or phone or anything like that.

Mr Nomvalo: You are not sangomas [traditional healers], so you cannot prophesize that he is
going to a restaurant and go to a restaurant and meet coincidentally. It was coordinated.

Ms Trent: Yes, of course. ‘I am in Sandton. Do you want to get dinner?’
Mr Nomvalo: Yes, so you cannot say you were not speaking on the phone.

Ms Trent: But you know with a relationship, you follow up with someone or see how they are
doing.

Mr Nomvalo: Let us go back to Mr Paul O’Sullivan. Did you do some background check[s] before
you worked for his company?

Ms Trent: No, | Googled him. | think | was 29 or 30. | saw, he had, you know, all these stories
about investigations and that, and | sent him my CV.

Mr Nomvalo: Do you know where he was born and why he came to South Africa?
Ms Trent: As far as | know, he was born in Ireland and came to South Africa for property.

Mr Nomvalo: No, that is not what he told us. He told us that he came here because he was in
love with the weather. So | do not know whether he was in love with the rains or the sunshine.
He was in love with the weather. The question is, did you order yourself to do some investigation
about his history before you joined his company?

Ms Trent: No, | did not. | looked him up. There was no reason for me. | mean, | have never done
that for anywhere else that | have applied for a job.

Mr Nomvalo: Now, there is this company that you were a director under, Forensics for Justice.
Who else was a director in that company besides you?

Ms Trent: So it would probably have been two of the staff or colleagues at Paul O'Sullivan &
Associates.

Mr Nomvalo: Were there no directors who were not South African citizens? Foreign directors?
Ms Trent: No, not that | know of.

Mr Nomvalo Do you know who was funding the company?

Ms Trent: Who was funding Forensics for Justice?

Mr Nomvalo: Yes, where was it getting its funding from?

Ms Trent: From Paul O'Sullivan. | do not think we got any funding.
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Mr Nomvalo: No, so was it not foreign funded?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Nomvalo: Are you sure?

Ms Trent: Yeah, unless someone donated money, but no, it was not foreign funding.

Mr Nomvalo: So there is no funding which they received from an international institution?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Nomvalo: What was your role as a director?

Ms Trent: To basically do exactly the same as what | was doing before, but | was on as a director.

Mr Nomvalo: | did not hear your response when you were talking about your employment at the
Bejani Chauke Foundation. You spoke about Andile Ramaphosa, Bejani, Paul O'Sullivan.

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Nomvalo: What is the story? How did you get employed in the Bejani Foundation?

Ms Trent: So, we had kept in touch. Then when | had resigned, | think something maybe
happened in the media and we messaged and | said, ‘Oh yes, | have resigned from Paul
O'Sullivan.” And then maybe a couple of months later, he sent me a message to say, ‘Listen, | am
looking for someone to run my foundation. Would you be interested in meeting and chatting
about it?’

Mr Nomvalo: Who sent you a message?
Ms Trent: Mr Bejani Chauke.
Mr Nomvalo: So you sent him a message and then he replied.

Ms Trent: No, not replied. He said, ‘Oh. Well, good luck.” And then a few months later, he
messaged me, obviously thought of me knowing that | was looking for another job. | do not know
what he was thinking.

Mr Nomvalo: So you knew Mr Bejani while you were working for Mr. Paul O'Sullivan?
Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Nomvalo: How did you know him?

Ms Trent: Because we were opening a criminal case that had to do with the whole Bosasa matter.
And in one of the affidavits, there was an allegation against Andile Ramaphosa. Paul then, | do
not how he contacted or who, to try and get in touch with Andile Ramaphosa to get his version
of events. Bejani Chauke then came to meet us. Then Andile Ramaphosa came and we met with
him, and that is how | met him.
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Mr Nomvalo: So what was Andile a friend to Bejani Chauke? |
Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Nomvalo: So | am trying to connect the unconnected dots now, because here | am asking
about you knowing Bejani Chauke.

Ms Trent: Yes, that is how | met him.

Mr Nomvalo: You are bringing in Andile Ramaphosa. You are saying there was a complaint against
him. So how does Bejani Chauke come in? The complaint was not against him. The complaint was
against Andile Ramaphosa.

Ms Trent: | skipped a step.
Mr Nomvalo: The dots are unconnected.

Ms Trent: Yes, so at the time, Bejani Chauke was a political advisor to Cyril Ramaphosa, as |
understand. And that was who had contacted us that would liaise.

Mr Nomvalo: No, it does not make sense.
Ms Trent: Okay, should | explain it again?

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, | am saying it does not make sense, but let us move on. You laid a complaint
against Duduzile Zuma.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nomvalo: In what capacity?

Ms Trent: Forensics for Justice.

Mr Nomvalo: Oh, you were still working for that company?
Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Nomvalo: Where did you lay the complaint?

Ms Trent: It was emailed to someone at the NPA.

Mr Nomvalo: Why straight to the NPA, not to the police?

Ms Trent: | think it was 2021. Sorry, | am trying to remember who commissioned it because | can
get back to you on that because | am not a hundred percent sure. | cannot remember.

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, the reason why | am asking here is that when you were explaining your
modus operandi, you told us that you were assisting institutions and two, you were dealing with
complaints which were coming from the members of the public, in the form of whistleblowing.
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Now the question is, here, in the Duduzile matter, you became a complainant. Who complained
to you about Duduzile?

Ms Trent: So it does not have to always be a whistleblower. | also said that if Paul saw something
that he thought.

Mr Nomvalo: So who complained to you about Duduzile?

Ms Trent: So Paul called me up. | think he was overseas and he had sent me some photos or
screenshots and he said, we need to open a case. And we did.

Mr Nomvalo: So you were told by Paul to open a case?

Ms Trent: We agreed to. He called me up and he said we should open a case and that is what we
did.

Mr Nomvalo: So sometimes you just pick up individuals and open cases against them, without
receiving complaints from members of the public about them?

Ms Trent: Well, we are also members of the public, but it was quite a serious issue at the time. |
think that we were justified in doing it at the time.

Mr Nomvalo: Paragraph 17, you are saying, “My CFE qualifications and skills allow me to access
information through a wide range of forensic investigative tools.”

Ms Trent: Correct.
Mr Nomvalo: What investigative tools do you have?

Ms Trent: So that would be service providers that you would have a contract with, and then you
would submit a request. So it would be sort of the deeds office, or if you need to, a number plate
of a car, that kind of ownership.

Mr Nomvalo: You say, “My work included forensic investigations, compiling of criminal dockets.”
Are criminal dockets not opened by police officers?

Ms Trent: So it is a criminal docket, and then once you have opened the case, that is a docket.
Mr Nomvalo: Where, in your office?
Ms Trent: No, you do the investigation.

Mr Nomvalo: No, but you cannot open a criminal docket. Maybe you are talking about a file in
your office, not a docket.

Ms Trent: Yeah, so that becomes the docket.

Mr Nomvalo: No, but dockets can only be opened by police officers in a police station. And your
role as a complainant ends in submitting a sworn statement as a complainant.
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Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nomvalo: And then they take further their investigations, and if they feel that there is prima
facie evidence, they open a docket. So where do you get powers to open a docket?

Ms Trent: No, they open a docket when you go to the police station. We would always have
something prepared with statements and evidence, and we will go there and we will say, ‘Okay,
we need to open the docket with the police.’

Mr Nomvalo: No, no, my problem with you is that you are giving yourself powers you do not
have. You are saying here, your responsibility includes compiling criminal dockets. You do not
have powers to open a docket.

Ms Trent: | did not say a SAPS docket.

Mr Nomvalo: So your offices have dockets?

Ms Trent: It is a docket. It is a case that you have put together, and that forms the docket.
Mr Nomvalo: So you have dockets in your office, is that what you are telling us?

Ms Trent: | do not have SAPS dockets in the office.

Mr Nomvalo: You are complaining here about a man who was driving you to the police station
eating popcorns. Was that a police officer?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nomvalo: He was eating popcorns?

Mr Trent: He is eating and driving like this.

Mr Nomvalo: Where was he eating popcorns?

Ms Trent: It was in between the seats.

Mr Nomvalo: So then he almost caused an accident because he was eating popcorns?
Ms Trent: It felt like it.

Mr Nomvalo: There is a complaint here by Adv Mashoga, that the memorandum, which was
compiled by two DPPs leaked. And here in your statement, you are quoting a memorandum. Hon
Ngola has asked you about that memorandum. A memorandum leaks and in your statement, you
write about it. You quote it. How did you get access to a leaked document, if it was not leaked to
you?

Ms Trent: | do not think it was leaked.

Mr Nomvalo: Do you have people you are working with in the NPA?
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Ms Trent: No.

Mr Nomvalo: Do you have journalists that you are working with?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Nomvalo: Do you work with AfriForum?

Ms Trent: No, | do not.

Mr Nomvalo: But your boss admitted here that he works with AfriForum.
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Nomvalo: So how is it possible that he works with AfriForum and you do not work with them,
whereas you do the same thing?

Ms Trent: Remember, | have not been there for four years.
Mr Nomvalo: Thank you.

Mr Skosana: Good evening, Mr Sarah-Jane Trent.

Ms Trent: Good evening, Hon Skosana.

Mr Skosana. | am going to start by following up to my colleague. The issue which he was trying
to traverse with you, the Bosasa story of Andile. You said that Paul O'Sullivan called you. He was
called by Dr Bejani Chauke, am | right?

Ms Trent: No. Paul, | do not know who he contacted or how, he wanted to get Andile
Ramaphosa's version of events on the allegations that were made in an affidavit in respect of
corruption or corruption adjacent allegations to do with the Bosasa. That is how it sort of came
about.

Mr Skosana: So it was Dr Chauke who called Paul?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Skosana: Now, in the case of Dudu[zile] Zuma-Sambudla, who said you must open a case
against her? Was it Paul or was it Andile Ramaphosa? Was it President Ramaphosa or was it Dr
Chauke? Or you opened that case on your own?

Ms Trent: | opened the case, but Paul had called and said, ‘Have you seen what is going on? We
should open a case.” And | said, ‘No problem, | will open it. | will be the complainant.” And that
was how it happened. He was overseas.

Mr Skosana: Right. Let us come to the issue. | want us to be clear about this matter. Your
relationship with Robert McBride, you said this is a social relationship?
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Ms Trent: Semi-social. | mean, we are not like friends. | do not know if you know when you have
got an attraction to someone, but you are not interested in a relationship or anything like that.
We are all human. That is what it was. It had nothing to do with ‘Let us hang out, so that you can
do this for me at IPID.’

Mr Skosana: | just wanted to clear up there because you ended up saying to Hon Nomvalo that
you were once in a room, not in a restaurant. You and him. Am | right?

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Skosana: The rest is history, | guess.
Ms Trent: Not too often.

Mr Skosana: Now, let us come to the issue. Mr O’Sullivan said he had visited Phahlane’s home on
his own without the IPID investigators before November 2016. Were you with Paul O’Sullivan on
the day?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Skosana: Once you heard Paul O’Sullivan going to Sable Hills to conduct an investigation,
which law allowed you to do so?

Ms Trent: | do not know if there is a law that allows you to look at someone's house from the
outside, or not to look at it from the outside.

Mr Skosana: | understand that. | am still coming to that. Okay. Now, on that first occasion, | am
putting it to you now, there was no IPID? Did Paul told you that he went there alone?

Ms Trent: There would not have been. Actually, | cannot say that. | was not there. | did not know.

Mr Skosana: You said the lifestyle audit on Phahlane and his wife was done. Who conducted that
lifestyle audit? And where is that lifestyle audit report as we speak now?

Ms Trent: Mr O’Sullivan did that. And | think he set out his findings, which includes the house and
the building thereof, which would be in the criminal complaint with IPID.

Mr Skosana: But you drafted a statement of the people, among others, Alvain Du Preez, am |
right?

Ms Trent: | am just trying to think.

Mr Skosana: Okay, let me put it to you quick[ly], because of time. You sent that to Mahlangu on
his request. Where is that draft statement as we speak?

Ms Trent: Which draft?

Mr Skosana: Remember, | asked you about the lifestyle audit, about the Phahlane and Phahlane’s
wife?
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Ms Trent: Is this before the investigation started at IPID, or?
Mr Skosana: No, even after you visited Sable Hills.

Ms Trent: | do not know. | thought that you meant the lifestyle audit that was in the criminal
complaint.

Mr Skosana: | am not sure why you are mixing the two. Relax a bit. You went to Mr Fricky
Terblanche, the building contractor, with Mr O’Sullivan, Binang, [and] Mahlangu?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Skosana: Right, the following day after you visit Mr Terblanche and his wife’s workplace in
Sinoville, you invited Mr Terblanche to the office of IPID for a meeting. You provided him with an
address of IPID offices and the time of which they must attend that meeting. Who gave you the
authority to do so? Are you an IPID official?

Ms Trent: | am not.
Mr Skosana: But you invited them to come to IPID offices.

Ms Trent: |did, but we had been in the meeting, and so he knew that | was not an IPID official.
And he knew that we were assisting. It was a message that was dictated to me while we were
driving.

Mr Skosana: Were you a partner to O’Sullivan in the company, a director for that matter?
Ms Trent: [Yes], from 2021. It was probably only a year.

Mr Skosana: So in 2015, when you were doing the Transnet, if you remember well, you remember
the Transnet?

Ms Trent: Was | doing, in 20157

Mr Skosana: Yes. Let me remind you, before we come back to that, because | want to follow this
with you. In 2015, you called it “Any pot in a storm.” It was authored by you. Do you remember
that?

Ms Trent: Oh, | do.
Mr Skosana: You authored that report, and O’Sullivan approved it.
Ms Trent: Gosh, | cannot remember that one.

Mr Skosana: Hence | was asking you to say, you said you started in 2022 to become a director,
am | right?

Ms Trent: No, 2021.
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Mr Skosana: But for me, you are misleading this Committee, if you say so. This report, which was
ordered by you, “Drafted Sarah-Jane Trent, Bachelor of Law, LLB, Executive Director. Sarah Trent,
Forensic for Justice.” And then approved by Paul O’Sullivan, the founder. That report was done
in 2015. It is here with me, in front of me.

Ms Trent: Can | see that?
Mr Skosana: You will see it.
Ms Trent: | would never have signed anything in 2015.

Mr Skosana: In fact, | am the one who is making a mistake. It was 2018. So if you say you become
a director in 2022, it is misleading. The report was done in 2018/11/18. You drafted an 18-page
report.

Ms Trent: | will follow up on that.

Mr Skosana: There you were accusing PG Mavundla and the Italian company. Let us go back
there.

Ms Trent: | remember that.
Mr Skosana: Do we agree that you did not become a director in 2022?

Ms Trent: | am just trying to think what happened there, why that would be. Can | come back to
you on that?

Mr Skosana: It is fine. | will give it to the Evidence Leader, the report which you did.
Ms Trent: Please do? Then | go back and have a look and respond.

Mr Skosana: You are the person who called McBride on his first day back in the office following
his suspension and said to him that you are bringing a Phahlane dossier to him. Who compiled
that dossier? Who were the people's affidavits in that dossier?

Ms Trent: | am not sure if it was his first day back. Who compiled that doss[ier]? That was Mr
O’Sullivan.

Mr Skosana: Ms Trent, can you tell us about your investigation in the report of Transnet,
“Widening of Harbour Project”, which is alleged to have been terminated or set aside as a result
of your report? Or | must just shy away because you say you do not remember anything about
that.

Ms Trent: | really do not, but | would be more than happy to go back and have a look and refresh
my memory.

Mr Skosana: Just to remind you, there were black companies who were awarded a contract of
R4.2 billion at Transnet. Now there was WPHO and Group 5, which indeed were the people who
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had an interest in that tender. And the rest is history. | will send you the report and | will send
the evidence later. Now, were you working with Mahlangu?

Ms Trent: Yes, | did not work with him. It is the same thing. If he needed something, but he was
the one that | think | saw or met. If he came to the office and said, ‘Oh, can you quickly run a
check for me?’ | think he was the lead.

Mr Skosana: But you sent a memorandum, an internal memorandum to Karyn who was speaking
about the warrants of arrest. Do you know Karyn?

Ms Trent: No, | do not.

Mr Skosana: But it is your WhatsApp message to Mandla.

Ms Trent: | do not know if it is my WhatsApp.

Mr Skosana: Remember, there was a braai which took place at 15:00. You remember that braai?
Ms Trent: At the infamous Krejcif house?

Mr Skosana: You were part of that braai?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Skosana: Now, you sent that email and you were speaking about Nathi Nhleko and the conflict
with McBride. | mean, this is a conversation between yourself and Mahlangu.

Ms Trent: | do not have any recollection of this. | have no idea.

Mr Skosana: Let me remind you. You said to Mahlangu, “Morning, hope you are feeling better.
What magistrate court will your Section 205 go to? Just finishing the draft.” That was you telling
Mahlangu, that you were finishing the draft.

Ms Trent: | do not know what that is about.

Mr Skosana: Mahlangu responded to you, “l am much better today. | am resting at home. Sorry,
| did not tell you. We [are] actually done with [the Section] 205 and have been signed directly
today. Timane, Cedric will take them to the banks. The one for Vodacom has been sent and signed
by Cullinan Magistrate, and for the banks, it was Pretoria Magistrate Court.” Did you have a good
relationship with those courts?

Ms Trent: No, | do not remember any of this.

Mr Skosana: What | do not understand here, Sarah, [is that] you and O’Sullivan were controlling
Mahlangu and Nkabinde. You were drafting Section 205[s] for them. That is what you said. It is
you WhatsApp messages.

Ms Trent: The thing is, | dispute the WhatsApp messages, but you have put a question to me. So,
a Section 205 affidavit is just an affidavit. So, if you have done an investigation, and | have done
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an investigation and | put it together, right? You know what needs to go in the Section 205, but |
cannot issue or go to the court.

Mr Skosana: | understand that. But what | am asking you, were you drafting Section 205s for IPID?
Ms Trent: Oh, no, he did. There was no bad faith. It was under pressure, lack of resources.

Mr Skosana: From IPID? IPID does not have those things you are mentioning.

Ms Trent: No, | am just saying that we offer...

Mr Skosana: No, | understand that you offer. | am talking about the state here, that you were
drafting a Section 205 because they did not have the capacity.

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. | do not know what it was, because it could have been the skeleton
of a statement. It would not have been the actual official document. Sorry, if | am not answering.

Mr Skosana: Is that correct, in your view?
Ms Trent: What?

Mr Skosana: What you were doing with IPID? When we say the IPID or the security justice system
in this country were infiltrated, we were correct. You were doing that. You are not a member of
IPID. You are not a police woman. Do you agree?

Ms Trent: | am not a police woman.

Mr Skosana: But you were a hundred percent involved.

Ms Trent: | did not involve myself unlawfully at all.

Mr Skosana: No, it was unlawful for you to do that. Mahlangu could have done that himself.
Ms Trent: | think he did.

Mr Skosana: But why then were you drafting for them?

Ms Trent: Just to help.

Mr Skosana: No, there is more to it than what meets an eye. But be that as it may, let us go to
the next one. You have been communicating with Mahlangu here. In fact, your company with
O’Sullivan was in charge of IPID. There is evidence. Let me tell you about the issue with your
correspondence with Mahlangu. “Hi there. Do you have a statement for Alvain?”

Ms Trent: Sorry, Chair? | do not want to be discussing what is on my cellphone records. Please.
The cellphone records, | do not have them. | do not have my cellphone. | do not know where they
come from.

Mr Skosana: But you were responding well. | want to ask you about the use of cash [and] the
issue of using electronic funds transfers (EFT) that were done. You were talking to Mahlangu
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here. There is more. | mean, you went to Sinoville. You wanted an architect to give you a plan.
For what? Do you agree?

Ms Trent: Yes, Mr Frederik Terblanche.

Mr Skosana: Yes, | want to go there. Even if there is no cellphone, is it true or is [it] not true that
you went to the house.

Ms Trent: Yes, we did. | also recorded that.

Mr Skosana: Now, you made emails, proof of payments, and all that. And there is a
disappointment that there's EFT, it was not cash. Cash was only used once. But otherwise, they
were EFT. And this architect gave you the plan. But | wanted the relevance of the plan. Why did
you ask for a plan for somebody’s house?

Ms Trent: | did not get any of that. | did not understand.
Mr Skosana: Remember, the meeting was set up between 15:00 and 16:00 by you.
Ms Trent: With Terblanche?

Mr Skosana: Yes. You were communicating with Mahlangu — Mahlangu’’s work was done by you.
You were not an official. It was illegal for you to do that. Hence, | am saying to you [that] you
were in charge of IPID.

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Skosana: | mean, you said you were helping them.

Ms Trent: It is absolutely not true. | did nothing illegal, nothing unlawful.
Mr Skosana: So you do not feel any compassion on that?

Ms Trent: | would not do it again. But | did not act unlawfully.

Mr Skosana: Can you please state the period during which you were supporting IPID in the
investigation? And how many cases did you handle that involved individuals from IPID?

Ms Trent: So it was the Phahlane matter.
Mr Skosana: It is about two or three?

Ms Trent: How many cases?

Mr Skosana: Yes.

Ms Trent: So it was only that one. And then there were a couple of searches that | did, which |
am assuming was for another matter. But | was not involved in investigating any other matter.

Mr Skosana: So you do not know how many cases you have done with IPID?
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Ms Trent: No, no. You are misunderstanding me. | have not investigated any other cases or been
involved in any other, or opened a case with IPID. | do not know if that is what you are asking me.

Mr Skosana: But remember you said to Hon Nomvalo, when he asked you about the dockets. And
with Paul O'Sullivan, | have said that to him, because he has been saying he opens docket[s].
Opening a file is not opening a docket, or giving statements to the police is not opening a docket.
Only the police can open the docket. Do we agree?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Skosana: So this issue of Paul O'Sullivan and you saying you are opening a docket is wrong.
Now, are the individuals involved in those cases still employed at IPID to which you were helping,
like Mathews Sesoko?

Ms Trent: | do not know. | think he is at the Investigating Directorate Against Corruption (IDAC).
Mr Skosana: What instrument have you used to spy on Dudu(zile]?

Ms Trent: On who?

Mr Skosana: On Dudu Zuma.

Ms Trent: What instrument to spy on her?

Mr Skosana: Yes.

Ms Trent: Oh my gosh. | have never spied on anyone.

Mr Skosana: Did you never use Pegasus?

Ms Trent: Never.

Mr Skosana: At all?

Ms Trent: Never.

Mr Skosana: Are you sure?

Ms Trent: | swear to God.

Mr Skosana: Did you have any permission to spy on Dudu?

Ms Trent: No, | never spied on her.

Mr Skosana: Does the police have an authority to spy on any citizen, in your view?

Ms Trent: | guess if they have a warrant. | am not exactly sure how they do the interception and
that kind of thing.

Mr Skosana: Now, you say you have never used Pegasus for spying.
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Ms Trent: Never.
Mr Skosana: Did Paul use Pegasus or your company use Pegasus to spy on Dudu?

Ms Trent: Never. | cannot speak for Paul. | cannot imagine him doing so, but never. Pegasus is
very serious. | have looked at it because | thought maybe they were using it on me. | have never
heard of this allegation.

Mr Skosana: Who called O’Sullivan, President Ramaphosa or Dr Bejani?
Ms Trent: | doubt it was...

Mr Skosana: No, you said it.

Ms Trent: What | said earlier?

Mr Skosana: You said President Ramaphosa called O’Sullivan.

Ms Trent: No, he did not.

Mr Skosana: So who called him?

Ms Trent: Bejani Chauke was then put in touch with Paul, but | was not privy to the
communications as to how that came about. So | do not know or remember. He could have sent
an email or a WhatsApp and then someone would have said, ‘Well, Dr Chauke is the person to
liaise with and speak to him.’

Mr Skosana: Did Mr O’Sullivan have direct access to investigators, prosecutors or IPID officers
during the course of all this investigation which you were involved in?

Ms Trent: When you say access, in what [way]?
Mr Skosana: To investigators.
Ms Trent: If there was new information that came to light, then he would.

Mr Skosana: So do these communications suggest the possibility of a coalition between private
actors and state investigators and has been independently, in your view, investigated? You as
well said that you were drafting papers for IPID investigators — Mandla for that matter, and Cedric
Nkabinde. | am not thumbsucking.

Ms Trent: Drafting a skeleton affidavit does not mean that | was doing anything wrong.

Mr Skosana: No, but you were saying that that was the evidence which you were drafting, that
was you who said so. So my question was to you, why were you doing that?

Ms Trent: | hear you.

Mr Skosana: My last one. Do you have regrets of working with Mr Paul O’Sullivan in other
matters?
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Ms Trent: | mean, | do not have any regrets of the matters we have worked on.

Mr Skosana: So are you saying that you can repeat what you've been doing without any doubt?
Because for me, | am a bit ambivalent with you.

Ms Trent: | have a completely different way of doing my work.

Mr Skosana: No, no, but my question is, if you have been given another chance, will you do the
same thing which you were doing over years with Mr O’Sullivan?

Ms Trent: No.
Mr Skosana: So you have some regrets?

Ms Trent: That is just too general a question. Let me first understand what you are asking before
| answer.

Mr Skosana: No, no, | was asking you that if you have to repeat what you have done in the past
few years you work with Mr O’Sullivan, will you still do the same thing?

Ms Trent: Everything?
Mr Skosana: Yes.
Ms Trent: | do not know if | can answer that.

Mr Skosana: Intimidating people and threatening people and extorting people as well. So you will
never do that again?

Ms Trent: | did not send threatening emails.

Mr Skosana: No, no, it is him. Remember, it is your company as well.
Ms Trent: No, you are right. | do not agree that is the way to speak.
Mr Skosana: You will never repeat it again?

Ms Trent: Never.

Mr Skosana: Thank you.

Mr Shongwe: Hon James [Mr] McBride if he was in a relationship with you. His answer was no.
Did he lie?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Shongwe: You were asked, were you in a relationship with McBride? You said, yes, but a social
relationship.

Ms Trent: | was not in a relationship with him.
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Mr Shongwe: Did you lie?

Ms Trent: When?

Mr Shongwe: When you said you were in a relationship with him, but it was social.

Ms Trent: | said | was not in a relationship with him.

Mr Shongwe: The question is, did you lie?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Shongwe: The message on your phone.

Ms Trent: | am not going into my messages.

Mr Shongwe: When you said to McBride, “two blue balls”, what were you talking about?

Ms Trent: | do not know if those are my phone records. | am not going into my phone records.

Mr Shongwe: Why did McBride hate that you called him a horse? And you were angry when he
said, “Do you want a bang?”

Ms Trent: What? Chairperson, | need protection, please.

Mr Shongwe: These messages were obtained when you were arrested.

Ms Trent: No, that was stolen. It is [the] subject of a criminal investigation.
Mr Shongwe: Your phones were seized when you were arrested.

Ms Trent: | am not discussing my cellphone records. | will answer anything, but | am not
answering that.

Mr Shongwe: Something else now. Have you slept with Mr McBride?
Ms Trent: Not answering that.

Mr Shongwe: Were you in an intimate relationship with him?

Ms Trent: Not answering on my cell phone.

Mr Shongwe: It is not on your cellphone. | am no longer there.

Ms Trent: Okay.

Mr Shongwe: Have you ever slept with Mr McBride?

Ms Trent: Yes, | have.

Mr Shongwe: So you were not in a relationship?

Ms Trent: | was not in a relationship.
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Mr Shongwe: What is that? What do you call that?

Ms Trent: Um, a hookup.

Mr Shongwe: How many times?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Shongwe: Were you a weapon used by Mr Paul O’Sullivan?
Ms Trent: No. | will take my revenge if | was.

Mr Shongwe: Before we go somewhere, let us start here. Duduzile Zuma writes a tweet on
Twitter. And you go and open a case against her, correct?

Ms Trent: There were quite a few tweets and videos.
Mr Shongwe: And you opened a case because of those, right?
Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Shongwe: Andile Ramaphosa is alleged to have been part of the Bosasa issue and saga. Why
did you not open a case? Why did you go for clearing his name?

Ms Trent: Well, if you compare the two matters, firstly, you would have to ask Paul about why he
wants to contact for that version of events. But if you compare the two matters, that was [the]
2021 riots. | mean, that brought the country to its knees. It is very different.

Mr Shongwe: Remember, they said | have 10 minutes. So the question is, Duduzile writes a tweet.
You open a case. Andile Ramaphosa is implicated in the Bosasa issue. You do not open a case.
Why?

Ms Trent: If you look at the two cases, the one of Andile Ramaphosa, it was an alleged allegation.

Mr Shongwe: But Duduzile Zuma, it is an alleged as well. You were in court, right now, where you
were asked ‘Do you think this is political?’. You said ‘Yes.’

Ms Trent: Do | think what is political?
Mr Shongwe: The attack on Duduzile Zuma.
Ms Trent: | did not say yes.

Mr Shongwe: You did. Let us go back. The question is very simple. Bosasa is a corruption case.
You are known in your organisation to be hating on corruption, right?

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Shongwe: Andile Ramaphosa is implicated there.

Ms Trent: Yes.
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Mr Shongwe: Did you investigate? You went straight for clearing the name. First thing you said,
you said Ramaphosa called Bejani.

Ms Trent: | do not know.
Mr Shongwe: Ramaphosa called Paul O’Sullivan. You said that. It is on record.
Ms Trent: No, | never said [that].

Mr Shongwe: Do you want to correct that maybe? Let me repeat to you. You said “Ramaphosa
called Paul. Then Bejani comes in[to] the picture to clear this matter.” We will rewind the video.
| did check it. You said that. Now, my question specifically is this.Why on Duduzile Zuma, you go
and open a case, but on Ramaphosa's side, when he is implicated in corruption, you do not
investigate, you do not open a case, you go for clarification of his name. Why?

Ms Trent: It has to do with both the cases. It is not as simple as...
Mr Shongwe: Are you sure you are a lawyer?

Ms Trent: | am a non-practicing [attorney].

Mr Shongwe: Did you study law?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Shongwe: Seriously? | am not that good in English, but | am going to ask you this question
again. Try to listen to my question. Why on Duduzile Zuma, you went and opened a case on those
allegations?

Ms Trent: She was inciting violence and brought the country to its knees. Andile Ramaphosa was
alleged to have received something in a bank account. That was it. It was very different.

Mr Shongwe: Was there money received by Andile?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Shongwe: Are you sure?

Ms Trent: The allegation was about him receiving money into an ABSA bank account.
Mr Shongwe: From?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember.

Mr Shongwe: Wait a minute. Let us not rush. You say the allegation was about him receiving
money from Bosasa, right?

Ms Trent: And then | corrected myself.

Mr Shongwe: Okay.
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Ms Trent: It was about a bank account. It was something about an ABSA [bank account]. And we
checked whether there was an ABSA bank account registered in his name.

Mr Shongwe: And money was in that account, right?

Ms Trent: He did not have an ABSA bank.

Mr Shongwe: Money was in that account.

Ms Trent: If | am remembering the bank name correctly...

Mr Shongwe: Okay, let us make it easy. On this side, you went to clear his name immediately. On
this side, you went to open a case immediately. Are you with me? Why is there unfairness? Why?
Because it is Ramaphosa? Are you getting something from Ramaphosa?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Shongwe: Do you think Paul is still friends with Ramaphosa?
Ms Trent: | do not think [so].

Mr Shongwe: Have you met President Cyril Ramaphosa?

Ms Trent: | have not.

Mr Shongwe: Okay. When last did you speak to Paul O'Sullivan?
Ms Trent: Yesterday.

Mr Shongwe: On [the] phone?

Ms Trent: Or today. | mean, | saw him a bit.

Mr Shongwe: Before yesterday and today?

Ms Trent: We have been chatting since there was the talk of me being called. | was not very
happy, so | told him that he needs to come.

Mr Shongwe: Since you say you studied law, do you understand what infiltration is in regard to
IPID? What would be infiltration?

Ms Trent: Maybe you could tell me what it could be.
Mr Shongwe: Between you and Paul O'Sullivan, who infiltrated IPID?
Ms Trent: Neither.

Mr Shongwe: Let us qualify this with a definition. Infiltration is a person who works in a space
where he is not supposed to be, right? Like being in and going to Phahlane’s house as an IPID
official, that would be wrong, right?
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Ms Trent: No.
Mr Shongwe: If it was the case, going to Phahlane’s house as an IPID official.
Ms Trent: | was not going as an IPID [official].

Mr Shongwe: No, | did not say you went. You are saying that. Did you go to Phahlane’s house as
an IPID [official]?

Ms Trent: | went to Phahlane’s house. | did not go as an IPID [official].

Mr Shongwe: Now you have answered that question and | did [you] a favour and asked you that
guestion. Now, this is a different question. | am asking, if you went to Phahlane’s house as an IPID
official, that would be deemed wrong, right?

Ms Trent: Sorry, | do not understand.
Mr Shongwe: Who between you and Paul O'Sullivan infiltrated IPID?
Ms Trent: There was no infiltration, neither.

Mr Shongwe: Let us test your law again. Is it allowed for a civilian to have information from an
official, from a minister, or information that is supposedly to be known by an IPID official only?
For example, McBride gives you an ID number of Hon Nhleko. Was that correct? Was that in law?

Ms Trent: | do not remember if he sent me the ID number.
Mr Shongwe: He did. Was that correct?
Ms Trent: | do not see that that was illegal.

Mr Shongwe: Why not? Are you sure you are a lawyer? Why not? If | am a police officer and | give
you information in my docket as a civilian, is that lawful?

Ms Trent: You have to understand that as a certified fraud examiner... | do not know how to
explain it.

Mr Shongwe: Are you allowed to mingle with the dockets of IPID in terms of law?
Ms Trent: It depends if we...

Mr Shongwe: Are you sure you studied law? | am going to ask you again. Are you sure you studied
law?

Ms Trent: | did.
Mr Shongwe: Are you allowed to be touching documents or dockets that are from IPID?
Ms Trent: Not without their consent.

Mr Shongwe: So did McBride give you consent to give information?
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Ms Trent: To? What information?

Mr Shongwe: You said you must be given consent before you start handling information.
Ms Trent: No, no. | cannot demand to look at information from them.

Mr Shongwe: But if he gives it to you, is he doing a lawful thing?

Ms Trent: It depends. No, not necessarily. | do not see why he would...

Mr Shongwe: Where did you study your law [degree]?

Ms Trent: UNISA.

Mr Shongwe: Is UNISA credible in terms of law? | want to study law and | want to go to UNISA.
Now | am starting to doubt it. Is it credible?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Shongwe: Do you trust it? Do you think they did a good job on you? Let us go again. Are you
allowed to have information of the minister? Is Mr McBride allowed to give you such
information?

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Shongwe: Is he allowed? You are saying that on record?

Ms Trent: At the time, | did not believe that there was anything wrong or anything unlawful. If
evidence is presented to the contrary, so be it. It was not some... Sorry.

Mr Shongwe: Let us leave that. Just put it on record that you and McBride did something very
wrong, especially McBride. A case must be opened on that matter. Now, did you and your cabal
that had a meeting, apparently with two DA members, AfriForum and journalists, did you have
control of [the] media?

Ms Trent: When you say control?

Mr Shongwe: Did you control journalists? Did you know information before it appeared on the
media?

Ms Trent: Sometimes.
Mr Shongwe: Why was that? Do you have friends in the media or you have control of the media?
Ms Trent: Well, Paul usually CCs every single journalist or media house.

Mr Klopper: Good evening, Ms Trent. You spoke on contracts with companies that are part of the
forensic tools, which are at your disposal. Which companies are they specifically? Can you give
me a list of names?
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Ms Trent: Sure. It is TransUnion, CPB, so Credit Profile Bureau, Maricit. And so, for me, if a lawyer
or a certified fraud examiner has certain things that they have access to, whereas an estate agent,
that is what | can think of at the moment.

Mr Klopper: That is fine. Ms Trent, how are citizens protected by abuse by this system? | am not
saying you are corrupt. | am asking if one were to be corrupt and have access to these systems,
would it put a citizen at risk?

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Klopper: Is there anything in place to prevent abuse?

Ms Trent: So, | do not know. | think that the best would be to look at how their structures are.
But for me, if | do a search, | have to have a reasonable suspicion of something.

Mr Klopper: A reasonable suspicion? Who do you give that to?

Ms Trent: Yes, exactly. | am not making a judgement, but it is a good question, you know, how
are the public protected from that? Because | think only a certain... Sorry, | am rambling.

Mr Klopper: When you went to Sable Hills with Mr O’Sullivan, you were working for him, correct?
Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Klopper:And you mentioned that you were pretty new at that stage?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Klopper: Is it fair [to say] that you were under his directive at the times when you went to
Sable Hills as an employee?

Ms Trent: Absolutely.

Mr Klopper: You were, as you describe it, “new”. So, at the time, did you even consider the
allegations that could arise, such as unlawful presence, undue diligence, access to protected
information?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Klopper: Do you think that there was a possibility that Mr O'Sullivan may have known that
there are consequences to such actions?

Ms Trent: | do not know.
Mr Klopper: Just a possibility?

Ms Trent: Yeah. | am sitting here today for a reason, you know.
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Mr Klopper: You described your CFE qualification, and you described your work, including
compiling criminal dockets, assisting branches of criminal justice systems in investigations. Were
you ever contracted by a state body, directly or indirectly?

Ms Trent: Directly.
Mr Klopper: Was all the work done via private clients?
Ms Trent: Private clients. No government.

Mr Klopper: You do say that IPID officers requested your assistance on the 9th of November,
2016. And you were satisfied under the IPID Act that you were entitled to. So, | am not going to
get into that Section 24, [as] it has been traversed. Here is where things get a little bit blurry, Ms
Trent. | just hope you can assist me. It was mentioned early on, [but] | just did not get a complete
clarity. In 2016, you were certified as a fraud examiner?

Ms Trent: No.
Mr Klopper: Sorry, you were not certified. That only came in 2019.
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Klopper: The evidence for decision at Harvard Kennedy, that was only in 2020, April. You were
admitted as an attorney on the 24th of October, 2016, which is about two weeks before your
assistance was required with IPID. So, Ms Trent, | think this brings me a full circle, because at the
time you started with Mr O'Sullivan, you did not have all the qualifications that you possess today.
| think that really refers to you being new. And you maybe headed into something that you were
not completely sure about. Is that a correct assessment? And if it is not, if you could just try to
assist me then.

Ms Trent: | think it is a bit of a broad [question]. Maybe if you could ask it again?

Mr Klopper: So, | went through your qualifications, and your qualifications seemed to come much
later than when this investigation took place at Sable Hills. | asked you in the beginning that you
were pretty new at the firm with Mr Paul O'Sullivan. You were just admitted as an attorney. You
did not have the forensic expert background that you have now, the certification and so forth.
The circle that | am making is that you might have led yourself or be[en] led into a situation that
you did not know you were letting yourself into at the time.

Ms Trent: You have just made me remember when | was at John Walker Attorneys and for the
insolvency, we also had access to one of those systems. So, when | was doing the checks on the
people that were part of the enquiry. That was for a law firm. So, here in 2016, it would have
been on that | had had a law degree and working in Paul O'Sullivan [& Associates]... | do not think
| am answering your question.
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Mr Klopper: Do not worry. | just want to quickly find out who initiated the contact again, if you
can just clarify. Was it IPID towards Paul O'Sullivan's office? Or was it Paul O'Sullivan that
contacted IPID?

Ms Trent: So, when Mr McBride was returned to IPID, Mr O'Sullivan said to me, ‘See if you can
get a meeting with Mr McBride because we need to present this complaint. It is about the acting
National Police Commissioner. It is a big deal.” That is what | did.

Mr Klopper: And for how long did you work on that case specifically? You can just estimation,
days, months, weeks?

Ms Trent: So, it was the two Sable Hills, the Terblanche, the Alvain Du Preez, then there was the
death threat, and then there was the whole sort of kidnapping, arresting, all of that debacle.
From there, there would be one or two enquiries every now and again.

Mr Klopper: | just want to make sure about your duties versus those of Mr O'Sullivan, because |
want to differentiate between the work that you did. And everything you have described, even
when you were the director, and | mean this with no disrespect, it sounded more like you were
doing PA work. And | just want to know the difference between the work you did and the work
that Paul O’Sullivan did.

Ms Trent: So, by the end, | was sort of running my own matters. Paul was away most of the time.
So, when we are talking about 2016, 2017, that was a very different story by the time | left.

Mr Klopper: 2016, specifically?
Ms Trent: 2016, yeah, it was whatever | was told to do.

Mr Klopper: So, who was doing the bulk of the forensic work and the checks? Who was making
the decisions? Was that Paul?

Ms Trent: Yes, that was Mr O'Sullivan. | did not make any decisions.

Mr Klopper Why did you need to run checks on persons of interest? Are they unable to do it? |
just want to understand the reasons for you needing to do the checks — or at least the firm having
to do the checks. Why was IPID not capacitated to run their own checks, [and] do their own
research? Is it that they did not have resources? We are trying to understand what the problem
is in IPID, what the problem is in SAPS, whether it could be in the NPA. And if the problem is
resourcing and then that is why they could not do it, then we understand the reasoning behind
it. So, that is why | am asking you that specific question. So, try to limit it within what were the
reasons you needed to do that specific work for IPID.

Ms Trent: Okay. It was the quickest way to get information for their investigation. | am assuming,
| do not know what helped them as investigators because | cannot speak for them. If it is an IPID
member, they are investigating crimes. And therefore, that would be the purpose. And | am not
sure whether they have the capabilities to do this.
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Mr Klopper: Ms Trent, you spoke about [how] you accompanied the IPID investigators to Sable
Hill[s] and you said both of you and Mr O'Sullivan went. And in your affidavit, you spoke about
actually supplying desktop support. Why do you think Mr O’Sullivan wanted you to go there as
well? Your duties were secretarial in nature. You were in the office, doing desktop research, doing
checks on the systems and so forth.

Ms Trent: And also an aspiring certified fraud examiner.
Mr Klopper: So it was to learn?
Ms Trent: Yeah.

Mr Klopper: Ms Trent, | think | am going to rest there. | think | have got my conclusion. And again,
| am going to say it, and | do not mean it as an insult to you, but it feels when you do explain that
you are a bit confused as to why certain processes took place. You are not one-hundred percent
sure why you were doing things. It does concern me because | do think, again, and | am going to
repeat my full circle. You were new at a firm, you were told to do certain things, and you
performed the due diligence as to what a worker should do. That is what it looks like to me. |
have listened to you speaking today. | have listened to you when you were speaking to the
Evidence Leader, and it feels like you were led like a cow to the slaughter. | am watching you here
today, and that is just the impression that | get. Thank you very much.

Ms Mathys: Good evening, again, Ms Trent. | want to go to start off with your torture abduction
case. The NPA declined to prosecute?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Ms Mathys: Did you consider going to the Human Rights Commission?
Ms Trent:No.

Ms Mathys: Why not?

Ms Trent: | was back to work on Monday as usual.

Ms Mathys: | also do not think there is a time period on when you can lodge a case, so it might
be something that you want to consider. There was discussions here just prior, when we were on
our break, that you were having a response to your trauma. What is making it traumatic for you
to be here in Parliament, in front of the entire nation, to tell us about the alleged abduction and
torture within SAPS? Do you feel like you are trapped here in Parliament?

Ms Trent: | do not, and | wish that | was not crying. It is mortifying, and | would love to be
composed and answer your questions. This whole Phahlane thing, | thought | had left it [and]
moved on. It was extremely traumatising, this whole thing, and surrounding factors. | was not
expecting to respond this way.
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Ms Mathys: | understand that you might not have been, but | would have thought that it could
have also been a healing process to be able to tell your story on the platform that you have.

Ms Trent: Yes, it is just hard.

Ms Mathys: | understand. When the question came up about Dudu Zuma and you opening the
case, is she convicted? From my understanding, she is still on trial.

Ms Trent: She is still on trial.
Ms Mathys: So when you referred to her, you said you spoke as if she was already [convicted].
Ms Trent: | am sorry, | must apologise for that.

Ms Mathys: When you spoke about Andile, you said alleged corruption, but when you spoke, and
very passionately so.

Ms Trent: Just from the weight of it, but | apologise for making that judgement.

Ms Mathys: You had communication with [Mr] O'Sullivan [and] you referred to this whole
Parliament process. You referred to it as a mess.

Ms Trent: Oh, no. That he has caused a mess for me.

Ms Mathys: Okay, so before the mess that you referred to — his mess — when was the last time
you communicated with him?

Ms Trent: Long time. | think it was 2023, maybe.
Ms Mathys: And then what is the mess?

Ms Trent: You know, | thought | had moved on. We did a lot of good work. Then you have seen
fighting and accusations and everything without considering that it might affect me, one, and the
work that we have done, because it takes away from that. It is just all coming back.

Ms Mathys: Is Paul a bully in your experience?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: Are you afraid of him?

Ms Trent: | am not afraid of him.

Ms Mathys: Has he intimidated you?

Ms Trent: No, he was my employer, so.

Ms Mathys: No, during his mess period?

Ms Trent: No, no. To put in context, last year, | think it was around when he had some fight with
Athol Trollip, and | could not understand what it was. It just became this huge issue about, and |
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could just see all of this happening. | said, ‘Please, do not. It is taking away from what is
important.’

Ms Mathys: Did you get any incentive during your discussions with him on how you should
approach your testimony with us today?

Ms Trent: No, he was just very nice. We chatted about what was going on and what the questions
[were] and that kind of thing, but notin a, ‘l will say what | need to say.’ The days of me not saying
what | want to say are over, if you understand that.

Ms Mathys: Did you have those days with him?

Ms Trent: No, you just do. | do not want to sound like a victim or anything like that, but it, yeah,
itis a job.

Ms Mathys: Do you think he made you do things that you should not have done in retrospect?

Ms Trent: No, but there were things where had | been able to have a say as to, for example, an
email going out, | would have said no.

Ms Mathys: Is there a particular email that you would have said no?

Ms Trent: | just have a very different way of doing this. | think you have covered some of the
emails.

Ms Mathys: That is one of the things you would have handled?

Ms Trent: | would just not write something and send something like that. | am not saying it is
illegal or unlawful or anything like that. And | know that by doing that, it would bring negative
attention back. That is my personal feeling.

Ms Mathys: Anthony Fitzhenry. Do you know him?

Ms Trent: Yes, | do not know him well, but | have met him a few times.

Ms Mathys: Were you not both directors at a company?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: So you were business partners?

Ms Trent: So | was a non-executive. | did not have any sort of role in the company.
Ms Mathys: Is it dangerous to be a non-director?

Ms Trent: It was part of the job.

Ms Mathys: St Helena Corporation were into property development?
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Ms Trent: So | remember when | came to Paul O'Sullivan and Associates, they were looking at, |
think that they were planning on building an airport on Saint Helena [Bay], which would improve
tourism or something like that. So as | understand it was a property development project.

Ms Mathys: Did you know what was in the portfolio when you were a non-director?
Ms Trent: No, | do not think that there was anything.
Ms Mathys: So, that was the only thing they were working on?

Ms Trent: No, sorry. | am confusing myself and everyone else here. There is a St Helena
Corporation, PLC, which is in England, a trading company which has something to do with that.
And then there is the St Helena in South Africa, which | do not think did any trading or anything
like that, but | would not have been involved in any of that.

Ms Mathys: So which one were you a non-director?
Ms Trent: The one that is on the CV.

Ms Mathys: So it had done no trade. It was nothing. It just opened. You signed up to be a non-
director. You put it in your CV and you did not know anything about it. They could have been
laundering money for you.

Ms Trent: No, | called Paul. He said that nothing happened in that company.
Ms Mathys: And you believe him?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: So if someone says to you that Forensics for Justice was not established just or mainly
to expose corruption, but it operated in a way where people who were alleged to be involved in
wrongdoing or corruption were investigated and they were pressured. And when those
individuals lost their assets or their money, then you'd get the likes of Fitzhenry and Paul
O'Sullivan through their companies like Tradewinds Corporation, and they benefited from these
outcomes. So this Tradewinds Company actually bought (name inaudible) house?

Ms Trent: Okay, so what | know of that is that Paul had this whole long history war with Radovan
Krejcif, and the South African Revenue Services (SARS) went in and seized the assets and put it
all on auction. And then Paul, or a company, bid on the house. | read it in the news on the Monday
and then found out.

Ms Mathys: Did you ask him about it?

Ms Trent: No, | was still on the ad hoc basis thing, but when | read it, | was like, ‘I bet you that is
Paul.’

Ms Mathys: It did not make you suspicious of who you were working with?
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Ms Trent: No, | did not think that there was anything wrong because he had this huge sort of
fight. He wanted to kill him and he had been fighting this awful guy.

Ms Mathys: Do you think he was awful too?
Ms Trent: Who? Radovan Krejéir?

Ms Mathys: Yeah.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: Let us go on to Robert McBride. | am not going to ask you about your sex life. Did he
ever ask you to profile a company called SASTEC, S-A-S-T-E-C? We are not going to mention the
names of the people involved, but also requested that you profile the chief executive officer
(CEO) of that company and family members.

Ms Trent: | do not remember.

Ms Mathys: So we would not find messages if those messages of yours is found to be legally
obtained? We will not find a message like that?

Ms Trent: So | cannot deny or confirm. | honestly do not remember.

Ms Mathys: Were you the go-to between Robert McBride and O'Sullivan?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: Why?

Ms Trent: We would be working or whatever, and he would be like ‘Phone this person. Message
this person.” And then | think Paul was a bit late to the smartphone. He had the old Nokia that
you open.

Ms Mathys: You do not think it was strategic on his side, because now he does not have messages
that were downloaded. And that actually might have been used. And you were thrown under the
bus.

Ms Trent: Hindsight.

Ms Mathys: Let us go to the planning matter. In Robert McBride's statement, he says that “IPID
received some information from O'Sullivan and Trent, as they had access to systems that IPID did
not have for investigation purposes.” What systems was he referring to?

Ms Trent: So | think he would be referring to the entities that | just mentioned. It is TransUnion,
CPP, Marisit. | do not know what they have access to.

Ms Mathys: So IPID does not have access to that, or IPID has to do things legally and get requests
to get credit checks, et cetera?
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Ms Trent: | do not know.

Ms Mathys: So you did not ask McBride? A whole state institution is asking you to do it. | did not
bother you that they were not able to do it? It cannot be that IPID cannot do credit checks if they
need to.

Ms Trent: Oh, | mean, look at the resources. Have you been to the IPID offices?

Ms Mathys: Besides that, it cannot be that IPID does not have access to do that, so they were
taking shortcuts.

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Ms Mathys: There was something that was said today that is not making sense, and we did not
get proper clarity. Who took the pictures of Phahlane’s house plans?

Ms Trent: | think Paul O’Sullivan. So he had his phone in the one, and then the camera.
Ms Mathys: So he used a camera because he was using Nokia phones?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: Okay, so he did take the pictures?

Ms Trent: As far as | remember.

Ms Mathys: You were there to take notes so you would remember.

Ms Trent: Yes, | have the recording.

Ms Mathys: So there was this thing that Robert McBride also said that his investigators reported
to him that the reason the two of you went, because you used the fact that you were white to
get information.

Ms Trent: | do remember Paul saying something to that effect.

Ms Mathys: So what does that tell us if our citizens need to have white people to come and ask
them? But you were there and you were part of it.

Ms Trent: | know.

Ms Mathys: Today we asked Mr O'Sullivan if he had a police station in his house, and he said
three. You have stayed at his house a few times.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: It was almost your second home, from what | understand. Have you ever seen police
documents in his house or SAPS materials?

Ms Trent: No.
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Ms Mathys: You have never seen it?

Ms Trent: No.

Ms Mathys: So he was lying when he said he has three?
Ms Trent: So he was not joking?

Ms Mathys: The reason we're asking this is that in 2024, (name inaudible)'s son, Dennis, was
arrested. | think it is in an affidavit that Paul opened the docket in his house. Then the SAPS officer
came to collect it and took it to the police station to finalise it. Do you know anything about that?

Ms Trent: | know nothing about it.

Ms Mathys: The NPA refused to prosecute because the case was so weak. | want to go back again,
Ms Trent, to this certified fraud examiner thing, because | do not understand it fully, and | am
sure South Africans want to know. So tell me, do you have access to a portal of information being
a certified fraud examiner?

Ms Trent: So there is an option, for example, on TransUnion or Maricet. So you say, okay, you
want to find out the company details, like a Companies and Intellectual Property Commission
(CIPC) search, but you have got to choose under what you are doing it. So it is [a] fraud
examination, corruption examination, and you have got to click on that. You can only click on that
if you have been approved by the service provider.

Ms Mathys: So which service provider? So TransUnion, for example?
Ms Trent: So there isTransUnion. | will check if there are any others.

Ms Mathys: And the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, they issue the certificate that you
would use to go and register at TransUnion, for example?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Ms Mathys: Now, this Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, who regulates it? Does a
statutory body regulate them? If | want to go and lodge a complaint against a member, it might
not be criminal. Which regulatory authority would | go to?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Ms Mathys: That is interesting. Okay. So what we understand here in South Africa, | do not know
about in other countries, and even with real estate agents, they cannot go and access your
information without you giving them permission. So you were accessing people's information
without their permission, if you suspected. We do not know about this association, who they
answer to. So, Chair, we want to ask our Evidence Leaders that we write to this association and
get clarity on how are they issuing out certificates; also to the credit unions, TransUnion, Western
Union, and all the others, on how they just allow someone who has a membership that they pay
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for to click and say that they are a member, and then they can just give out information. We have
got very strict privacy records, and people cannot just be accessing information based on them
being suspicious. The polygraph test — are we not going to find any evidence later that this was
something that was instigated between you, McBride, and O'Sullivan? You have agreed that you
facilitated it, but | am asking who instigated it. Was it part of the plot?

Ms Trent: It was not a plot. Basically, how | understand it is, Mokotedi was on the news making
these wild allegations of treason and Arab Spring, and then Paul's overseas. | think maybe Mr
McBride dared Mokatedi to do a polygraph.

Ms Mathys: But was there a discussion amongst the group of IPID people who were doing this
investigation?

Ms Trent: Yes, and then | spoke to both Paul and Robert, and | spoke to the polygraph woman.

Ms Mathys: And then you facilitated it. It was something that was decided, it was instigated here
in response to what was going on outside, that you were being accused of overthrowing the
state?

Ms Trent: Yeah, and it was not anything like, ‘Oh, let us cook up the whole thing.” It was the most
ridiculous allegations.

Ms Mathys: | am not talking about the allegations.

Ms Trent: Sorry, | know.

Ms Mathys: You are saying that your response was to do that?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: Let us talk about why would Paul O'Sullivan say that he was asked to vet possible
national commissioners? | mean, it is even there in his book, and he has done multiple interviews
about that. | am sure you might have even helped facilitate those interviews.

Ms Trent: Which interviews? He is the media guy.
Ms Mathys: Oh, he is the media guy?
Ms Trent: You do not see me in the media until I'm crying on national TV.

Ms Mathys: No, | know that. | am saying you facilitated the interviews for him to go and tell the
world?

Ms Trent: No, | did not facilitate with the media.

Ms Mathys: But do you have anything to say on why he would tell the world that he was asked
to vet possible national commissioners?

Ms Trent: | do not know why he said that.
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Ms Mathys: Is it something that he did regularly just to make up stories and position himself as
it is something he does?

Ms Trent: | would say that things do get exaggerated a lot.
Ms Mathys: | do not think you [are] putting that kindly.

Ms Trent: | just sometimes do not understand why he would say what he says. There is just no
reason. | do not know. And it makes everything very difficult because now you do not know what
you are looking at or investigating.

Ms Mathys: Let us talk about Andile Ramaphosa. What case were you about to open that
implicated him and that you needed to get clarity or to clarify his name? You said you were going
to open a case, and that is how the contact happened. So what was the case about? It was not a
case against him. He was implicated in a case that you were about to open. So what was that
case?

Ms Trent: So we had, | think it was the enquiry, and there was this affidavit of Van Tonder, and
he had made allegations. Around that time, Vincent Smith had tweeted saying that he had taken
a loan from someone from Bosasa, perhaps Gavin Watson. | do not want to say something if | do
not remember it correctly. And that in itself was proof of a corrupt activity. And then there was
a one-sentence allegation. And | think that Paul said, ‘Well, we must either add it or find out what
his version is.” So that is what happened.

Ms Mathys: What case were you about to open [and] against whom?
Ms Trent: It was Vincent Smith.

Ms Mathys: He just got sentenced to seven years today.

Ms Trent: Oh.

Ms Mathys: So my question here is that Paul O'Sullivan, he looks around to see who might be
involved in corruption, digs up some dirt, and then those who he thinks he can extort money
from, and then Andile's name came up. That is how, Andile Ramaphosa, you contacted him. Why
would you just randomly go and say, ‘l am going to go and open a case against Vincent Smith?’
Like the target is high-profile people. And then you go and look on who is involved in this, and
then let us go and see. And then soon after that, you get a job as a CEO.

Ms Trent: Oh, no, no. Not soon after. There was nothing dodgy there.
Ms Mathys: But you were only a CEO there for eight months?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: When you joined, there was no money, or there was?
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Ms Trent: There was, but it was also wanting to expand it, almost like a feasibility, in a way, at
whether it could happen and that, and it just was not going to be possible.

Ms Mathys: What is your relationship with the Oppenheimers?

Ms Trent: | know one of the granddaughters. We have mutual friends.

Ms Mathys: So you know them well enough to stay at some of the holiday homes and lodges?
Ms Trent: Yes, | have holidayed.

Ms Mathys: Through the granddaughter?

Ms Trent: Yes, | am from Stellenbosch.

Ms Mathys: | know you said that. So your relationship with the granddaughter is quite decent
enough for you to say, ‘I need a holiday’?

Ms Trent: No. Basically, | met her through another friend, and | happened to be driving in her car.
We caught a lift and got to know [herr], and then we had a mutual friend who was going away,
and so she hosted his friends for that. That is what happened there.

Ms Mathys: Anything else outside with the Oppenheimer family, outside of holidaying in the
holiday homes?

Ms Trent: With the Oppenheimers?

Ms Mathys: Yes.

Ms Trent: No, only mutual friends.

Ms Mathys: With the granddaughter?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Ms Mathys: And what is the granddaughter involved in?

Ms Trent: | think she runs a family office or something, | am not sure.

Ms Mathys: The social media that you touched on just earlier, you said Paul is the social media
person?

Ms Trent: No, not the social media, the media.
Ms Mathys: Who was responsible for social media?

Ms Trent: | used to just look around. | would not really post. But on Facebook there is a company
that just posts some postcard type thing with the Forensics for Justice thing twice a week or
boosts it.

Ms Mathys: Have you spent or they have spent money boosting social media posts?
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Ms Trent: Yeah, but it is minimal. | do not think they even boost it anymore.
Ms Mathys: But it has been done, boosting on social media?

Ms Trent: | think it reached like a thousand people.

Ms Mathys: And have you ever spent money on boosting matches regarding Lt Gen Phahlane?
Ms Trent: | do not think so.

Ms Mathys: Thank you.

Mr Mncwango: Good evening, Sarah.

Ms Trent: Good evening.

Mr Mncwango: Do you own a company registered under your name?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Mncwango: What is that?

Ms Trent: SJ Trent Pty Limited, but | call it SJ Trent Inc.

Mr Mncwango: What does it do?

Ms Trent: | give services as a certified fraud examiner. So a client will come to me with an issue
and it will usually be about a fraud or financial crime, and then | will look into it and give all kinds
of advice or feedback or a report or something like that.

Mr Mncwango: Is it still operational?
Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Mncwango: Who is the complainant in General Phahlane's case?

Ms Trent: As far as | know, it is Mr O’Sullivan. And | know that there was a Colonel Moonsammy
and there were Police and Prisons Civil Rights Union (POPCRU) guys who gave statements as well.
But the complainant was Mr O’Sullivan.

Mr Mncwango: What is he complaining about?
Ms Trent: Corruption.
Mr Mncwango: What corruption? Can you unpack that?

Ms Trent: So if | had the complaint, it would be able to assist a bit better. He had said something
in the media about General Phahlane. | do not know how it was said. And then because of that,
police whistleblowers came to him and said, ‘Look, we have been trying to have someone
investigate what has been going on at the forensics lab where Phahlane had been’. So he did that
and took statements, and with that, made the complaint to IPID.
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Mr Mncwango: | am asking that because you were part of the team that investigated. What were
you investigating against General Phahlane?

Ms Trent: So the allegations were that service providers to the forensic science laboratories. They
gave us one of the supposed fingerprint brushes, but it was a makeup brush. Now, with a
fingerprint brush, it has to be very fine squirrel hair. So what was happening is that they were
using makeup brushes for fingerprints. And then the other thing is they had expired crime scene
chemicals that were exploding on the scene or in the vehicles. So we got the photos of that and
we got the statements and all of that. Then we had a woman who was a whistleblower as well,
who had intimate knowledge of one of the service providers and their relationship with Mr
Phahlane. That is what it was based on. And then the further investigation would have led to
whatever it led to.

Mr Mncwango: Was corruption part of the issues that you were investigating?
Ms Trent: | think so. | cannot remember. | mean... Corruption, yes.
Mr Mncwango: How does his house then become a focal point of the investigation?

Ms Trent: So what he did was he goes (Paul O’Sullivan), ‘Okay, let us do a lifestyle [audit] on him.’
So he will see there is this property. And then you go on Google Earth and you can see. He then
says ‘Oh, that is a pretty massive house for this.” Then off he went on that. When you compare
the income that he was getting at the time to how much the house had been built, what the cars
he had at the time, it was impossible to have been able to afford any of that. That is where the
red flag came up. This was the head of police for South Africa at the time.

Mr Mncwango: | find it very contradictory. You are actually saying to us that he was the head of
South African police — the national commissioner. Why would he not be able to afford a car?

Ms Trent: No, at the time that the house was built, he was not.

Mr Mncwango: What was he?

Ms Trent: He was heading up the forensics lab.

Mr Mncwango: What was his rank?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Mncwango: Not a Lt Gen?

Ms Trent: | do not know, but | just remember that he could not have afforded it.
Mr Mncwango: Can | put [it] to you that he was a Lt Gen?

Ms Trent: Alright.

Mr Mncwango: Do you know how much they are paid?

Meeting Record — Sarah-Jane Trent 2025-03-05 Page 91 of 121



10

15

20

25

30

Ms Trent: No, we are talking a long time ago.
Mr Mncwango: So what was wrong with General Phahlane building for himself a house?

Ms Trent: Nothing is wrong with building a house. And you know what? Our investigation did
lead somewhere.

Mr Mncwango: You are part of that investigation. What is wrong? Was he the only human being
in South Africa that was building that kind of a house?

Ms Trent: No.

Ms Trent: | see a lot of houses, marvellous houses in Johannesburg. Have you investigated all of
those people?

Ms Trent:No, but | think that if there is a red flag like that, what excuses the chief of police in a
country, just because he is the chief of police. He should be held accountable, and he should not
be protected because he is the head of the police.

Mr Mncwango: | find it hard to accept that. You want to actually condemn the General, simply
because he is head of the police, that he should actually not be actually able to build a dream
house of his own. He is working, he is getting a salary. There are institutions out there which are
ready to actually give him money to go and build a house because he has a stable income and he
is the head of the South African police. Why all the drama?

Ms Trent: | do not believe he could have afforded that.

Mr Mncwango: Paul was here, and he told us that he owns a private jet.
Ms Trent: Paul owns a private jet?

Mr Mncwango: He said so.

Ms Trent: Paul? He has a private plane.

Mr Mncwango: No, Paul O’Sullivan. Does he not own a jet?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: But he told us that he was driving his own jet.

Ms Trent: No, it is a private plane. | do not know if he still has it now, but when | was working for
him, it was like a four-seater plane that you fly.

Mr Mncwango: | was going to ask whether a lifestyle audit has actually been carried out against
him to find out exactly whether he can afford that kind of flight.

Ms Trent: He does not have a jet. Actually, | do not know. At the time, | cannot imagine.
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Mr Mncwango: Let us move on. The question about the photographs that were taken at General
Phahlane’s place has actually been answered. You said Paul O'Sullivan actually took those
photographs.

Ms Trent: As | recall. Correct.

Mr Mncwango: When those two IPID investigators, that is Mahlangu and Binang, came to your
places, | do not know where you met them, they were travelling in an unmarked police car, which
could only accommodate two people.

Ms Trent: | do not know what the car was [and] if it was marked or not.

Mr Mncwango: No, | am not interested in what car [it was]. It could only accommodate two
people —that is what you said.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Mncwango: Because of that, Paul actually said, ‘No. Leave that car. Let us use my car so that
all of us can fitin.’

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Mncwango: Is that true?

Ms Trent: Yes, as far as | remember. That is how | remember it.

Mr Mncwango: So then you drove off to Phahlane’s place?

Ms Trent: Yes. We went into the estate and went down to the manager's office.
Mr Mncwango: All four of you?

Ms Trent: Yes, in the car.

Mr Mncwango: So who was leading the team at that particular time? It could not have been those
two IPID chaps because they knew nobody there.

Ms Trent: Yes.
Mr Mncwango: So between you and Paul, one of you must have been leading that team.
Ms Trent: So when we got there, we walked in. | cannot remember exactly what happened.

Mr Mncwango: No, it must have been one of you. Remember that the whole idea of actually
roping you into that trip to Phahlane's place was because you two are white. It is only one of you
who could actually be able to persuade those people to actually cooperate in the investigation.
So that is why | am asking, who was leading that team between yourself and Paul? Somebody
must have led the discussions when you were talking to the Terblanches, the Joostes, and all of
that crowd.
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Ms Trent: | think Mr O’Sullivan would probably have spoken the most, but the IPID officers, it was
made clear. The thing is, if you do listen to the recordings or see the transcript, you will see that
it is because he knew all the information.

Mr Mncwango: So on that day, the lead investigator was Paul?

Ms Trent: | would not say that, no. He has been investigating matters forever. So it is not like
anyone that does not have [some] sort of experience in an investigation. So it just comes
naturally.

Mr Mncwango: You were requested by the IPID chaps to accompany them simply because they
realised that the colour of their skin is actually going to make it impossible for them to
communicate with those people convincingly. So they roped you in. They phoned one of you, and
then you agreed to accompany them. You even provided transport to them. So the entire
operation was a Paul O’Sullivan operation, backed up by Ms Sarah-Jane Trent and the two guys.
My question is, when you got there, somebody must have led, you know, the discussion between
the two of you because those two already had actually made their disadvantage known to you?I
just want to put [it] to you that you were actually leading that investigation. And secondly, Paul,
when he got there, he took photographs, not Mahlangu, not Binang, but Paul took photographs.
Where are those photographs? What was he taking photographs for?

Ms Trent: As far as | can recall, | do not know.

Mr Mncwango: Alright. Was General Phahlane aware that you were coming to his place?
Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: So you trespassed?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: Did you have any permission to enter and do what you did there? Did you have
his permission?

Ms Trent: Not Phahlane’s.

Mr Mncwango: If you did not have his permission, then you trespassed.

Ms Trent: No, | do not think so.

Mr Mncwango: You were not police officers, were you?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: You went there and you took photographs without his permission?

Ms Trent: We were assisting the IPID investigators and went with them. We did not trespass.

Mr Mncwango: No, | do not care. You were not police officers.
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Ms Trent: No, | never made out to be such.

Mr Mncwango: You entered the premises of somebody without his permission. And to make
matters worse, you took photographs of his place. To do what with the photographs? So | want
to put it to you that you were leading that investigation. When you came back from there, Lt Gen
Mabula opened a case of fraud and impersonating IPID against you. You say in your statement
that this investigation, namely the case that had actually been opened by this General, “Was
effectively a counter-investigation into the corruption allegation against Phahlane”, that is you
saying that, “and only concerned itself with the manner in which IPID was conducting its
investigation.” Now here is the crunch. “It was clear to me, and that is you saying that, that
Phahlane was abusing his authority as acting commissioner of police to protect himself from
investigations and reduce the credibility of IPID witnesses by requiring them to make additional
possibly conflicting affidavits.” Why this? You invaded his privacy. Without his authority, you took
photographs. Why should he not have opened a case against you?

Ms Trent: We were not trespassing.

Mr Mncwango: Did you have permission to go there?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: And then it is trespass[ing]. That is private property, is it not?
Ms Trent: Yes, but | disagree that | was trespassing.

Mr Mncwango: What were you doing? | accompanied

Ms Trent: IPID on their investigation into Phahlane, and one of the parts of that investigation was
the home. | did not trespass.

Mr Mncwango: Are you aware of something called “[the] Phahlane Task Team”?
Ms Trent: Yeah.

Mr Mncwango: What does it do?

Ms Trent: So what | know is in the beginning, the late Mandla Mahlangu... Sorry.

Mr Mncwango: Okay, who are involved there? Who constitutes that Phahlane Task Team? It is
Paul O’Sullivan, and who else?

Ms Trent: Not Paul O’Sullivan. It was Mandla Mahlangu, at some time, Cedric Nkabinde, Timane
Binang, Rapesu, and there was a couple of others.

Mr Mncwango: Robert McBride?

Ms Trent: | do not know if he was on the Phahlane Task Team, but obviously | do not know what
his role was, or how they had their meetings.
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Mr Mncwango: Mr Nkabinde was seated where you are seated right now, and he told us the
composition of the Phahlane Task Team: Paul ‘O’Sullivan, Robert McBride, and the crowd that
you have actually named right now. | wonder why you are running away from mentioning the
name of Paul O’Sullivan.

Ms Trent: No, Cedric Nkabinde must stop his lies.

Mr Mncwango: Nkabinde is a long associate of Paul O’Sullivan.
Ms Trent: Hey?

Mr Mncwango: They used to work together.

Ms Trent: Who?

Mr Mncwango: Nkabinde and Robert McBride.

Ms Trent: Yes, | know.

Mr Mncwango: You cannot say that Nkabinde is a liar, because he was one of the trusted officers
in IPID who was given to investigate very, very difficult and sensitive cases. The braai. You were
very central in that because you invited people to come. Who was there?

v vy

Ms Trent: Angelique Serrao, who is a journalist. She wrote a book called “Krej¢if”. Then it was
Cedric Nkabinde, Mandla Mahlangu, Robert McBride, Candace Coetzee, Anthony Fitzhenry,
Shadrack Sibiya, Paul O’Sullivan, [and] myself.

Mr Mncwango: Was it a braai, a book launch, or a meeting?

Ms Trent: Okay, so | went and got the meat, and Angelique came with her books, and Paul had a
document called “Joining the Dots”. We had a braai, and it was about two hours, and there was
no discussion on taking [part in the] Arab Spring, overthrowing the government, or anything like
that. Unless going through the document “Joining the Dots” was, but that had been released, a
media release or whatever.

Mr Mncwango: You actually classified that gathering as top secret.
Ms Trent: Did I?

Mr Mncwango: Yes.

Ms Trent: Okay.

Mr Mncwango: The invites that you sent out to people were actually top secret. So much so that
when this thing actually was leaked, there was a great deal of panic. Do you not remember that?

Ms Trent: | remember the panic, yes.

Mr Mncwango: Why panic over a braai? Why did you panic?
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Ms Trent: No, no, no, | did not panic. There was this huge thing about what had happened at this
braai, which had not happened. It seemed like there had been some other information. | do not
know what the story was there.

Mr Mncwango: You actually have confirmed that Mr Nbavinde was there.
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Mncwango: Mr Nkabinde, seated where you are sitting right now, told us that in fact it was
not a braai, and neither was it a book launch. It was a top secret meeting to actually concoct a
plot to ensure that General Phahlane is not confirmed as the National Commissioner. So that is
why there was panic when that gathering and the issues that actually were discussed had been
leaked. So what is your take on that? Would you still maintain that it was a braai? Obviously,
when you met there for some time, you would obviously have something to eat. But the purpose
of the gathering was not just for a braai, it was a meeting. Do you have anything to say?

Ms Trent: | never saw it as a meeting.

Mr Mncwango: Why did you actually classify it [as] top secret?
Ms Trent: | cannot remember.

Mr Mncwango: Where was it discussed?

Ms Trent: Paul would have told me what to send, and to whom to send it to. So | probably sent
it to everyone, but it was not me, Sarah-Jane Trent, inviting [people]. Am | answering your
question?

Mr Mncwango: Could it have been Paul who actually said that, ‘Hey, look here, Sarah, because |
do not want issues that would be discussed there to leak, just right on the invite, top secret’?

Ms Trent: It is something he would do to say top secret, because it is just what he would do. But
| do not know. | just wrote it and sent it as a gift.

Mr Mncwango: Can | put it to you that IPID is captured by Paul O’Sullivan, Sarah-Jane Trent,
Robert McBride, and a few others?

Ms Trent: No.
Mr Mncwango: How often do you interact with General Sibiya?

Ms Trent: | met him twice, at that braai, and once, when he was at the City of Johannesburg, |
just went to get a document or something of his.

Mr Mncwango: Was he the only general invited?
Ms Trent: Yeah, the people that | named are the only people that were there.

Mr Mncwango: Does he frequent your offices?
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Ms Trent: No.

Mr Mncwango: Who actually invited him? Who put him on the list of invitees?
Ms Trent: Mr O’Sullivan. | did not get a plus one.

Mr Mncwango: Do you know Adv Mashoga?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Mncwango: Listen to what he has to say, and | am quoting him. He was seated over there
yesterday. He said, “The objective facts set out in this affidavit, and in particular the evidence
emanating from O'Sullivan and Trent clearly demonstrate that IPID, to the contrary, was captured
by O'Sullivan and Trent.” What do you have to say?

Ms Trent: | think it is a ridiculous thing to say. Capturing IPID or an institution, it means a lot more
than a couple of illegally downloaded WhatsApps to show capturing. The criminal justice system
has been captured for a hell of a long time. It is not just now that this is happening. It has been a
long time, and it is very, very broken.

Mr Mncwango: One of my colleagues actually asked you about the Section 205 subpoenas. Listen
to what Adv Mashoga had to say about them: “The evidence clearly demonstrates that Trent and
O'Sullivan even went to the extent of preparing Section 205 subpoenas and statements, which
were presented as if they were compiled by IPID officials.”

Ms Trent: When you say presented, presented to whom?

Mr Mncwango: “Subpoenas and statements which were presented”. could be court or wherever,
“as if they were compiled by IPID officials.” | think the operative word here is “as if”.

Ms Trent: Okay, | think it would be issued to whom?

Mr Mncwango: In other words, you prepared those statements as if they were actually prepared
by IPID. You prepared these documents for IPED to actually prove that IPED actually is in the palm
of your hands.

Ms Trent: No, | disagree.

Mr Mncwango: Thank you.

Mr Sauls: Good morning, Ms Sarah-Jane [Trent].

Ms Trent: Good morning, Hon Sauls.

Mr Sauls: How would you describe your upbringing?

Ms Trent: It was a good upbringing. Where do | start? My father was a farm manager. | do not
know where to start. Would you guide me a little bit?
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Mr Sauls: Anything you want to share about your experiences in your upbringing? What was your
childhood dream as a little girl?

Ms Trent: | have a family member that was a politician in [the] ANC before and after. | said to
him, ‘I want to be just like you. | want to be a politician just like you.” He said, ‘Over my dead
body.” That is the kind of household | grew up in. A small town in Stellenbosch. It is very different
now. Small community.

Mr Sauls: Were you a daddy's girl?
Ms Trent: | do not know.

Mr Sauls: Why do you not want to talk about it? | have a little girl. When someone asks my little
girl, ‘Are you a daddy's girl?’ She starts glowing. You do not seem to have the same reaction.
Why?

Ms Trent: | do not understand.

Mr Sauls: You say at your CV, “Throughout my school and university days, | worked various jobs.”
Then you describe the jobs. You had to work at waitressing, giving wine tasting. But you say
“throughout your school days”. What do you mean by that?

Ms Trent: The rule in our home was, in the holidays, we were not allowed to sit in front of the
TV. We needed to work. Because my dad managed the farm and we lived on the farm, we would
then get a job carrying the wine to the car and getting a tip or, depending on the age, being a
waitress and giving wine tastings. That would be in school holidays. Then, when | was in
Stellenbosch studying, it would be weekends. | would give wine tastings at two farms, because
they would rotate. Students would get jobs in that. Then, when | started studying through UNISA,
then |, through a family friend, found an au pairing job so | could study and then pick up the kids.
Then | would sometimes waitress, maybe three or four times in that evening. That is how | got
those odd jobs.

Mr Sauls: In 2011, you say you packed a suitcase with only the essentials, and made your way to
Joburg.

Ms Trent: Quite literally, yes. Remember, | was studying through UNISA, so | had not gotten very
far in my studies. To try and get your articles as a candidate attorney is near impossible. | made
an Excel spreadsheet of every single law firm in Cape Town and then started with the Joburg
[ones]. Eventually, one company, John Walker Attorneys, got back to me and they said, ‘Listen,
we are now doing this enquiry into Pamodzi Gold, but we need someone on this. You are going
to have to come to Joburg in the next two days.” The time was about 16:30 in the afternoon. |
said, ‘Cool, book me a flight for 14:30 tomorrow.” | had been to Johannesburg once. | literally
packed a bag and the secretary had me on her couch for a couple of days while she helped me
find a room to rent. That is how | got there.

Mr Sauls: You want to go back to how would you describe your upbringing?
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Ms Trent: | had a very good upbringing and [am] very grateful for my upbringing.
Mr Sauls: Why?

Ms Trent: Too many reasons.

Mr Sauls: Give me one.

Ms Trent: It is quite personal.

Mr Sauls: So then in 2015, so now you just have a bag, go to Joburg. You are going to start this
job, sleeping on the couch. You are trying to make a way for yourself. 2015, at age 31, you then
look on Google, see this guy, Mr O'Sullivan. And Google will show you the hero. Google will show
you the master investigator. That is what you are introduced to. Do you have a pen with you?

Ms Trent: Yes, | do.
Mr Sauls: You have a blank page? Draw a six. Do you see the six?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Sauls: Now if | had to stand on the opposite side of you, that same six would look like a nine
to me. You see that? Who would be wrong?

Ms Trent: It depends on which side of the pages it is standing on.

Mr Sauls: So if | say to you, ‘l see a nine’, you say to me, ‘No, | see a six’, who would be wrong?
Ms Trent: | would say, ‘Yes, you see a nine and | see a six’.

Mr Sauls: So neither would be wrong?

Ms Trent: Yeah.

Mr Sauls: So Google was right. But Google only sold you from one perspective, right? Until you
got into it. And you also started seeing the holes. It can exist at the same time. And my fear, Mr
Trent, is that you do not want to talk about the whole and the things that you really experience.
So | am going to try and see if we can get there. | listen to your story and | put it to you that you
are for the boardroom, not the streets. You are about books, not bullets. You are a dove in a
snake's den. And you began to see the whole. It was not as Google showed you. Ms Trent, does
Mr Paul O'Sullivan care about you?

Ms Trent: No.

Mr Sauls: And you are sitting there. The reason why you cannot explain anything to anybody here
is because you are trying hard to explain something that you yourself do not even understand.
Now | am going to give you an opportunity to try and speak about the things you do not want to
speak about. When you could not afford your legal fees, he did not think to pay for you. Ms Trent,
does Paul O'Sullivan care about you?
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Ms Trent: As far as | am concerned, no.

Mr Sauls: During this arrest, his lawyer comes to pick him up. You stand outside, stranded in the
dark.

He drives off, leaves you there alone. Ms Trent, does Paul O'Sullivan care about you? Look around
you. Turn around. Who is here with you? Nobody. He walked out on you again. And yet, you must
sit there and try and cover up these holes. Whilst you are doing that, | am here to warn you, you
are digging a deeper grave for yourself, because you cannot not explain the things that you are
trying to. But, you truly believed that what you were doing was genuinely trying to make the
country better. But | want to show you the holes. And when | show you the holes, you are going
to have to decide. Are you going to be honest about it and say that is wrong? Because you know
what? When you were 38 years old, you resigned. You were not fired. You resigned. Biologically,
your prefrontal cortex.

Ms Trent: Yeah. | had been in a lot of therapy. It was starting to work.

Mr Sauls: Your prefrontal cortex was now online for over a decade. You were no longer
apologising for your boundaries. And you decided, ‘1 am leaving.” That is why you left. And you
walked out. And you went to go help orphans, because that is really who you are. Not what you
have been experiencing for seven years. So now you are in your 40s. Let me tell you, if you are
not going to decide today what you walked away from, you are going to continue walking. You
are going to be stuck at this point for the remainder of your life. You have to make a choice today.
Are you going to open those holes? Or you want to defend it? Walk away. You survived already.
You are independent now. You have your own company. But what you do in the next few minutes
is going to determine whether it is going to pull you back or push you forward. Paul O’Sullivan is
not coming for you. You are alone. Ms Trent, you guys were not investigators. In paragraph 18 of
your affidavit, “On November 9, 2016, Paul O’Sullivan met two IPID officers.” And then you
describe it. And then you say, “they were entitled to receive assistance in their investigations and
were entitled to provide this assistance at their request. This included informing them if and
when we had any new information, carrying out certain forensic report checks on persons of
interest, desktop research, and consulting from time to time.” Now that is within the framework
of the law. You were informants, not investigators. The moment you say you are an investigator,
that is why you put that section there. But that is outside of the legal framework for what you
guys were doing. When you say you were informants, you are then saying you were assisting the
police with information with their investigation. You were not doing the investigation. I'm not
saying it, it is in your affidavit. That is not what you have been saying the whole time. You know
why you have not been saying it? You are about to talk now, and | am giving you the
understanding of what truth is, because that will set you free. You were not investigators. You
were informants. It is described here as you have described it here. It is how it should be. That is
legal. Do you see that?

Ms Trent: | see that.
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Mr Sauls: Now, take me to the day on 9th November when you went to Mr Phahlane’s house.
How did that happen? Did Paul call you?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember. | would have been at the office.
Mr Sauls: So you were at the office. What happened?
Ms Trent: We get in the car, and...

Mr Sauls: No, but how does this happen? You are at the office. You do not know about going to
Phahlane’s house. He comes and tells you.

Ms Trent: | cannot remember, because he could have asked me to call Mandla Mahlangu, or he
called me. I am not sure how the communication was, but at the end of the day, it was agreed
that we would meet at Sable Hills.

Mr Sauls: Yes, but he explains to you, you are going there for what?

Ms Trent: We are going to show the IPID investigators the house and to go and see the estate
manager.

Mr Sauls: Why?
Ms Trent: | cannot remember exactly what was said.

Mr Sauls: Listen, trust me. | have some inclination of what you are going through. It is on you to
just be truthful.

Ms Trent: Absolutely.

Mr Sauls: Now, the idea you have is you are going to deal with corruption. You are going to find
evidence for it. That is you, because that is the impression you are getting, and it is your job. You
are going to get in with your boss, and you are going to go there, right?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Mr Sauls: Do you know what really happened? What really happened, Ms Trent, is that eleven
months ago, before that day, your boss sent a threatening email to General Phahlane, and he
wanted him to deal with General Munu. He gave him 10 days to deal with Munu, and if he does
not, then he is going to take focus off Munu, and he is going to go for him. The ten days passed.
Phahlane refused. He did not do anything, and guess what Paul did? Now, if it was about
corruption, then you guys should then deal with both Munu and General Phahlane, because it is
about corruption. It is not about the person, but because of Paul O'Sullivan's God status, which
you know about, he needs to decide, ‘We are not going after him. We are going after him because
he does not want to do what | tell him to do’, and you just have to follow. You went that day, on
the 9th of November, not because there was some investigation that came up. It is because Paul
O'Sullivan decided to change his target because General Phahlane did not obey him. You guys
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now get there as you walk in. You know there were two IPID officials. Do you tell the staff there,
you are not IPID officials? Do you tell them?

Ms Trent: | do not say | am not an IPID official, but | introduce myself.
Mr Sauls: As what?

Ms Trent: As Sarah-Jane Trent from Paul O'Sullivan and Associates. Look, | would rather give the
recordings or the transcript.

Mr Sauls: It is not your fault. You were not supposed to do that. Your boss was supposed to do
that. Your boss was supposed to say, ‘l am Paul O'Sullivan. These are IPID officials.’

Ms Trent: It is possible that he did.
Mr Sauls: He testified he did not.
Ms Trent: Okay.

Mr Sauls: So you are an attorney, although you are not practising. But there is a legal principle
called the colour of office, where you present yourself as something without saying, but the
impression of the people is that you are: Misrepresentation by silence. And that is what you are
all guilty of. You had a legal duty. Not you, your boss. But if you want to continue to close up the
holes for your boss, you are right in there with him. Your boss had a legal responsibility to say
with his mouth, ‘We are not police officers.” The fact that he did not mean [to do] it was
misrepresentation by silence. Psychologically, all of you knew that if you do not say it, there is a
huge possibility that the perception might be you are together as police, all of you. And you
played the role together. That is why you could ask the questions. When you use the IPID office,
it is all giving the impression that you are part of IPID. Misrepresentation by silence. Do you see
that?

Ms Trent: | see what you are saying, yes.

Mr Sauls: Now separate yourself from that. You know how you do it? Truthfully, which is not a
lie. Your boss instructed you. You were doing your job. You went with the understanding that you
are all fighting corruption. That is the truth. Stop trying to explain something that you have no
clue of. That is how you separate yourself. The semi-social relationship that you had with Mr
McBride, was that meant to be private?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Mr Sauls: No one should know. Do you know why, Mr Trent? To your boss, that too was leverage.
Your access card to information was that relationship. You know why he chose to pay for
McBride's legal fees and not yours? Because you [are] good enough for him to have something
on McBride, and he needs to get him and keep him in his job, because he needs that in order to
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solve these cases. Mr Trent, you were used, but you were brave. You walked away. Keep walking.
All the best.

Mr Wessels: Good morning, Ms Trent.

Ms Trent: Good Morning, Hon Wessels. | am considering if | should ask questions just to get us to
breakfast times. In terms of all the questions, the colleagues have covered me. Chairperson, |
rest. Thank you.

Ms James: Good morning, Ms Trent.

Ms Trent: Good morning.

Ms James: How are you?

Ms Trent: | am okay.

Ms James: You were crying profusely early on. Why were you crying?

Ms Trent: It is this Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD). | was completely fine, and then it all
comes rushing back. It is very overwhelming and embarrassing as well.

Ms James: It is embarrassing.
Ms Trent: It is.

Ms James: The things you have done is embarrassing. So | want to know why you were crying.
Were you crying because you got caught out?

Ms Trent: No.

Ms James: Were you crying because you regret doing everything that you did?
Ms Trent: No, | was crying because of what happened to me.

Ms James: What happened to you?

Ms Trent: | was abducted. My phone was stolen.

Ms James: You were not abducted. Your phone was not stolen. Your phone was booked into the
SAP-13 book at the police station. What makes you think your phone was stolen?

Ms Trent: It was stolen.
Ms James: It was not stolen, | am telling you.
Ms Trent: It was.

Ms James: It was booked into an SAP-13 book at the police station. It was put into a forensic bag
in front of you.
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Ms Trent: Have you got the chain of custody?

Ms James: Yes, | do. So why did you come before and say what happened to you like you are the
victim? You are not the victim here. South Africans are the victims. Our communities, those are
the people who are the victims here. While IPID was meant to be investigating corrupt policemen,
what were they doing? Working hand in glove with yourself and Mr Paul O'Sullivan. You are not
the victim here. You should be celebrating today because Mr Vincent Smith was arrested. You
should not be crying. That was all your doing. You said earlier on. Am | right?

Ms Trent: | opened the case.

Ms James: Yeah, you opened the case. He was finally arrested today [and sentenced] to seven
years imprisonment. Thrill-seeking behaviour. We did it. We won. We made history. And then
you come here today and you tell us that you do not want to talk about the extraction reports
from your phone.

Ms Trent: No, this is illegal.

Ms James: No, it is not illegal.

Ms Trent: It absolutely is.

Ms James: Ma’am, let me tell you something. It is no longer illegal. We have received a letter.
Ms Trent: A letter does not mean...

Ms James: We received the go-ahead from the National Commissioner, General Masemola,
earlier on today, saying that the documents, these extracts were obtained legally.

Ms Trent: No, they were not.
Ms James: They were.
Ms Trent: No, they were not.

Ms James: | do not care what you say. But they were and we have them now. Can you give her a
copy? Is there a copy for her?

Ms Trent: | have [one].
Ms James: You do have a copy?
Ms Trent: Also, a judge determines that in a trial, not the...

Ms James: You know what you are not going to do now? | have 15 minutes. You are not going to
talk when | am talking. That is what you are not going to do here, because you have wasted our
time this entire night lying. The only thing that can vindicate us are these extraction reports.

Ms Trent: | am not dealing with them. | am sorry.
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Ms James: If you do not want to deal with them, | will deal with them. | will read all of these
messages. | was going to be selective in my questioning, but if you are going to give me that
attitude, you will crawl out of here. You have been lying under oath the entire day. You have been
lying about not writing statements. You must pick a side now. Do you want to do McBride or
Mandla?

Ms Trent: You are remembering things wrong.

Ms James: | am what? Be very careful what you say. What did you say to me? No, what did you
say to me?

Ms Trent: | am sorry, but your one is very intimidating. It is putting me off.

Ms James: Yes, you know what, Ma'am? Your behaviour has been intimidating since 2016 to
many victims that you have targeted and plotted against. So this is a taste of your own medicine.
So when you follow people's children and probe their mother's homes, that is intimidation. When
you go through people's private records on their homes, their bank account, when you expose
them like that, that is intimidation. When you are sharing numbers of ministers, when you are
saying, ‘Let us next on our list is the minister. Let us go’, that is intimidation. You came here today
crying. Yet you were going after top cops of this country, and today you are a victim. | do not
understand why you were crying.

Ms Trent: Well, you do not know me.

Ms James: No, | do not have to know you. | know you based on what you were busy with. Based
on these documents. | even lost my trail of thought now. Let us turn to the Phahlane matter. Who
was the complainant in the matter? In paragraph 18, you say IPID requested your assistance in
the case, but if | understand it correctly, you, Paul, your boss, was the complainant. So how does
that work? Can the complainant investigate a complaint? Yet you said earlier on when you were
being questioned that they reached out to you, but Paul was the complainant — that you were
helping IPID. How does that work? Please do not lie. It is late.

Ms Trent: The case is opened. That is what we do is we put cases together. We meet with them
and we say, ‘Look, we do investigate. If you need any assistance, let us know.’

Ms James: So you tell IPID ‘If you need assistance, call us.” Does that even make sense? Are you
listening to yourself? You are embarrassing yourself in front of millions of South Africans right
now. Why did you leave Mr Paul O'Sullivan? Who are you working for now?

Ms Trent: | work for myself.
Ms James: Who do you represent in a matter? Do you know Zunaid Moti?
Ms Trent: | do, but | do not represent him.

Ms James: Who do you represent?
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Ms Trent: | do not want to talk about...

Ms James: You know Mike Miller?

Ms Trent: Yes, | do.

Ms James: Do you represent him?

Ms Trent: | have done work for him, yes.

Ms James: You have done what work for him? In what capacity?

Ms Trent: | have a confidentiality agreement with the client. | cannot talk about their work.

Ms James: Is it not the case that Zunaid Moti is in a major dispute with Mike Miller at the
moment?

Ms Trent: That is correct.

Ms James: Who is representing Zunaid Moti?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Ms James: Paul O'Sullivan?

Ms Trent nodded her head in the affirmative.

Ms James: Why are you saying yes? You just said you do not know. You remembered now?
Ms Trent: Representing?

Ms James: In a dispute. There is a dispute between the two of them, between Zunaid Moti and
Mike Miller.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Ms James: You are representing Mike Miller.

Ms Trent: | am not representing Mike Miller.

Ms James: Are you working for him? You are doing work for him?
Ms Trent: | have done a couple of things for him, yes.

Ms James: Did you tell Mike Miller why you left Paul O'Sullivan? The real reason. You only have
this one chance to come clean, and | cannot believe this is how you are handling it. Paul O'Sullivan
left you out to dry the night of the arrest. He drove off, and today you are sitting here still trying
to cover for him when you have only this one opportunity. Really? Really, Ms. Trent? You are
opting to cover instead of the truth. So why is it so hard?
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Ms Trent: There is nothing to cover up. | mean, | have always said | have never witnessed him
committing any offence. That is what | said very clearly.

Ms James: So he has never lied and created false affidavits, Paul O'Sullivan?
Ms Trent: No, not false affidavits.

Ms James: Not ever? What has he done?

Ms Trent: What do you mean, what has he done?

Ms James: You said “No, not false affidavits” like there is something else.
Ms Trent: No, no, no, you said “lied” or made false affidavits.

Ms James: | cannot believe that you are wasting your one chance as to why you left Mr Paul
O'Sullivan, as to why you did not have contact with him for four years. Why did you not have
contact with him for four years? Why only now? | cannot believe [it].What happened? Breathe.
You are a strong girl. For four years you did not have contact with him. There is a reason. You and
| know it. Yes, we know it.

Ms Trent: It has nothing to do with whether he's committed any offences or anything. | had to
get out there. | wanted a proper life.

Ms James: Why was your life not proper?

Ms Trent: It became self-destructive. It got to a point where | just could not...

Ms James: You could not what?

Ms Trent: Carry on working there. It did not feel right. | had been getting therapy.

Ms James: Ms Trent, breathe and cut all these soul ties tonight, because that is what it is. It is a
bondage. You are in slavery. You have this one opportunity. He used you. He used you.

Ms Trent: Yeah.

Ms James: Not only with McBride, with Mandla as well. | am not going to mention more names
because | am not here to humiliate you. | want to give you an opportunity to speak to South
Africans here tonight. He used you. Tell us. That is why you live. That is why you have not been
speaking to him for four years.

Ms Trent: Yes, he did. He did not help me.

Ms James: We are going to give you time to get your life back tonight so that you can be removed
and detached from all of this. But you have got to speak to us.

Ms Trent: It is a lot to say. For me, there is a lot of resentment, but also it took me a long time to
feel like | could leave. | do not want to sound like a victim or anything like that, but it was a very
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stressful environment. It was, like Hon Sauls was saying, you know, bullets and streets and what,
what, what. | do not know what | would do, to be perfectly honest, right now. | am just happy |
am out.

Ms James: What was in ‘Connecting the Dots’, [on] the Night with the braai, that information that
he had?

Ms Trent: It is called “Joining the Dots”. It was about how he had joined the capture of the
criminal justice system and how, so it would be, for example, Berning Ntlemeza and the DPClI,
and then it would have the connection with Johan Booysen. So it was how that was connected
and joined. | think he handed it out then. | remember it like that, so it must be. But basically, the
braai was pretty much listening to how wonderful he is. Then he rushed off to the airport and
that was it. A couple of us stayed for another drink and went home.

Ms James: Do you have access to that document, Joining the Dots?
Ms Trent: Yes, | do. | think | have given it to the Evidence Leaders.
Chairperson: Ms Sarah-Jane Trent, good morning.

Ms Trent: Good morning.

Chairperson: Did you open a case against General Phahlane?

Ms Trent: Me, personally, no. Paul O'Sullivan opened the case.

Chairperson: So when you went to Phahlane's house, because you have not opened any case
against him with IPID, what justified your presence there as a South African citizen?

Ms Trent: | worked for Paul and | had worked...

Chairperson: No, listen, Paul is the one who opened the case, not you. Am | correct?
Ms Trent: Correct.

Chairperson: And you worked for Paul?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Chairperson: If Paul had a reason legally for him to be there, in case he had a reason, what reason
did you have yourself? You are not joined to Mr O’Sullivan. In terms of South African law, you are
two separate citizens.

Ms Trent: Yes, | understand.
Chairperson: What justified your presence there?

Ms Trent: | think | have answered that.
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Chairperson: No, | am asking you now. | want to know why were you there, because you have
not opened any case against General Phahlane with IPID. It was opened by your employer.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Chairperson: Yes. Why were you there? What is your locus standi? You acted in common
purpose?

Ms Trent: | did not act unlawfully.

Chairperson: We want to hear you speaking about the lawfulness that makes you to be there.
What is the lawfulness that makes you to be there?

Ms Trent: | think | feel like I'm a bit on the spot here to defend myself as if [it was] a criminal trial,
as opposed to giving information and facts.

Chairperson: No, you do not have to defend yourself.
Ms Trent: But you just said “You acted in common purpose”.

Chairperson: We are investigating. Before we saw you in, we read you the four pillars that we are
investigating in our terms of reference. We are investigating publicinterference. Itis one of them.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: You are a member of the public.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: You have not opened any case with IPID against General Phahlane.
Ms Trent: No.

Chairperson: Where do you get the right to just stand up from where you were and go to
Phahlane's house? The Hon Members are right. If you listen to what Hon Mncwango was asking
you, he was telling you that you did not have any business to be there. Whether it was going to
be a pointing or anything, you have not opened a case. You must tell the people of South Africa
that ‘l was there wrongfully.” Do not try and justify something that is not there. Number two, let
us deal with the dramatist personae.

Ms Trent: The?

Chairperson: The dramatist personae, the people who were there at the braai. You say they were
invited by you?

Ms Trent: Yes. Or, | sent the invitation.
Chairperson: On behalf of Mr O’Sullivan?

Ms Trent: Correct.
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Chairperson: Let us go through them one by one. Just mention a name.

Ms Trent: General Sibiya.

Chairperson: What justified his invitation?

Ms Trent: He had been mentioned in the Joining the Dots document.

Chairperson: No, no. You said that it was a braai and a book launch.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: And then Joining the Dots, is it the book that was being launched there?
Ms Trent: It had just been.

Chairperson: Joining the Dots is a separate document from the braai and the book that was being
launched.

Ms Trent: It was at one table, yes.

Chairperson: No, no. Wait. The people were invited for a braai, is it not? And there was also a
book launch. But there was a third item there, which was a document called Joining the Dots. Am
| correct?

Ms Trent: Correct. That is how | remember it, yes.

Chairperson: It is not the book that is alleged to have been launched at that event. Yourself and
Mr Paul O'Sullivan, when you talk to us, you talk to us about, number one, inviting people to the
braai. Number two, that there is also a book that was being launched. You even said that he came
with some copies of the book.

Ms Trent: Yes.
Chairperson: What was the title of the book?
Ms Trent: KrejCit.

Chairperson: Yes. So, number three, there is this document called Joining the Dots. Which, when
you are pressed to explain what it means, you say, it was about how he exerted influence in the
criminal justice system. Am | correct?

Ms Trent: How Mr O'Sullivan exerted influence?
Chairperson: Yes. Or how he immersed himself.

Ms Trent: It was, as | understood it, to join the dots of how things were connected to capture in
the criminal justice system.
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Chairperson: Wait, let us follow your explanation, that it was meant to illustrate how a capture
manifests itself in the criminal justice system. Is that what you are saying?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: What was the position of Sibiya in the SAPS at the time?

Ms Trent: He was not in the SAPS. He was at the City of Johannesburg at the time.
Chairperson: And then, how was the City of Johannesburg joined in the dots?

Ms Trent: No, it was not.

Chairperson: No, remember Sibiya was invited by you.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: So, are you saying that he was erroneously...?

Ms Trent: No, no, no. | do not know how many page document. | have given it to the Evidence
Leaders as well.

Chairperson: | want to understand. Was Sibiya a friend of Mr Paul O’Sullivan?
Ms Trent: | do not think [he was] a friend, but they knew each other, yes.

Chairperson: If a person organises a braai, can you just look at people in the police service and
say, ‘No, | am now throwing the dice. Whichever way it falls, | will invite this one, | will invite this
one, | will invite that one’? Do you agree with me that those people were carefully selected?

Ms Trent: Yes.

Chairperson: If we ask you about them one by one, will you explain why each one of them was
there in that braai? If it was a braai.

Ms Trent: | could explain where they are from.

Chairperson: No, | am not asking about where they are coming from. | am asking about what
legitimises their presence at the braai. So the questions are very difficult for you? The late Mandla
Mahlangu, what was the reason for him being there at the braai?

Ms Trent: Um...
Chairperson: What was the reason for Mr McBride to be at the braai?

Ms Trent; So Paul said, ‘Invite these people’, and that is what | did. So it was not me that decided
who came or for what purpose he decided on who to invite. If that makes sense.

Chairperson: No, it does not make sense. We are investigating public interference in the work of
the criminal justice system. The fact that we put to you now shows exactly how you and Mr Paul
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O'Sullivan have captured the IPID. That is why you are even able to invite them without explaining
to us whether you had a friendship with them or what. It is not only those two IPID [officials]. You
also invited Sibiya from the City of Johannesburg. You are unable to tell us why he had to be
there.

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Chairperson: Do you agree with me that you do not know why they were there? Or you do not
know the logic behind their invitations?

Ms Trent: Correct. | do not know if there was a plan or a...
Chairperson: A conspiracy or a plot?

Ms Trent: No, no. You know, a move in a game of chess or whatever. | do not know why they
were invited. | just sent the invitations and | bought the meat and it was two hours. It was not a
meeting on how to overthrow anything at all.

Chairperson: It was after you were arrested for impersonating as an IPID official? The IPID officials
who were with you in the car, was there any action taken against them at their workplace?

Ms Trent: | do not know.

Chairperson: But you might have heard if there was anything.

Ms Trent: | have no idea. | know that Mandla Mahlangu was killed.
Chairperson: Was it after he went there?

Ms Trent: He was supposed to be giving evidence... Anyway, you know what? | am not going to
finish that sentence. Very tragic.

Chairperson: Did you ever have IPID letterheads in your hands?

Ms Trent: No. Letterheads. | remember Paul had... | do not know. | do not know what a letterhead
is.

Chairperson: No, no. You must tell me what is it that you remember.

Ms Trent: What | remember is that there were allegations that he had a letterhead. | have never
sent a letter on an IPID letterhead.

Chairperson: Why [is it that] when we ask you questions, you make a statement, and when you
must complete the statement, you make a 360 degrees turn? All these Members, each one of
them who asked you a question, you will start by responding to the question, and in the middle
of your statement, you make a 360 degrees turn. It is exactly what you are doing now. When |
ask you, did you ever have an IPID letterhead in your hands, you say, “I remember Paul had...”,
and then you change it.
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Ms Trent: No, | mean, maybe | am not thinking before | answer and just jumping in.

Chairperson: No, no, no. | come from a village. Many people in my village do not know English.
English is a first language to you. There is no way you can be confused about your language.

Ms Trent: | am not saying | am confused about my language.
Chairperson: No, no, no. You cannot do those things to us.
Ms Trent: I...

Chairperson: Okay, tell me. If we were going to give you an opportunity now, after the questions
that Hon Members have asked you, what do you say about the allegations that have been made
against you by witnesses that have come before us? Your name has been mentioned repeatedly
here, not by one witness, more than two, more than three, more than four witnesses, senior
police officers, who have access to information in the SAPS. What do you have to say about these
allegations that have been made against you? You listened to what Hon Sauls said when he spoke
to you. He was trying to speak to your conscience.

Ms Trent: | am concerned that you have made a decision that | am guilty and that | must confess.
This is how | am interpreting what you are saying to me.

Chairperson: Who made that decision?

Ms Trent: The way that you are putting it to me is, ‘Come on, come clean, confess.” | maintain my
innocence.

Chairperson: Nobody says you are guilty.

Ms Trent: That is how you are coming across to me. You said how Hon Sauls said, ‘It is time to
come clean.” | have not committed any criminal offence.

Chairperson: Nobody says you are guilty. | am saying to you that there are these allegations.

Ms Trent: They are very disturbing allegations. And | deny having committed any criminal offence.
It is very unfortunate that | have been dragged into this, but | am here to assist the Committee,
but | have nothing to confess about any wrongdoing.

Chairperson: Do you think that there are things that Mr Paul O'Sullivan did which are outside the
law?

Ms Trent: No.
Chairperson: Everything that you did was lawful?

Ms Trent: Yeah, | have no reason to believe that | have not witnessed Paul O'Sullivan doing
anything unlawful. | have not witnessed it because | would not be able to be sitting here today
and speaking to you with a straight face if | knew that he had done something unlawful.
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Chairperson: Has the semi-social relationship given you undue access to certain IPID documents?
Ms Trent: Not at all.
Chairperson: Has it had undue influence to decision-making in IPID?

Ms Trent: | do not know. It is their decisions. | have not influenced anyone's decisions. They are
not my decisions to make.

Chairperson: Okay. Let me ask you this last question. | want to respect what you said. The
cellphone conversations that several honourable members have made reference to here, do you
understand them to be private and confidential?

Ms Trent: Yes, but it is a whole...
Chairperson: Do you understand them to be private and confidential?
Ms Trent: Of course.

Chairperson: And if there is a legitimate way that you may have to be answerable to those
messages?

Ms Trent: No problem. If | could get my phone back...

Chairperson: Wait. If there was to be a legitimate way where those messages would be accessed
and you will have to be answerable, are you ready to answer?

Ms Trent: Of course. If | can get my phone back and we download it and only extract the relevant
data and not any of my personal information, because they have leaked that.

Chairperson: No, there is nothing personal.
Ms Trent: No, but they have leaked it.

Chairperson: Listen. If you come here and make an admission before us that you had a semi-
social relationship with an office bearer in a government institution, the Committee must
investigate the extent to which that relationship has influenced the decisions of that office
bearer. Do you understand? And maybe not even one, more than one office bearer. The
Committee must prove that. Are you ready to have that information being proved?

Ms Trent: Not on whatever these things are. That is never going to stand up anyway.
Chairperson: | do not hear what you are saying.

Ms Trent: Oh, not on these things that came from Israel with a letter, not even a commissioned
statement for chain of evidence, no.

Chairperson: We do not talk about Israel. You are not Israel. We talk about you and your semi-
social relations. There is no Israel there.
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Ms Trent: | thought you were talking about my phone records.
Chairperson: Yes, that information is in your records.
Ms Trent: Purported records. We do not know where these are from.

Adv Mkhize: | just have a few questions to round off, and then | will be done. The Chairperson
has just reminded you of the work that this Committee is doing, and you have been invited to
assist the Committee with what you know, and you took an oath to do so truthfully, but
repeatedly in your evidence, you kept saying, ‘I have never seen Mr O'Sullivan commit a crime’,
and that is not the question before you. | am just going to look at that. The question before you
is not whether he has committed a crime or not. The question before you that you have to
respond to in assisting this Committee is the work that his entity, Paul O'Sullivan Associates, was
doing within law enforcement. And so you are correct to say that this is not a court because that
is not what is being conducted. However, you are still being invited to provide the Committee
with information that you have in your possession regarding some of the work that you did within
law enforcement. And it is for this Committee, together with the Evidence Leaders, to weigh that
evidence, to see whether the conclusion of infiltration can be made. At this stage, there is no
such infiltration. We are investigating infiltration. The question that | have is, Mr Phahlane
testified that he had an incident at Dunkeld. The incident ended up on social media in essence.
Are you aware of that?

Ms Trent: | am.

Adv Mkhize: Do you have a comment? Let me just shorten the time so that | can be a bit more
pointed. Adv Mashoga says that the video that was posted on social media was posted by you.
You first posted it using your handle, under your name, and then you subsequently deleted it
when you realised that you had made that mistake. And you posted it under the handle, Amanda.
Did you post the video clip, regarding the incident at Dunkeld?

Ms Trent: | do not remember, but possibly...
Adv Mkhize: You may have?
Ms Trent: Yeah.

Adv Mkhize: So you did. What we know is that that video clip was in the possession of Mr
McBride. Would you have gotten it from him?

Ms Trent: Possibly, yeah.
Adv Mkhize: You did?
Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: You joined Paul O’Sullivan and Associates in May 2015, which is the point that Hon
Cameron was trying to make. In 2016, you were then roped into matters. That was a few months
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after you had joined, about seven months or so that you had joined. You started off as an
assistant, but you had a formal role in 2016. What was your position within the entity?

Ms Trent: In 2016, | think we have covered that.

Adv Mkhize: No, we have not. What was your role? Not what you carried out. What was your
position?

Ms Trent: Corporate counsel. That was because | had been admitted as an attorney.

Adv Mkhize: You were corporate counsel and not an assistant, as you have been made to seem.
You were corporate counsel for Paul O'Sullivan. Every time you accompanied him, you
accompanied him in your capacity as corporate counsel for the entity?

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: But what you also testified throughout this evening is that as corporate counsel, you
took instructions from Paul. You sent out invites.

Ms Trent: No, but this was before.

Adv Mkhize: At every given point this evening, you have constantly told the Committee that you
took instructions from Paul. You have not testified that ‘Il sat with Paul. We strategised. | advised
him as corporate counsel in how we should deal with these matters in going to Sable Hills home.
| advised them that we are unable to actually enter this home because that would be unlawful.’
That is what corporate counsel would do. So the point | am just putting to you is that your
testimony tonight has only been about taking instructions from Paul.

Ms Trent: Yes, over that period. Correct.

Adv Mkhize: And you also just conducted research, compiling dockets, which is why you could
almost be mistaken for an assistant.

Ms Trent: Correct.
Adv Mkhize: What did you understand by being corporate counsel?

Ms Trent: That if you are an admitted attorney and working in a company or in-house, it is just
another new word that they had sort of accepted for in-house counsels.

Adv Mkhize: But the division is legal?
Ms Trent: Yes.
Adv Mkhize: So you would have been in-house legal?

Ms Trent: Yes, and then later on CFE.
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Adv Mkhize: So everything that you would have conducted in that period, you would have done
it in your capacity as corporate counsel?

Ms Trent: | would have to think about that one.
Adv Mkhize: It is the role you were in.
Ms Trent: Yeah, that is what was on my letterhead.

Adv Mkhize: You would have been working in that position every day and you would have been
conducting your day-to-day tasks as in-house legal. You would be providing advice to the staff in
the entity, also providing advice in support to the executive team.

Ms Trent: This was just a handful of us.

Adv Mkhize: Those handful of people would have relied on you for all the policies within the
entity as well as anything, contracts, whatever operations you would have been doing. You would
have been the person who would have been able to advise the entity, and including Mr Paul
O'Sullivan, whether it is lawful for your entity to take statements on behalf of IPID. That is the
role of legal.

Ms Trent: No, | do not agree with that. | understand what you are saying but | think it is a bigger
discussion or debate on that.

Adv Mkhize: Yes, | do not take away the discussion because obviously how entities operate
depends on the size of the entity.

Ms Trent: Correct.

Adv Mkhize: | am talking specifically about your position. Your position as reflected in your CV is
that of corporate counsel. So all legal matters would have come to your desk.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: Which included advising the team on how you conduct operations in assisting law
enforcement.

Ms Trent: No, there was nothing unlawful about that.

Adv Mkhize: | have not said anything about [it being] unlawful. | am talking about your position
and the kind of support you would have been giving the team which is what corporate counsel
does within an entity. Ms Trent, again, it's two o'clock in the morning. | am not trying to trick you
and | am not cross-examining you. | am putting your evidence on the record. Up until this point,
everything that we have discussed has been about you being an assistant to Mr O'Sullivan. | think
that as a lawyer, what | am trying to say is to be reduced to an assistant whereas your position
as reflected in your CV is that of corporate counsel. And some of your duties would entail
supporting the team on legal matters. That is correct?
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Ms Trent: Yeah.

Adv Mkhize: So Mr Jooste, whose statement you assisted with, did you assist in your capacity as
legal or did you assist in your capacity...?

Ms Trent: | cannot remember if | assisted with drafting a draft or if it was Paul, if | was in the
email.

Adv MKhize: Because of the time, let us assume it was Paul that drafted the statement. He would
have relied on your legal advice on the status of him taking a statement on behalf of the entity
because you would have been within the scope.

Ms Trent: Oh, no, he would not have asked my advice on that.

Adv Mkhize: But you were with him at Sable Hills.

Ms Trent: Yes.

Adv Mkhize: Yes, so you were aware that he is taking the statement.
Ms Trent: There was nothing wrong with taking the statement.

Adv Mkhize: Did you warn him?

Ms Trent: No, | did not need to.

Adv Mkhize: You also then testified of a spyware called Pegasus.

Ms Trent: Yeah, it is very serious.

Adv Mkhize: What is Pegasus?

Ms Trent: So, | do not know what Pegasus is but apparently it is this super phone-intercepting
device. And apparently it is from Google.

Adv Mkhize: How did you come to know about it?

Ms Trent: Oh, when | was trying to find out about my phone in Israel, and then | kind of came
across what spywares they use and that kind of thing. And then | saw that there was something
about spyware in South Africa. There is one. | am not sure which one, apparently.

Adv Mkhize: | can remind you. You testified that you suspected that somebody was using it on
you. Who was using it on you?

Ms Trent: Oh, no, no. That was more of in jest. It was when Hon Skosana said, ‘Were we spying
on Duduzile Zuma-Sambudla.’l sort of laughed and said, ‘Oh, | thought they were using it on me.’
Not as a statement.

Adv Mkhize: No, what you did say is that, “No, | did not spy on Duduzile. That is hectic. | suspected
somebody was using [it] on me. That is how | know about it.”
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Ms Trent: Oh, is that what | said?

Adv Mkhize: That is what you said. | am interested because | have never heard of it before and it
falls in the terms of reference. So | would like to just basically know who was trying to use it on
you?

Ms Trent: | do not know. | mean, it was just a slip of the tongue, but | do know that there is a
problem with spying devices. | think it is an issue.

Adv Mkhize: Ms Trent, because it is very late and | think everybody here is not happy with me
that | have detained them for a bit longer than they would like to, | do not have enough time to
press you. | do not accept that you said it in jest. You reacted and you told the Committee. It is
on the record. Do you have a comment about that?

Ms Trent: No, | do not think anyone was using Pegasus on me, but | do...

Adv Mkhize: Okay. One of the things that was being investigated, if | may remind you, on the
Phahlane matter with the Phahlane Task Team is that Phahlane had been accused of trying to
procure spyware, and that is part of what you investigated. It was a contract which had been
inflated. How did you know that?

Ms Trent: Is this the R45 million thing?

Adv Mkhize: Yes, indeed. That is the one. How did you know the amount was inflated? Are you
familiar with prices of spyware?

Ms Trent: Oh, no. | just know that it was inflated, not because | looked at anything. | have never
seen that investigation or any of the docket[s] or anything like that. | do not know what a grabber
would cost.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, so amongst the things, various things you were looking into investigating
General Phahlane, you did not come across this R45 million contract?

Ms Trent: No, | did not look into any contract.

Adv Mkhize: Okay, we will move on. Are you aware that General Sibiya also procured spyware on
behalf of the state of Johannesburg?

Ms Trent: | did not. | know that there have been allegations in the media.
Adv Mkhize: Do you know anything about it?

Ms Trent: No, | do not have any information on any purchase of spyware.
Adv Mkhize: You also spoke about the brushes for fingerprints.

Ms Trent: Yes.
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Adv Mkhize: How do you know about brushes for fingerprints, [and] what they are supposed to
look like?

Ms Trent: So that is from the whistleblowers that came to see Mr O'Sullivan when | was there,
and they brought an example of the makeup brush that they had been given. | think there was a
David Tlatso, he is a forensic specialist. He has moved, but he did a report on what the squirrel
hairbrush why it is important, it does not smudge the print.

Adv Mkhize: Lastly, do you have more than one passport?
Ms Trent: No, | only have one.
Adv Mkhize: Thank you.

Mr Skosana: Before we close. Sarah-Jane Trent, when she broke down earlier, | just want her to
be frank to the Committee. She said to me outside, and | was very touched as well, because it
reminded me of Cedric Nkabinde. You said to me, do you remember, or must | say it? For me, |
think you need help. We have to help you on this matter. Whether it is your attorney, whether it
is Paul, somebody said something to you, then you broke down. Somebody said something to
you, whether it was direct from Paul O’Sullivan, or was it coming from your attorney? You said to
me, ‘Paul, Paul’, and you were crying. What was happening?

Ms Trent: | was just angry with Paul, because it was just too much.
Mr Skosana: | rest my case, Chair.

Chairperson: Ms Trent, we want to thank you for availing yourself to come before us. From
yesterday, we had very good proceedings with Mr. Paul Sullivan and yourself. So we have come
to the end of the proceedings.
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AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,

DARRYL FURMAN
do hereby make oath and state that:
hereby make oath and state that :-

1: I am a male attorney of the High Court of South Africa practising in partnership
under the style and name of Darryl Furman and Associates at 1t Floor, Block D,
Upper Grayston Office Park, 150 Linden Road, Simba, Sandton, Gauteng, 2196.

2 The facts herein contained are, save where otherwise stated or the contrary appears
from the context, within my personal knowledge; and are to the best of my belief

both true and correct.

3. During February 2026, I was instructed by O’Sullivan Brosnan & Associates
(previously known as Paul O'Sullivan & Associates), to act for and on behalf of Ms
Sarah-Jane Trent, in her preparation to testify at the Parliamentary Ad-Hoc
Committee in Cape Town.

4. All work and assistance that I provided is privileged. This Affidavit is only about the
events which took place during the evening of 5 March 2026. The events in
question, are set out on a factual synopsis which I have prepared and which is

—
attached hereto marked Annexure “"4”

=



DEPONENT

Thus done and signed before me, at JOHANNESBURG, on this, the lg

day of MARCH 2026, the deponent having declared that he/she is familiar
with the contents of this affidavit, regards the prescribed oath as binding
on his/her conscience, and has no objection against taking the said
prescribed oath. There has been compliance with the requirements of the

Regulations contained in Government Gazette R1258 dated 21 July 1972
(as amended).

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

DENIS SANDLER
B.ACC. C.A. (SA)
EX OFFICIO COMMISSIONER OF OATHS (RSA)
Chartered Accountant
Unit 13, Villa la Valle,
L 4 Qutspan Road.Benmore Gardens, 2198

082 557 5334
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SYNOPSIS OF EVENTS WHICH TOOK PLACE DURING THE EVENING OF 5 MARCH 2026

1. 18h29

I was watching the evidence being given by Sarah-Jane before the Parliamentary
Committee. ~ When she was being questioned/cross-examined by one of the
Parliamentarians at approximately 18h28, I noticed that she had broken down crying. I
immediately sent her a WhatsApp message at 18h29 stating “stand down and call me”.

2. 18h33

At 18h33 I sent an SMS to Advocate Bongiwe Mkhize stating :
“Stand down”
“Have Sarah call me”
Advocate Mkhize replied :

“Noted”

3. 19h54

At 19h54 I received a WhatsApp message from Sarah-Jane stating :

*I need to get to a hospital immediately”

*I cannot go on”

4. 19h55

At 19h55 I sent Sarah-Jane a WhatsApp message stating :

“Ask to stand down”

“Call me”



19h56

At 19h56 I received @ WhatsApp message from Sarah-Jane stating :

“Breaking shortly and I cannot do this”

20h00

At 20h00 I received a telephone call from Sarah-Jane who was crying and out of control.
Advocate Mkhize came onto the phone and I advised her that Sarah-Jane would not
continue and that Sarah-Jane was suffering from PTSD. I obtained Advocate Arendse’s
cell phone number from her.

I attempted to call Advocate Arendse at 20h04 and eventually managed to get through to
him at 20h06 when I repeated that Sarah-Jane had had a complete break down due to
her PTSD and that she needed to get to a hospital as soon as possible for treatment. He
advised me that he was on his way to Cape Town University but that he would get hold
of Advocate Mkhize.

I tried to call Advocate Mkhize at 20h05 with no reply. I also sent three WhatsApp
messages to her stating :

“Please call me”
20h12

At 20h12 I telephoned Advocate Norman Arendse but we were cut off after 23 seconds.



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

20h14
At 20h14 I again called Advocate Mkhize and again insisted that Sarah-Jane get to hospital
for treatment immediately and that she must immediately get permission from the

Chairman.

20h18

At 20h18 I called Sarah-Jane. She was in a complete state still crying and it was obvious
to me that she had had a complete breakdown.

I again telephoned Advocate Norman Arendse at 20h24 and requested that he make
contact with the Chairman in order to arrange for Sarah-Jane to be hospitalized
immediately. I again had two telephone discussions with Sarah-Jane at 20h28 and 20h32.
At that stage she was still out of control and I was convinced that she required urgent
hospitalization and treatment.

20h37

At 20h37 I again tried to contact Advocate Mkhize with no reply.

The hearing then re-commenced .....



